
 
 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE  Contact: Jane Creer 

Committee Secretary 
Wednesday, 18 March 2020 at 10.00 am  Direct : 020-8132-1211 
Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Silver Street, 
Enfield, EN1 3XA 

 Tel: 020-8379-1000 
 Ext: 1211 
 E-mail: jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk 

 Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

 
 
Councillors :  Mahmut Aksanoglu (Chair), Derek Levy and Maria Alexandrou 
 
Reserve Member: Vicki Pite 
 

AGENDA – PART 1 
 
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 
 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary, other pecuniary or 

non pecuniary interests relating to items on the agenda. 
 

3. MAXI WINE CENTRE, 495 HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD EN3 5XH  
(REPORT NO. 243)  (Pages 1 - 100) 

 
 Review Application 

 
4. SARGE OFF LICENCE, 240 FORE STREET, EDMONTON N18 2QD  

(REPORT NO. 244)  (Pages 101 - 158) 
 
 Review Application 

 
5. CARPATHINA LTD, 337 BOWES ROAD, LONDON N11 1BA  (REPORT 

NO. 245)  (Pages 159 - 204) 
 
 Review Application 

 
6. POLONEZZ, 14 GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 6JR  (REPORT NO. 246)  

(Pages 205 - 236) 
 
 Review Application 

 
7. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS  (Pages 237 - 256) 
 
 To receive and agree the minutes of the meetings held on Wednesday 22 

January 2020 and Wednesday 26 February 2020. 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk


8. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the 

Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting 
for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).  
(There is no part 2 agenda) 
 

 
 

 



MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019/20 REPORT 
NO.243 

 

 

 
Agenda - Part 

 
Item 

 

COMMITTEE : 
Licensing Sub-Committee 
18 March 2020 
 
REPORT OF : 
Principal Licensing Officer 
 
LEGISLATION : 
Licensing Act 2003 

SUBJECT : 
Review Application 
 
PREMISES : 
Maxi Wine Centre, 495 Hertford Road, 
ENFIELD, EN3 5XH.  
 
WARD : 
Enfield Highway 

 
 
1 LICENSING HISTORY & CURRENT POSITION: 

 
1.1 The premises has held a licence to be an off licence since 10 February 2006 

(LN/200500412).  
 

1.2 This licence was subject to a minor variation in 2012 due to counterfeit alcohol 
being found on the premises. 

 
1.3 This licence was reviewed in 2015 following repeated breaches of condition and 

illicit tobacco being found on the premises. 
 
1.4 The premises licence (LN/200500412) was revoked by the Licensing Sub-

Committee. 
 
1.5 For the full background of this licence and review application, follow this link here 

or 
https://governance.enfield.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=217&MId=9164&V
er=4 . 
 

1.6 The premises licence holder at this time was Mr Uygar Altun. 
 

1.7 On 26 August 2015, a new premises licence (LN/201500460) was granted to Mr 
Ali Riza Tulu, subject to modified conditions through representations by the 
Responsible Authorities, specifically including a condition that Mr Altun is not to 
be connected with the business. 
 

1.8 Mr Tulu has also been the named Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) since 
the grant of the new licence (LN/201500460). 
 

1.9 No review applications have been submitted in relation to premises licence 
LN/201500460. 

 
 
1.1 The current Premises Licence permits: 

1.1.1 Hours the premises are open to the public: 24 hours daily.  

1.5.2 Supply of alcohol (off supplies only): 10:00 to 00:00 (midnight) daily. 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3

https://governance.enfield.gov.uk/mgChooseDocPack.aspx?ID=9163
https://governance.enfield.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=217&MId=9164&Ver=4
https://governance.enfield.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=217&MId=9164&Ver=4


1.15  A copy of Part A of the current premises licence (LN/201500460) is attached in 
Annex 1. 

 
       THIS APPLICATION: 
1.2 On 24 January 2020 an application was made by Enfield Council’s Trading 

Standards for the review of Premises Licence LN/201500460 and is produced in 
Annex 2.  
 

1.3 The review application relates to the prevention of crime and disorder licensing 
objective and is made on the grounds that smuggled goods have been found a 
second time on the premises i.e.  non-duty paid cigarettes. Breaches of licence 
conditions have also been witnessed. The premises has a history of similar 
issues in general. 
 

1.4 The review application is to revoke the premises licence in its entirety. 
 
 

1.5 The review application was advertised in accordance with the requirements 
of the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
1.6 Each of the Responsible Authorities were consulted in respect of the 

application. 
 

 
 
2    RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS: 
 

2.1 Metropolitan Police: Representations have been made, supporting the 
review application and also seek full revocation of the premises licence, 
based on the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective. 

 
2.2 The Police’s representation is attached as Annex 3. 
 
3.2    Mr Ali Riza Tulu has not responded to the review application to date. 

 
 
3 PROPOSED LICENCE CONDITIONS: 
 
3.2 Trading Standards further request that if the Licensing Sub-Committee is minded 

not to revoke the licence that the licence be suspended until full compliance with 
the licence conditions has been demonstrated, and to consider adding two 
conditions. The full list of conditions is produced in Annex 4. 

 
 
4 RELEVANT LAW, GUIDANCE & POLICIES: 
 

Page 2



4.1 The paragraphs below are extracted from either : 

4.1.1 the Licensing Act 2003 (‘Act’); or 

4.1.2 the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State to the Home Office of 
March 2017 (‘Guid’); or 

4.1.3 the London Borough of Enfield’s Licensing Policy Statement of January 
2015 (‘Pol’). 

 
 General Principles : 
 
4.2 The Licensing Sub-Committee must carry out its functions with a view to 

promoting the licensing objectives [Act s.4(1)]. 
 
4.3 The licensing objectives are : 

4.3.1 the prevention of crime and disorder; 

4.3.2 public safety; 

4.3.3 the prevention of public nuisance; & 

4.3.4 the protection of children from harm [Act s.4(2)]. 

 
4.4 In carrying out its functions, the Sub-Committee must also have regard to : 

4.4.1 the Council’s licensing policy statement; & 

4.4.2 guidance issued by the Secretary of State [Act s.4(3)]. 

 
 
 
 

Review: 
 
4.5 In reviewing a licence the Licensing Sub-Committee will consider, and take into 

account, the complaints history of the premises and all other relevant information 
[Pol s.10.3].  

 
4.6 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly 

connected with licensable activities, for example the sale of contraband goods. 
The Sub-Committee does not have the power to judge the criminality or 
otherwise of any issue. The Sub-Committee’s role is to ensure the promotion of 
the crime prevention objective [Guid s.11.24].  

 
4.7 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed 

premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These include the use of 
the premises for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol [Guid 
s.11.27].  

 

Page 3



4.8 Where reviews arise in respect of these criminal activities and the Sub-
Committee determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined, 
it is expected that revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should 
be seriously considered [Guid s.11.28]. 

 
Decision: 
 

4.9 Having heard all of the representations (from all parties) the Licensing Sub-
Committee must take such steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives. The steps are :  

4.9.1 to modify the conditions of the licence; 

4.9.2 to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; 

4.9.3 to remove the designated premises supervisor 

4.9.4 to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 

4.9.5 to revoke the licence [Act s.52]. 

 
4.10 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, the Sub-Committee should so far as 

possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns which the 
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed 
at these causes and should generally be directed at those causes and should 
always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate response [Guid 
s.11.20]. 

 
 

Background Papers :  
None other than any identified within the 
report.  
 
Contact Officer :  
Ellie Green on 020 8379 8543 

 

 

Page 4



Licensing Act 2003 

PART A – PREMISES LICENCE 

Granted by the London Borough of Enfield as Licensing Authority 

Premises Licence Number : LN/201500460 

Part 1 – Premises Details 

Postal address of premises : 
Premises name : 

Telephone number : 

Address : 

Asya Wine Centre 

Not provided 

495 Hertford Road ENFIELD EN3 5XH 

Where the licence is time-limited, the 
dates : 

Not time limited 

The opening hours of the premises, the licensable activities authorised by the 
licence and the times the licence authorises the carrying out of those 
activities : 

(1) Open to the Public - Whole premises 
Sunday : 00:00 - 00:00 
Monday : 00:00 - 00:00 

Tuesday : 00:00 - 00:00 
Wednesday : 00:00 - 00:00 

Thursday : 00:00 - 00:00 
Friday : 00:00 - 00:00 

Saturday : 00:00 - 00:00 

(2) Supply of Alcohol - Off supplies 
Sunday : 10:00 - 00:00 
Monday : 10:00 - 00:00 

Tuesday : 10:00 - 00:00 
Wednesday : 10:00 - 00:00 

Thursday : 10:00 - 00:00 
Friday : 10:00 - 00:00 

Saturday : 10:00 - 00:00 

Annex 1Page 5



Part 2 
 
Name and (registered) address of holder of premises licence : 

Name : 
 

Telephone number : 
 

e-mail : 
 

Address : 

Mr Ali Riza Tulu 
 
Not provided  
 

 

 
 
Registered number of holder (where 
applicable) : 

 

 
Name and (registered) address of second holder of premises licence (where 
applicable) : 

Name : 
 

Telephone number : 
 

Address : 

Not applicable 
 
 

 
Name and address of designated premises supervisor (where the licence 
authorises the supply of alcohol) : 

Name : 
 

Telephone number : 
 

e-mail : 
 

Address : 

Mr Ali Riza Tulu 
 
Not provided 
 

 

 
 
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by 
designated premises supervisor (where the licence authorises the supply of 
alcohol) : 
Personal Licence Number : 

 
Issuing Authority : 

 
 
London Borough of Enfield 

 
Premises Licence LN/201500460 was first granted on 26 August 2015.  
 
 

Signed :         Date : 26th August 2015                        
for and on behalf of the 
London Borough of Enfield 
Licensing Unit, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield EN1 3XH 
Telephone : 020 8379 3578 

Page 6



Annex 1 - Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence : (a) At a 
time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the 
premises licence; or (b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor 
does not hold a personal licence or his personal licence is suspended. 
 
2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or 
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence. 
 
Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 
 
3. There shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or matters 
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of 
children. 
 
4. All staff shall receive induction and refresher training (at least every 
three months) relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions of 
the premises licence.   
 
5.  All training relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions 
of the premises licence shall be documented and records kept at the 
premises. These records shall be made available to the Police and/or Local 
Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one year. 
 
6. A 'Think 25' proof of age scheme shall be operated and relevant 
material shall be displayed at the premises.   
 
7. A written record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and 
completed when necessary. This record shall be made available to Police 
and/or the Local Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one year 
from the date of the last entry. 
 
8. Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all public 
exits from the premises requesting customers respect the needs of local 
residents and leave the premises and area quietly.  These notices shall be 
positioned at eye level and in a location where those leaving the premises can 
read them. 
 
9. Alcohol and cigarette stock shall only be purchased from registered 
wholesalers. 
 
10. Only the Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor 
shall purchase alcohol and cigarette stock. 
 
11. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods 
bought are kept together in a file or folder as evidence that they have been 
brought into the UK through legal channels.  Receipts shall show the 
following details: (1) Seller's name and address; (2) Seller's company details, 
if applicable; (3) Seller's VAT details, if applicable.  Copies of these 
documents shall be retained for no less than 12 months and shall be made 
available to police or authorised officers of the council on request within five 
working days of the request.  The most recent three months' worth of receipts 

Page 7



shall be kept on the premises and made available to the police or authorised 
officers of the council on request. 
 
12. All tobacco products which are not on the tobacco display shall be 
stored in a container clearly marked 'tobacco stock'. This container shall be 
kept within the store room or behind the sales counter. 
 
13. Tobacco products shall only be taken from the tobacco display behind 
the sales counter in order to make a sale. 
 
14. A personal licence holder is to be present on the premises and 
supervise the sale of alcohol, throughout the permitted hours for the sale of 
alcohol.   
 
15. Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed on all alcohol 
fridges and at all other alcohol display areas advising customers of the 
permitted sale of alcohol times. 
 
16. Mr Uygar Altun (formally known as Kemal Altun) shall not be involved 
in any way in the operation and / or management of the business or be 
permitted to work in the business in any capacity.  
 
17.               The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV 
system: 
(1) All entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of 
every person entering in any light condition. 
(2) All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date 
and time stamping. 
(3) Recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of 
Police or authorized officer throughout the preceding 31 day period. 
(4) The CCTV system should be updated and maintained according to police 
recommendations. 
(5) A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of 
the CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is 
open to the public. This staff member must be able to show a Police or  
authorized council officer recent data or footage with the absolute minimum 
of delay when requested. 
 
18. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on 
request to an authorised officer of the Council or the Police, which will record 
the following: 
(1) All crimes reported to the venue 
(2) All ejections of patrons 
(3) Any complaints received 
(4) Any incidents of disorder 
(5) All seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(6) Any faults in the CCTV system 
(7) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 
 
19. The venue will operate a can marking scheme agreed in writing by the 
Police and Licensing Authority. All cans of alcoholic beverages will be 
marked with either indelible ink marker pens, UV marker pens or other can 
marking scheme i.e. stickers.  

Page 8



 
20. No super-strength beer, lagers or ciders of 6.5% ABV (alcohol by 
volume) or above shall be sold at the premises. 
 
Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority 
 
Not applicable 

Page 9



Annex 4 – Plans 

Page 10



 

 

 1 F LIC 1A 

Annex 2 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate 
under the Licensing Act 2003 

 
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

 
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all 
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use 
additional sheets if necessary. 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  
I  Amanda Butler- Senior Fair-Trading Officer 

Enfield Council Trading Standards 

 

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below  
 

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details   
 
Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 
 
Maxi Wine Centre (formally known as Asya Wine Centre) 
495 Hertford Road   

Post town 
 
Enfield  
 

Post code (if known)  
 
EN3 5XH 

 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if 
known)  
Mr Ali Riza TULU 

 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known  
 
LN/201500460 issued on 26/8/2015 

 
Part 2 - Applicant details  

I am  
 Please tick yes 

1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below) 
 

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises 
 
b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises 

 
c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises 

 
d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the 

premises 

  

 

 

 

 

Page 11



                       2                  F LIC 1A 

 

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)  

 

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) 
below) 

    

 
(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 

 
Please tick 
Mr  Mrs  Miss  Ms  Other title       
 (for example, Rev) 
 
Surname  First names 

             

 
 Please tick yes 

I am 18 years old or over 
 

 

 

Current postal  
address if  
different from 
premises 
address 

      

 
Post town       Post Code       

 
Daytime contact telephone number       

 
E-mail address 
(optional)  

      

 

 

(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 

 
Name and address 
      

Telephone number (if any) 
      

E-mail address (optional)  
      

 

Page 12



                       3                  F LIC 1A 

 

 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 

 
 Amanda Butler 
Senior Fair Trading Officer 
Enfield Council 
Trading Standards Department 
PO Box 57 
Civic Centre 
Silver Street 
EN1 3XH 

Telephone number: 020 8 132 1572 

E-mail address: Amanda.butler@enfield.gov.uk  

 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 
 Please tick one or more boxes 

1) the prevention of crime and disorder  
2) public safety  
3) the prevention of public nuisance  
4) the protection of children from harm  

 

Please state the ground(s) for review: (please read guidance note 1) 
 
1. Background. 

 
1.1   Enfield Trading Standards Authority is seeking a review of the premises licence 

on the grounds that smuggled goods have been found on the premises i.e. non-
duty paid cigarettes and hand rolling tobacco. 

 
1.2 This review is based on the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective.  
 
1.3       The review application is to revoke the premises licence in its entirety. 

 
2. Previous History  
 

2.1 495 Hertford Road was previously known as Asya Wine Centre.  The Premises 
Licence holder was a Mr Kemal ALTUN who changed his name by deed poll to a 
Mr Uygar ALTUN in 2014. 

 

           2.2 23rd November 2009: Mr Kemal ALTUN was prosecuted under the Food Safety 
Act 1990 following the seizure of alcohol namely, 25 bottles of Spar branded 
Imperial Vodka containing excessive levels of methanol. Mr Kemal ALTUN was 
found guilty and ordered to pay a fine and costs.   

 
           2.3 March 2012; A minor variation was issued to add conditions to the licence 

following the discovery of counterfeit alcohol (3 bottles of Bollinger).   
 
           2.4 21st July 2015, Mr Altun’s premises licence was revoked on the grounds of the 

Prevention of Crime and Disorder as the premises had been found to be selling 
nonduty paid tobacco and alcohol, contrary to Condition 15 of the premises licence 
which states: - 

 
 ‘A personal licence holder is to be present on the premises and supervise 
the sale of alcohol, throughout the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol’  

 

Page 13



                       4                  F LIC 1A 

 
 
 2.5 Condition 15 of the licence had also been breached 5 times in a year.   
 
            2.6 26th August 2015; a new premises licence was applied for by the current premises 

licence holder namely, Mr Ali Riza TULU.  Condition 16 was added to the new 
premises licence which states: - 

 
‘Mr Uygar Altun (formally known as Kemal Altun) shall not be involved in any 
way in the operation and / or management of the business or be permitted to 
work in the business in any capacity’. 

 
2.7 Refer to Appendix 1 for history of licensing review resulting in revocation of the 

premises licence). 
 

2.8 Mr Ali Riza TULU has been the Owner, Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) 
and premises licence holder for Asya Wine Centre now known as Maxi Wine 
Centre- 495 Hertford Road EN3 5XH, since 15th August 2015 to present date. 

 
3.0 Recent Inspection History 2019 
 

3.1 03/06/2019;  Enfield Council Licensing Enforcement Team were notified by a 
Police Licensing Officer of alleged counterfeit alcohol and tobacco being sold from 
495 Hertford Rd EN3 5XH. Two vans were alleged to be parked directly outside of 
the said premises. 

 
3.2 17/6/2019; Enfield Council Licensing Team and Officers from HMRC conducted an 

inspection at Asya Wine Centre (now known as Maxi Wine Centre).  
 

3.3 No Illicit tobacco were found on the premises at the time of the inspection.  
 

3.4 There was a female on the premises who was identified as ‘Aylin Yengin’, Flat 57 
Butterfly Court.  She spoke very little English. A personal licence holder was not 
present at the time of the inspection contrary to Condition 14 of the Premises 
Licence which states: - 

 
‘A personal licence holder is to be present on the premises and supervise 
the sale of alcohol, throughout the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol’. 

 
3.5 During the inspection Officers identified cans of alcohol which were over 6.5% ABV 

(Alcohol by Volume) alleged to breach Condition 20 of the Premises Licence which 
states: - 

 
‘No super-strength beer, lagers or ciders of 6.5% ABV (Alcohol by volume) or 
above shall be sold at the premises’ –  

 
3.6 Refer to Appendix 2 - CPX02 to CPX06: - Photos of alcohol  

Refer to Appendix 2 - CPX/07: - Premises Licence 
 

3.7 Officers observed a White Bipper van VRM: NU62 XVK parked directly outside of 
495 Hertford Rd EN3 5XH.  Staff were observed going back and forth to the van.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



                       5                  F LIC 1A 

 
 

3.8 25/6/2019; Officers identified the White Bipper van VRM: NU62 XVK to be 
registered to a Mr Kemal ALTUN of 101 Southbury Rd, Enfield. 

 
3.9 5/7/2019; Officers from Enfield Council Licensing Enforcement Team arrived at 

Maxi Wine Centre-495 Hertford Rd EN3 5XH and observed a White Bipper van 
parked directly outside of the premises.   

 
3.10 Upon arrival, the Officers saw a young male outside of the premises who was 

looking around.  The male retrieved a small item out of the van, put the item in his 
pocket and entered the said premises.  The male identified himself as ‘Filip Nadev’.  

 
3.11 Officers entered, 495 Hertford Rd EN3 5XH and saw a tall broad male leave the 

premises with a small carrier bag.  
 

3.12 Officers observed another male situated behind the counter and explained the 
nature of the inspection.  The male did not speak much English and said to Officers 
that he would call the boss.  The Officer asked the male who the boss was.  The 
male replied ‘Kemal' and made a telephone call. The male proceeded to send a 
text message as there was no answer on the telephone.   

 
  3.13 A couple of minutes later, a third male arrived at the premises and spoke to the  

 male behind the counter in another language. The male behind the counter 
identified himself as ‘Erkan’ and then later said that his name was ‘Svetlozar 
Atanasof’.   

 
He explained to Officers that the boss was ‘Ali’. Officers reminded ‘Erkan’ that he 
had told them that the name of the boss was ‘Kemal’.  Erkan replied ‘No, I said it 
was Ali Riza’.  This was not the case.  The third male kept speaking to ‘Erkan’ in 
another language.   

 

3.14 Whilst at the premises, Officers conducted a full licensing inspection whereby the 
following alleged breaches of Premises Licensing Conditions were identified: - 

 
3.14.1 Condition 4. ‘All staff shall receive induction and refresher 

training (at least every three months) relating to the sale of 
alcohol and the times and conditions of the premises licence’.   

Erkan explained to Officers that he had not signed training records 
and did not know the meaning of ‘Think 25’ or a refusals book. 

             3.14.2 Condition 5.  All training relating to the sale of alcohol and the 
times and conditions of the premises licence shall be 
documented and records kept at the premises. These records 
shall be made available to the Police and/or Local Authority 
upon request and shall be kept for at least one year. 

Erkan stated he had only worked there a few days but that he had 
been trained.  However, he said he had not signed any training 
records and did not the meaning of ‘Think 25’ or a refusals book, 
when asked.   

 

3.14.3 Condition 6. A 'Think 25' proof of age scheme shall be 
operated, and relevant material shall be displayed at the 
premises.   

Page 15



                       6                  F LIC 1A 

A Think 25 poster was on display. However, staff were unaware of 
the scheme.   

 3.14.4          Condition 7. A written record of refused sales shall be kept on 
the premises and completed when necessary. This record shall 
be made available to Police and/or the Local Authority upon 
request and shall be kept for at least one year from the date of 
the last entry. 

   Staff did not know what a refusals book was. 

                       3.14.5 Condition 11. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all 
receipts for goods bought are kept together in a file or folder as 
evidence that they have been brought into the UK through legal 
channels.  Receipts shall show the following details:  

   (1) Seller's name and address;  
   (2) Seller's company details, if applicable;  
   (3) Seller's VAT details, if applicable.   

Copies of these documents shall be retained for no less than 
12 months and shall be made available to police or authorised 
officers of the council on request within five working days of 
the request.  The most recent three months' worth of receipts 
shall be kept on the premises and made available to the police 
or authorised officers of the council on request. 

 
No invoices were found.  During the inspection, invoices in the 
name of Potters Mart Ltd were found.  Please see Appendix 3- 
(CPX/09 to CPX/10) - photograph of the invoices 

 
            3.14.6 Condition 14. A personal licence holder is to be present on the 

premises and supervise the sale of alcohol, throughout the 
permitted hours for the sale of alcohol.   

 
   There was no personal licence holder on site.   
 

3.14.7 Condition 16. Mr Uygar ALTUN (formally known as Kemal 
ALTUN) shall not be involved in any way in the operation and / 
or management of the business or be permitted to work in the 
business in any capacity.  

 
3.14.8 Condition 17. The premises shall install and maintain a 

comprehensive CCTV system: - 
 

 (1) All entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal 
identification of every person entering in any light condition. 
(2) All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 
days with date and time stamping. 
(3) Recordings shall be made available immediately upon the 
request of Police or authorized officer throughout the 
preceding 31-day period. 
(4) The CCTV system should be updated and maintained 
according to police recommendations. 
(5) A staff member from the premises who is conversant with 
the operation of the CCTV system shall be on the premises at 
all times when the premises is open to the public. This staff 
member must be able to show a Police or authorized council 
officer recent data or footage with the absolute minimum of 
delay when requested. 

Page 16



                       7                  F LIC 1A 

 
The staff claimed that they did not know how to use the CCTV 

system. 

3.14.9 Condition 18. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and 
made available on request to an authorised officer of the 
Council or the Police, which will record the following: 

 (1) All crimes reported to the venue 
   (2) All ejections of patrons 
   (3) Any complaints received 
   (4) Any incidents of disorder 
   (5) All seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
   (6) Any faults in the CCTV system 
   (7) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 
 
   Staff were not aware of an incident book. 
 
3.14.10 Condition 20. No super-strength beer, lagers or ciders of 6.5% ABV 

(alcohol by volume) or above shall be sold at the premises. 
 

Lager of 7% (ABV) was found on the shelf and were subsequently advised 
to remove the alcohol from the premises. 

 
Foreign labelled Kasztelan lager was identified on the premises.  Officers 
advised that the labelling on alcohol products should be in English.   

 
3.14.11 Non-compliant tobacco products namely ‘Blunts’ were also identified by 

Officers during the inspection. 
 
3.14.12 Refer to  Appendix 3:CPX/11-inspection report and Appendix 3: CPX12 to 

CPX14- photos of the invoices and alcohol.   
 
 

3.15 8/7/2019 Enfield Council Licensing Department ascertained the change of 
business name from Asya Wine Centre to Maxi Wine Centre 495 Hertford Road 
5XH 

 
3.16 11/7/2019; Director of Potters Mart Ltd was identified as a Mr Usman Kaleem.  The 

licence holder and the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) was identified as a 
Mr Dervis ALTUN.  Refer to  Appendix 3:- CPX15- Premises licence for Potters 
Mart Ltd 

 
3.17 9/8/2019;Officers from Enfield Licensing Team conducted observations from 

outside of Maxi Wine Centre. 
 
  The White Bipper van was parked outside of the said premises.   
 

A male was observed standing outside, smoking next to the van.  He kept going in 
and out of the premises but did not get anything out of the van.   

 
3.18 15/8/2019; Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer and Police Licensing Officer 

conducted a licensing inspection at Maxi Wine Centre-495 Hertford Rd EN3 5XH.   
 

Upon arrival, Officers observed the White Bipper Van VRM: NU62 XVK parked 
directly outside of the said premises.  

 

Page 17



                       8                  F LIC 1A 

Tobacco products namely ‘Blunts’ were identified as contravening tobacco 
legislation and removed from the premises.   

 
An open packet of non-duty paid cigarettes were also observed next to a motor 
vehicle’s key, which appeared to be for the White Bipper van VRM: NU62 XVK.  

 
Officers requested a female member of staff namely ‘Aylin’ to open the White 
Bipper Van. ‘Aylin’ refused to open the said van as the van belonged to a male 
called ‘Yusuf’.  An Officer advised ‘Aylin’ that they had identified Mr Kemal ALTUN 
was the registered keeper of VRM: NU62 XVK.  This was denied by ‘Aylin’.   

 
‘Aylin’ subsequently made a telephone call and advised Officers that ‘Yusuf’ was 
on his way to 495 Hertford Rd, EN3 5XH.    

 
Twenty minutes later, a male who identified himself as ‘Yusuf ‘arrived at the said 
premises and walked behind the shop counter.  ‘Aylin’ proceeded to hand ‘Yusuf’ 
the keys to the van and the opened packet of Non-duty paid cigarettes.  ‘Yusuf’ left 
the premises immediately without speaking to officers and entered the said van.  

 
The Police Licensing Officer knocked on the window of the van.  ‘Yusuf’ ignored 
the Officer and drove away from the premises. 

 
It is alleged that Mr Uygar ALTUN (formally known as Mr Kemal ALTUN) is still 
actively running/managing the business from 495 Hertford Road, (although the 
premises licence holder is currently Mr Ali Riza TULU, contrary to Condition 16 of 
the premises licence). 

 
 
3.19 11/10/19; a premises licence was granted to Mr Ali Riza TULU regarding premises 

currently known as Maxi Wine Centre- 495 Hertford Road EN3 5XH.  No changes have 
been made to the licence since that time. 

 
3.20 28/10/19 ;Officers from Enfield Council Trading Standards, a Senior Licensing 

Enforcement Officer and a Police Licensing Officer were accompanied by a dog handler 
and a dog from Wagtail International to various retail premises within the Borough to 
combat the sale of illicit tobacco. 

 
At approximately 11.30HRS, Officers conducted an inspection to Maxi Wine Centre 
(formally known as Asya Wine Centre) 495 Hertford Rd Enfield EN3 5XH. 

 
Upon arriving at the said premises, Officers saw a female of Mediterranean appearance 
behind a shop counter.  The Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer explained the nature of 
the inspection to the female who identified herself as Ms Eilem KILIC.  Officers showed 
their credentials to Ms KILIC.   

 
Ms Eilem KILIC’s first language was not English and therefore made a telephone call on 
her mobile phone.  The Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer asked to speak to the 
person on the telephone.  The Officer spoke to a male who identified himself as Mr 
Dervish KILIK who explained that he was the business partner of the premises licence 
holder. 

 
The Owner and premises licence holder, Mr Ali RIZA TULU was not on the premises at 
the time of the inspection. 

 
The Dog handler and Dog from Wagtail International assisted with the inspection and 
found the following tobacco on the premises: - 

 

Page 18



                       9                  F LIC 1A 

 Fifty (x50) packets of 20 Marlboro Gold cigarettes 

 Twenty-four (x24) packets of 20 P3ct cigarettes  

 Fourteen (x14) packets of 20 Compliment Blue cigarettes  

 Ten (x10) packets of 20 Compliment Purple cigarettes  

 Twelve (x12) packets of 20 Marvel cigarettes  

 Thirteen (x13) packets of 20 NZ cigarettes  

 Fourteen (x14) packets of 20 L & M Cigarettes  

 Nineteen (x19) packets of 20 Minsk cigarettes  

 Seventeen (x17) packets of 20 NZ Gold cigarettes  

 Ten (x10) packets of 20 Rothmans cigarettes  

 Fourteen (x14) packets of 20 Lifa cigarettes  

 Twenty (x20) packets of 20 Marlboro Touch cigarettes 

 Four (x4) packets of 20 Victory Gold cigarettes 
 
Total: 221 packets of 20 cigarettes (4420 sticks) 
 

 Three (x3) packets of 20 Golden Virginia hand rolling tobacco (50g) 

 Two (x2) Amber leaf hand rolling tobacco (50g) 
 
Total: - 5 packets of hand-rolling tobacco (250g) 
 
The afore-mentioned products were found in bags within cardboard boxes behind the shop 
counter.   
 

The estimated excise duty and VAT evaded on the 4420 cigarettes is £1559.11    and 5 
packets of hand rolling tobacco seized is £70.70. 

 
Also, during the inspection, illicit drug paraphernalia/polyethene bags were seen displayed 
for sale behind the shop counter. Please see Appendix 2: - CPX22 to CPX26   

 
Refer to  Appendix 4- Notice of Seizure and Notice of Powers 
Refer to  Appendix 3: -CPX17 to CPX26 Photos of the seized tobacco 

  
3.21 11/11/2019; a letter was sent to Mr Ali RIZA TULU and Ms Eilem KILIC inviting them to 

attend a tape-recorded interview on 10th December 2019 under the provisions of the 
Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984. They did not attend this interview. 

 
This was in regard to the following alleged offences pertaining to the seized tobacco 
namely: - 

 
Section 136 licensing Act 2003  
It is alleged that the following premises licence conditions have been breached: - 
 
Condition 14 of the premises licence which states: - 

 
‘A personal licence holder is to be present on the premises and supervise the sale 
of alcohol throughout the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol’. 

 
Mr Ali RIZA TULU was not on the said premises at the time of the inspection conducted on 
28th October 2019 by Officers from Enfield Council’s 
Trading Standards Team, Licensing Enforcement Team and  
a Police Licensing Officer.  

 
 
 
 

Page 19



                       10                  F LIC 1A 

Condition 16 of the premises licence states: - 
 

‘Mr Aygar ALTUN (formally known as Kemal ALTUN) shall not be involved in 
anyway in the operation and/or management of the business or be permitted to 
work in the business in any capacity’.  

 
Inspections from Enfield Council Licensing Enforcement Team and a Police Licensing 
Officer observed a White Bipper van VRM: NU62 XVK parked directly outside of 495 
Hertford Rd EN3 on the 17th June 2019 and  
15th August 2019, respectively.  The van has been identified to be registered to Mr Kemal 
ALTUN alias Mr Aygar ALTUN. 

 
Condition 10 of the premises licence states: - 

 
‘Only the Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor shall 
purchase alcohol and cigarette stock’ 
 
On 5th July 2019, Officers from Enfield Licensing Dept conducted a licensing inspection at 
495 Hertford Rd EN3.  During the inspection, invoices were produced which stated the 
suppliers of alcohol and tobacco.  The invoices were addressed to ‘Potters Mart Ltd’ 75 
Darkes Lane.   
 
The Company Director of Potters Mart Ltd has been identified to be a Mr Usman Kaleen 
and the premises licence holder has been identified as a Mr Dervis ALTUN who was not 
the premises licence holder for Asya Wine Centre or Maxi Wine Centre’.   

 
3.22 11/12/2019; Senior Fair-Trading Officer wrote to Mr Ali Riza TULU and Eilem KILIC 

requesting them to contact them within 7 days in order to reschedule the PACE interview.  
Refer to  Appendix 5- PACE letters and emails from and to Mr Ali Riza TULU 

 
 

4. Suspected Offences;  
 

4.1 Section 144 of the Licensing Act 2003 
 

It is alleged that on 28th October 2019 Maxi Wine Centre- 495 Hertford Rd were found 
to be in possession of imported tobacco without payment of duty or which have 
otherwise been unlawfully imported  

 
4.2 Regulation 7(1) of the Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Products Regulations 

2015  
 

On 28th October 2019, Officers seized tobacco products alleged to breach Regulation 
7(1) of the Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Products Regulations 2015, in that the 
exterior of the packaging did not have the permitted colour, that being Pantone 448c 
applied to it.  

 
4.3 Contrary to Regulation 15(1) of the Standardised Packaging of Tobacco 

Products Regulations 2015 
 

On 28th October 2019, Officers seized tobacco products alleged to breach Regulation 
7 and 11 of the Tobacco & Related Products Regulations 2016 because the labelling 
was not in English i.e. did not comply with the General warnings and information 
messages on tobacco products for smoking and/or General conditions applicable to all 
health warnings on tobacco products. Contrary to Regulation 48 of the Tobacco & 
Related Products Regulations 2016.  

 

Page 20



                       11                  F LIC 1A 

 
 
5.0 Additional Information: 
 
5.1 Home Office revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (11.27), 

states that there are certain criminal activities that may arise in connection with licensed 
premises which should be treated particularly seriously. The list includes the use of 
licensed premises for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol (i.e. non duty 
paid products). 

 
5.2 The guidance (11.28) goes on to say that it is envisaged that responsible authorities will 

use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where reviews 
arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective is being 
undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that 
revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should be seriously considered.  

 
5.3 On 11th February 2015, during the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee in regard to 

the application to review the premises licence of Asya Wine Centre -495 Hertford Rd, 

Paragraph 11 of the said minutes stated, ‘there would be no drug related paraphernalia 
in the shop’.  Please see Appendix 1- Paragraph 11. 

 
5.4 However, during the Trading Standards and Licensing Inspection on 28th October 2019, 

photographs of small plastic bags believed to be drugs paraphernalia were identified.   
 
6.0 Conclusion: 
 
6.1 Enfield Trading Standards Authority is of the opinion that given the large volume of 

tobacco seized, it is appropriate to recommend that this licence be revoked, even in the 
first instance.  

 
6.2 The afore-mentioned recommendation takes into consideration the previous premises 

licence revocation issued to Mr Uygar ALTUN (formally known as Kemal ALTUN) and the 
alleged breach(es) of the current premises licensing conditions i.e.  10, 14 and 16, 
contrary to Section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003 

 
6.3 The fact that Mr Ali Riza TULU (who is the current Premises Licence Holder and 

Designated Premises Supervisor) was not on the premises at the time of the inspection, 
the alleged licensing breaches and alleged product safety non-compliances, the Trading 
Standards Authority has a lack of confidence in those running the business.   

 
6.4 If the Licensing Committee is minded not to revoke the licence, then the Trading 

Standards Authority request that the licence be suspended until the following actions 
have been completed: 

 
6.4.1 Full compliance with the licence conditions has been demonstrated. 

 
6.5 Trading Standards make no recommendations regarding amendments to the licence 

conditions, as these had already been varied in March 2012 and have been demonstrated 
as not being adhered to. They contain the most appropriate and up to date conditions 
consistent with the Operating Schedule. 

 
6.6 Trading Standards reserve the right to add any additional information to support this 

review application. 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



                       12                  F LIC 1A 

 
 
7.0 Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority  

Not applicable 
 

Add the following conditions: 
 

7.1 Non-duty paid tobacco or alcohol must not be stored or sold from the premises or from 
any vehicle. 

7.2 There will be no drug related paraphernalia in the shop or being displayed for sale 
 
 
 
 

 
The Licensing Authority reserve the right to add any additional information to support this 
review application. 
 

Suspension of Licence:                                                      N 
 
Revocation of Licence:                                                       Y 

Recommended period of suspension (max 3 months):  

 
A significant quantity of smuggled tobacco has been found at this premises.   
Having regard to the Home Office guidance the Trading Standards Authority feels it 
is appropriate to seek total revocation of the premises licence.  
 
 

Please tick yes 

Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before No 
 
If yes please state the date of that application 

   
 

 

If you have made representations before relating to these premises please state 
what they were and when you made them 
 
N/A 
 

 

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON 
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
APPLICATION 
 
Part 3 – Signatures (please read guidance note 3) 
 

Please tick yes 

 I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible 
authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club 
premises certificate, as appropriate 

 

 I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements 
my application will be rejected 

 

Page 22



                       13                  F LIC 1A 

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent 
(See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what 
capacity. 
 

Signature:      
 
 

Date: 20th January 2020 
 

Capacity:  Senior Fair-Trading Officer 
   

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for 
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5) 
      

Post town 
      

Post Code 
      

Telephone number (if any)        

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
mail address (optional)       

 
Notes for Guidance  
 

1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 
2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems 

which are included in the grounds for review if available. 
3. The application form must be signed. 
4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf 

provided that they have actual authority to do so. 
5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this 

application. 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Home (https://new.enfield.gov.uk/) /  Services (https://new.enfield.gov.uk/services/)

/  Councillors and democracy (https://new.enfield.gov.uk/services/councillors-and-democracy/)

/  Agenda and minutes (ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=217&MId=9164&Ver=4)  /  Agenda item

• Meeting of Licensing Sub-Committee, Wednesday, 11th February, 2015 10.00 am (Item 405.)

(ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=217&MID=9164#AI33114)

• View the background to item 405. (mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=38564)

Application to review a premises licence.

Minutes:

RECEIVED the application made by the Licensing Authority for the review of the Premises Licence held by Mr Uygar Altun

at the premises known as and situated at Asya Wine Centre, 495 Hertford Road, Enfield, EN3 5XH.

NOTED

1. The opening statement of Mark Galvayne, Principal Licensing Officer, that a request for the adjournment of the

hearing had been received this morning on behalf of the Premises Licence Holder.

2. The statement of Mr Philip Howarth, Barrister, representing Mr Uygar Altun, (Premises Licence Holder and

Designated Premises Supervisor), that he had just met Mr Altun and may need to take some further instructions from

him, but he would be asking for an adjournment because a number of matters had arisen in respect of an application

to vary the Designated Premises Supervisor. However, the panel may first wish to hear the full introduction by the

Principal Licensing Officer.

3. The introductory statement of Mark Galvayne, Principal Licensing Officer, including the following points:

a. This was an application to review the Premises Licence of Asya Wine Centre.

b. The review was brought by the Licensing Authority.

c. The Licensing Authority considers that it is appropriate to revoke the Premises Licence, in order to support the

prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective.

d. The application was supported by the Metropolitan Police Service, who also considered that it was appropriate to

seek revocation of the licence.

e. All parties had received a bundle of colour photographs, which were referred to on page 13 of the agenda in

respect of the licence inspection on 11 July 2014 as Appendix 1.

f. Additional information in respect of the Licensing Authority representation dated 6 February 2015 and admitted by

the Chair on 9 February 2015 had been circulated to all parties.

g. The licence had been held by Uygar Altun since 24 April 2006.

h. Uygar Altun had also been the Designated Premises Supervisor since 22 May 2009.

i. This morning, solicitors on behalf of Mr Altun had made valid an application to vary the Designated Premises

Supervisor from Uygar Altun to Halil Bolat. This was requested to be made with immediate effect in accordance with

the Licensing Act 2003 s.13.

j. The Police had two weeks to consider the variation application. If the Police considered it suitable, the application

would be granted and Mr Bolat’s name would be added to the licence as Designated Premises Supervisor. If the

Police made an objection, a hearing of the Licensing Sub Committee must be called.

k. The Premises Licence would still be held by Uygar Altun and Mr Altun would remain the named Designated

Premises Supervisor and be deemed to have the responsibilities of that position for the next two weeks.

4. The statement of Mr Philip Howarth, Barrister, in clarification, including the following points:

a. One of the reasons that an application had been submitted to vary the Designated Premises Supervisor was to

address many of the concerns raised by the responsible authorities.

b. He therefore invited the panel to consider an adjournment so that everything could be done properly. Solicitors

had informed him that a valid application had been made. He suggested that it would be better and make more sense

to bring this matter back when the Police had had the opportunity to consider the variation application.

c. The Premises Licence Holder also had a number of other proposals, including reductions of hours when alcohol

would be sold, and changes in the shop.

d. There had been a spot check on 5 February 2015 which he understood to have been basically satisfactory. He

would imagine that responsible authorities would again want to make checks, including that the new Designated

Premises Supervisor could meet all conditions of the licence, and he would ask for adjournment so that could be

done.

Agenda item
ASYA WINE CENTRE, 495 HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5XH (REPORT 
NO. 167)

Page 1 of 7Agenda item - ASYA WINE CENTRE, 495 HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5...

20/01/2020http://governance.enfield.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=33114

Appendix 1
Page 25



e. He confirmed that a complete adjournment of the hearing was requested for about two weeks so that these

matters could be sorted out. This would make sense so that all matters could be heard together and all parties would

know the exact situation.

5. The advice of the Principal Licensing Officer that Uygar Altun had three months’ notice of today’s hearing. The

application to vary the Designated Premises Supervisor had been made this morning. Potentially, that variation

application could be withdrawn in two weeks’ time. This Premises Licence had been held for a number of years.

Uygar Altun was in attendance at this hearing, and he remained the licence holder responsible for operation of the

licence. The variation application should not be material to a decision at this meeting. The Licensing Authority had

rejected proposals for reduction of hours and still sought revocation of the licence.

6. The Chair advised that the hearing was going to go ahead. He acknowledged the points made on behalf of the

Premises Licence Holder but the sub-committee were minded to hear the review application today. The review

application had been made on 4 November 2014, which was three months’ ago, and related to a specific matter,

which warranted consideration today. A change of Designated Premises Supervisor could be covered outwith of this

hearing. The Chair clarified the process and order of the meeting.

7. The Chair granted a request for a five minute adjournment to allow Mr Howarth to explain the procedure to Mr Altun

as he was not sure that English was his first language.

8. The opening statement of Charlotte Palmer, Licensing Enforcement Officer, on behalf of the Licensing Authority,

including the following points:

a. The Licensing Authority were requesting revocation of the Premises Licence of Asya Wine Centre.

b. On 11 August 2014 Trading Standards received allegations that the premises had been selling under the counter

cigarettes for some time. On 15 August 2014 this was proved true as a sale was made to an officer carrying out a test

purchase.

c. On 22 August 2014 an inspection found Famous Grouse whisky with duty stamp obliteration stickers removed on

display.

d. These discoveries undermined the licensing objective of the prevention of crime and disorder.

e. The Secretary of State believes that the sale of smuggled alcohol should be treated particularly seriously and that

where licence reviews are submitted and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective is

being undermined revocation of the licence, even in the first instance should be seriously considered.

f. This was not the first instance at this premises. The same person had held the licence since 2006. In 2009 Mr

Altun was prosecuted following the seizure of vodka containing dangerous levels of methanol.

g. Conditions to the licence were strengthened, and the licence holder was warned in writing. Therefore the licence

had conditions already included which were the additional conditions which the Licensing Authority would seek when

such issues were discovered.

h. In May 2014 a letter in respect of new mandatory conditions attached to the licence was sent to the premises from

the Licensing Team and including a further advice warning from Trading Standards.

i. There had been repeated breaches of licensing conditions especially Condition 15 that a personal licence holder

be present on the premises throughout the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol.

j. Officers also had concerns regarding drugs paraphernalia for sale on the counter.

k. Charlotte Palmer had hand delivered the licence review application to the premises and had witnessed a customer

with £5 in their hand ask for duty free cigarettes. Other officers had witnessed similar occurrences at the premises.

l. The premises was located within the Enfield Highway Cumulative Impact Policy (CIP) area.

m. There was already crime and disorder in this area. Activities at this premises could be adding to problems in the

area.

n. The Licensing Authority had no confidence in those running this premises and they therefore asked for the

licence to be revoked.

9. The statement by PC Martyn Fisher, on behalf of Metropolitan Police Service, including the following points:

a. The Police supported the application by the Licensing Authority for revocation of the licence.

b. Research was carried out on the Police intelligence systems in relation to this premises: no results came back.

10. Questions were invited on the introductory statements:

a. The Chair asked the Principal Licensing Officer’s views on the drugs paraphernalia and how that would undermine

licensing objectives. It was advised that the equipment being sold was for smoking cannabis and would encourage

such activity, eg Rizla papers, and grinders to grind it into a more usable material to smoke, and the scales could be

used for other drugs. The equipment would encourage people to partake in illegal and nefarious activities.

b. In response to the Chair’s queries about offences alleged arising from the 15 August 2014 test purchase,

Charlotte Palmer confirmed that tobacco products legally must have health warnings written in English; and it was an

offence under the Licensing Act 2003 to keep smuggled goods at the premises. The packet of cigarettes sold to the

officer had foreign labelling – that was an offence – and having smuggled goods was an offence.

c. In response to the Chair’s queries about the Licensing Enforcement Officers’ visit on 5 February 2015 set out in

the Licensing Authority’s additional information, Charlotte Palmer confirmed that at this inspection there were entries

in the refusals book (there were 13 entries since the last visit, in comparison to none in the previous month). There

was also a record that six named staff had received training on 23 January 2015 – the same date as the previous

Page 2 of 7Agenda item - ASYA WINE CENTRE, 495 HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5...

20/01/2020http://governance.enfield.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=33114

Page 26



inspection. The Premises Licence Holder had said that the training was done that day after the officers had left. 

Charlotte Palmer advised that there were not normally six staff at the premises at the same time, and it could be 

questioned whether Mr Altun would be able to get them all in. The inspection on 23 January 2015 had taken place in 

the evening, at 19:40. Therefore if the training had taken place on that day they would have had to get all six people 

in on that evening. She confirmed that a personal licence holder was present at the 5 February 2015 visit, and that 

this visit was not a pre-booked appointment.

d. In response to further queries by Councillor Jiagge, Charlotte Palmer confirmed the new entries had been made in

the training records book since the previous inspection on 23 January 2015, and they set out the date of training,

what the training was in, and who was trained. It was recorded that on 23 January 2015 six named people had

received training. The date of 23 January 2015, at 19:40, was the last time that officers visited, to carry out a full

licence inspection, and advised the licence holder that conditions were being breached, including Condition 6 and 7

relating to training.

e. In response to the question from the licence holder’s representative about whether there was a prescription or

legal requirement around how training should be done, or at any particular time or place, the wording of Conditions 6

and 7 of the licence were highlighted. Induction and refresher training (at least every three months) were required.

f. In response to further queries from the licence holders’ representative that Mr Altun would have been told of

compliance problems in no uncertain terms at the 23 January 2015 visit and it would not be surprising if he had then

called in all his staff, Charlotte Palmer advised that officers would have told the licence holder which conditions he

was breaching and how to comply. She had given the facts of the officer visits on 23 January and 5 February 2015.

g. The licence holder’s representative asked about the novelty bags, scales, etc, noting that it was open for those

items to be sold, that they were available from wholesalers and frequently promoted at cash and carry

establishments. Charlotte Palmer responded that it was not illegal to sell these items, but that she had never seen

them displayed in such a manner, on the counter, where sweets were also displayed.

h. The Principal Licensing Officer referred to the offer by the licence holder to reduce the hours for sale of alcohol

and asked for the views of the Licensing Enforcement Officer on that offer. Charlotte Palmer confirmed that the

licence holder had offered a reduction in hours to sell alcohol only between 10:00 and 23:00, which was just less than

the CIP hours. She confirmed that the Licensing Authority still rejected this proposal or a proposal for a period of

suspension of the licence: they still stood by their position of seeking revocation of the licence. The Licensing

Authority remained concerned about how the premises were run, despite compliance now, there had been such a

pattern over a number of years.

11. The statement of Mr Philip Howarth, Barrister, on behalf of the licence holder, including the following points:

a. He was accompanied by the Premises Licence Holder, Uygar Altun.

b. It had taken some time to get to this position; it had been argued that there had been a pattern over a few years,

but the case did not have the intensity which may have been seen in others.

c. Trading Standards had clearly been concerned, but had conceded that there is compliance with the licence now. It

may be that Uygar Altun had not approached matters in the way he should have, but signs were now positive that he

is complying with the licence conditions at the moment and has made sensible concessions in respect of hours.

d. It was important that the premises created no more issues in the CIP area. It may well be that it would make

policing easier by bringing hours into line with other off sales in the area.

e. The panel had the power to revoke the licence, but also to take other actions. The panel were required to look at

the lowest sanction first, being mindful of the aims of the Licensing Act, and any sanction must be appropriate and

proportionate.

f. He questioned whether it would be most appropriate to revoke the licence, and urged the panel to consider a

position in between, to enable the business to continue in a structured and lawful way without undermining the

Licensing Act.

g. Mr Altun had proposed a change of Designated Premises Supervisor and personal licence holder.

h. Mr Altun proposed a reduction in hours that alcohol was sold.

i. Mr Altun proposed structural changes to the shop to ensure that sales of alcohol could not be made outside the set

hours.

j. There would be no drug related paraphernalia in the shop or in the same area of the shop as alcohol sales.

k. He requested consideration of a period of suspension of the licence, when trade in alcohol would not be permitted,

to allow the licence holder to ‘put their house in order’.

l. It may be that Trading Standards would want to add further conditions to the licence for Mr Altun to be able to

prove the source of goods and that there were no more incidents of non duty paid goods. All of these things could be

built into a licence as they were easily verifiable. Mr Altun had started complying with the refusals book. The panel

may want to stop him from trading until this was done, by suspending the licence.

12. Questions were invited on the representation:

a. The Chair highlighted that the licence holder had “started complying with the refusals book”, but checked and

received confirmation that he had held the licence since 2006, had been prosecuted in 2009, and had varied the

licence to strengthen conditions in 2012.

b. The Chair questioned why the licence holder had not acted on the letter of May 2014 and the Trading Standards

advice that tobacco and alcohol must be bought from a reputable supplier and products must be evidenced by

receipts, given the smuggled goods found at the premises in August 2014. It was responded that Uygar Altun was not

Page 3 of 7Agenda item - ASYA WINE CENTRE, 495 HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5...

20/01/2020http://governance.enfield.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=33114

Page 27



making the purchases at that time. Purchasing was being done by someone else who came to help him. Mr Altun

accepted that he had been in the wrong as he was responsible as the licence holder, but it could be seen that he was 

making a determined and focused effort now to put things right.

c. The Chair further questioned whether this may be acting too late, given that Mr Altun had operated the licence for

nine years. Mr Howarth was not sure what advice Mr Altun may have had in the past, but that after this hearing he

would be told that he could not be running a business, especially a regulated business, in such a way, and he had to

be clear about what his responsibilities were. However, the panel’s decision-making was not meant to be punitive.

The business had to operate with regard to the licensing objectives, but the response had to be proportionate.

d. Councillor Vince asked about the non duty paid goods found and whether Mr Altun had asked for receipts for the

goods and whether receipts had been seen by officers. Mr Howarth conceded that Mr Altun had no details and was

not given receipts for these products. His general impression of how Mr Altun ran the business was that he tended to

get goods from a variety of wholesalers. His record keeping was arguably very poor at that time. In meeting new

conditions he would be required to make improvements in receipt keeping and proving that all duty payable goods

were coming from reputable suppliers. In response to further questioning about receipts, it was advised that Mr Altun

did keep invoices now and that goods were purchased from reputable sources. Mr Altun had been able to show

invoices and where goods were from on recent officer inspections.

e. Councillor Vince expressed concerns that this premises was near to a very large secondary school and that sales

may be made to youngsters, given the history of non compliance with licence conditions. It was responded that Mr

Altun had gone some way in recent times to make proper efforts that sales were correctly refused. A refusals book

was kept up to date. ‘Challenge 25’ notices were up and facing the right way, and Mr Altun had called in all staff to

receive training.

f. In response to Councillor Vince’s further queries in relation to training, it was advised that Mr Altun now knew that

he had to undertake staff training regularly and it had to be verifiable. Mark Galvayne noted that the conditions

regarding training had been on the licence since 2012. Mr Howarth conceded that regular staff training should have

been undertaken in the past, but that did not happen. But looking forward to the future it would be ensured that

verifiable records were kept and all new workers would be trained. Officers were also invited to strengthen conditions

as necessary. Mark Galvayne noted that Condition 6 set out how often training should be carried out and Condition 7

set out the records to be kept. These were conditions already on the licence.

g. The Chair raised that the operation of the licence was not the reason for this review, but rather the sale of

counterfeit goods, and asked about the previous prosecution. The licence holder’s representative responded that this

was quite some time ago. Mr Altun was complying with the licence. There may be further steps to be taken in respect

of verifying how he operated his business to the satisfaction of Trading Standards and the Police over an intense

period so that everything was correct. He would submit that was an appropriate way forward.

h. The Chair asked about public health implications of sale of counterfeit goods. It was advised that Uygar Altun

conceded on that, but these were specific incidents. What had been reported from Trading Standards and the Police

did not amount to continuing issues, but were specific serious incidents of breaching the licence which warranted

action, but could be made right by giving Mr Altun time.

i. The Chair drew attention to five occasions reported when the Premises Licence Holder was not on the premises

during licensed hours, and that allowing purchases to be made by an unnamed person may also be considered

irresponsible. It was advised that Mr Altun conceded this was so. He wanted to address the issue by transferring the

licence to someone who was there all the time.

j. In response to the Chair’s request for confirmation that Mr Altun would still be the Premises Licence Holder. Mr

Howarth advised that he would need to take further instruction and clarification, but from the solicitors he understood

that further concessions were to be made and that a valid application to vary the Designated Premises Supervisor

had been submitted. He would say that revocation in the immediate aftermath of such a breach could be appropriate,

but not in this situation where measures could be taken to put all matters in order. There had been recent

compliance. The situation was not so chronic that only revocation was appropriate and in the public interest.

k. Charlotte Palmer asked if Uygar Altun could please confirm his home address, and when he moved to that

address. This was confirmed as 29 Mayfield Road, Enfield, EN3 7LS and he had moved there two weeks ago.

l. Charlotte Palmer asked why a copy of the review application which had been sent to the Premises Licence

Holder’s address given on the licence (6 Martins Drive, Cheshunt) had been returned marked “addressee unknown”

on 11 November 2014, and why no action had been taken when officers advised that the address on the Premises

Licence needed to be changed. It was an offence not to advise the Licensing Authority of a change of address under

the Licensing Act. It was responded that Mr Altun used a number of family addresses and that the Martins Drive

address was still used. However, Mr Altun had experienced domestic problems which were the reasons for changing

his address. He was not able to explain why members of his family sent his post back. Mr Altun had been at Mayfield

Road for the last two weeks and was in the process of notifying everyone that this was his new address and that he

would no longer be using the Cheshunt address. Mark Galvayne confirmed that no notification or appropriate fee for

the change of address had been received by the Licensing Authority, and noted that Mr Altun had been represented

over the last three months by Oakfield Solicitors.

m. Charlotte Palmer asked if Mr Altun could confirm that on 23 January 2015 officers advised that his address

needed to be changed. Mr Howarth advised that Mr Altun had started living at the Mayfield Road address at about

that time.

n. Charlotte Palmer asked about Mr Halil Bolat, advised as the potential new Designated Premises Supervisor, and

his relationship to Mr Altun. It was advised that Mr Bolat was not a relative, but an employee and it was planned to

install him as manager to run the entire business on Mr Altun’s behalf. Mr Altun would remain the business owner.

Page 4 of 7Agenda item - ASYA WINE CENTRE, 495 HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5...

20/01/2020http://governance.enfield.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=33114

Page 28



o. Charlotte Palmer raised the offer made to reduce licensed hours, but asked how that would solve the issues of

concern of non duty paid goods at the premises. It was advised that reduced hours were not designed to address that

issue, but to address concerns that the policing of the business was causing more problems than it should and its

impact in the CIP area. The aim was to bring the operation’s licensed hours into line with the zone. In respect of non

duty paid goods, there had been specific incidents, but nothing since January. There was no evidence of an ongoing

pattern of breaches. The origin of goods could be verified.

p. Councillor Vince asked when a change of address should be notified. Mark Galvaye confirmed that “forthwith” was

the requirement.

q. In response to Councillor Vince’s query why the Licensing Authority was not notified of the change of address

straight away, it was advised that initially this had been an ad hoc arrangement for Mr Altun with a friend, around the

25 January 2015. He conceded that notification should have been made as soon as practicable, but his situation had

to be considered in the context of his domestic problems and having to move all his belongings. Mark Galvayne

advised that failing to notify a change of address as soon as reasonably practicable was an offence and subject to a

£500 fine under Section 33 of the Licensing Act. He would consider ‘reasonably practicable’ as the next working day.

r. In response to the Chair’s question about relevance of licensed hours to the issues of concern, it was advised that

the reduction in hours would address points in relation to the CIP and policing generally and would seem to be an

appropriate step to take. There were other conditions on the licence that could be strengthened to address other

issues.

s. In response to the Chair’s further queries about the suggestion that Halil Bolat be installed as manager and

whether he was a current member of staff, it was advised that he was now working as an employee. He was not one

of the named members of staff recorded as having received training on 23 January 2015. He had started working at

the premises after that date. He would be trained.

13. The closing statement of Mark Galvayne, Principal Licensing Officer, including the following points:

a. The Home Office Guidance s. 11.24, 11.27 and 11.28 were highlighted for Members’ attention, as set out in

paragraphs 4.6 to 4.8 of his report.

b. This was not the first instance of criminal activities. Over six years of trading there had been instances in 2009,

2012 and 2014.

c. The Licensing Sub-Committee must take such steps as considered appropriate for promotion of the licensing

objectives.

14. The closing statement of Charlotte Palmer, Licensing Enforcement Officer, including the following points:

a. There was a pattern of illicit tobacco and alcohol at this premises, in 2009, 2012 and 2014.

b. The Premises Licence Holder had already been given a second chance and the licence strengthened so that it

had included suitable conditions already for some time.

c. The licence holder had a history of breaching conditions.

d. The Licensing Authority considered that the appropriate action was revocation of the licence.

15. The closing statement of PC Martyn Fisher, on behalf of Metropolitan Police Service, reiterating support of the

Licensing Authority’s application for revocation of the Premises Licence.

16. The closing statement of Mr Philip Howarth, Barrister, on behalf of the licence holder, including the following points:

a. There had to be regard to the overall objectives of the Licensing Act, including that businesses should continue to

operate within the law.

b. All issues raised by Trading Standards and the Police could be met over a period of time, and a suspension of the

licence should be considered so that proper rigorous systems could be put in place under a new manager.

RESOLVED that

1. In accordance with the principles of Section 100(a) of the Local Government Act 1972 to exclude the press and

public from the meeting for this item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt

information as defined in Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act.

The Panel retired, with the legal representative and committee administrator, to consider the application further and 

then the meeting reconvened in public.

2. The Chairman made the following statement:

“Having read and listened attentively to the written and oral representations, the Licensing Sub–Committee (LSC) has 

resolved that the appropriate step to be taken to support the promotion of the licensing objectives is to revoke the 

licence of the Asya Wine Centre.

The LSC believes in particular that the offences as raised in terms of the sale of counterfeit and non-duty paid goods 

not just go against the prevention of crime and disorder, but – with respect to unlawful alcohol sales - runs the risk of 

compromising public safety. As such, the LSC was persuaded that the Licensing Authority has made its case in full.

Page 5 of 7Agenda item - ASYA WINE CENTRE, 495 HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5...

20/01/2020http://governance.enfield.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=33114

Page 29



Although we have heard that additional conditions and reduced hours have been offered by the Premises Licence 

Holder, and that he has begun to undertake relevant staff training in order to address the uncontested breaches of 

conditions identified, the LSC was not satisfied that this would be sufficient or appropriate. The panel believes 

existing conditions as agreed by the Minor Variation to the licence dating back to March 2012, arising from counterfeit 

alcohol again being found on the premises at that time, address all of the issues proposed by the Premises Licence 

Holder in making this offer.

The panel also heard that the Premises Licence Holder offered to reduce the hours during which alcohol may be sold 

as a mitigating and corrective factor, and to bring the premises in line with the cumulative impact policy as applies in 

this area. However, we were not persuaded by the arguments made in the submission on the basis that the sale of 

counterfeit and non-duty paid goods is not time sensitive. Furthermore, the full licence inspection which occurred at 

19:40 on 23 January 2015, being more than two months after the review application was made, additionally revealed 

a series of non-conformity with current conditions. Initially on that day, and we heard further evidence regarding five 

other separate occasions, Mr Uygar Altun was not present on the premises when the officers arrived. This repeated 

breach of Condition 15 was a matter of specific concern.

The report from the subsequent visit made on 5 February 2015 appears to confirm remedial action had been taken to 

bring outstanding conditions of the licence into compliance. However, with regard to staff training, whilst we heard 

that there is nothing in law to direct when and where such training should be undertaken, the panel considered that 

the capacity to have properly prepared and delivered appropriate training to six members of staff during shop opening 

hours on the very same day and in such a short time frame in the aftermath of the previous inspection (19:40 on 23 

January) lacked credibility.

The LSC has applied significant weight to both the Council’s Licensing Policy and Home Office statutory guidance - 

especially sections 11.24, 11.26 and 11.27 - whereby the matter of selling counterfeit and non-duty paid goods 

should be taken seriously, even in the first instance.

In this case, the Premises Licence Holder has been discovered on four occasions – initially in 2009, from which a 

prosecution followed against Mr Altun for counterfeit alcohol on the premises where he was convicted following the 

seizure of 25 bottles of vodka containing excessive levels of methanol. Then on 30 March 2012, counterfeit alcohol 

was again found on the premises. Most recently, and twice in August 2014, first non-duty paid tobacco was found on 

the premises (15 August); and only a week later (22 August) non-duty paid alcohol was again found on the premises.

The LSC was concerned that the Premises Licence Holder had failed to act upon the advice given at the time of the 

first offence, subsequently in a guidance letter, dated March 2012, then specifically via the guidance letter sent on 28 

May 2014, and information conveyed at in-store licensing inspections. The papers refer specifically to copies of the 

inspection report from 23 January 2015 being signed by and left with Mr Altun.

We heard that there was an absence of any receipts to validate that the goods constituting the offences as presented 

by the Licensing Authority were purchased from a reputable supplier. The failure and inability to produce such 

receipts to the inspectors at the time of visits in August, in the aftermath of those visits, or at any time in between 

subsequent visits and the hearing of the case today – and the explanations provided by the Premises Licence Holder 

– contributed to the decision taken by the LSC.

In addition, the LSC was advised by both the Principal Licensing Officer and the Premises Licence Holder that an 

application to vary the Designated Premises Supervisor had been made today. This process will play out in due 

course over the next two weeks. The LSC did not believe that this step carried sufficient weight to influence the 

decision arrived at.

The information we were given to consider was not persuasive, and relates to a decision only recently taken by the 

current Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor, whose judgement and decision-making has 

(through the review) been brought into question.

The LSC was minded to accept the case put by the Licensing Authority supported by the Metropolitan Police Service 

that they have no faith or confidence in the Premises Licence Holder to operate the licence in the present, or impact 

on its future. We heard strong evidence of repeated breaches of conditions in the past, not least the fact that 

Condition 15 had been breached on five occasions.

We did acknowledge that steps to bring the Licence into compliance with regard to identified entries in the refusals 

book and staff training had been taken, but only very recently.

However, the main focus of our attention was in the context of the principal issue that brought about the review, being 

the sale of counterfeit and non-duty paid goods – on several occasions.

As such, the evidence presented in support of this, in combination with the policy and Statutory Guidance being 

applied, has sufficiently informed the decision we have taken and which we believe to be appropriate and 

proportionate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Page 6 of 7Agenda item - ASYA WINE CENTRE, 495 HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5...

20/01/2020http://governance.enfield.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=33114

Page 30



The matters of breaching conditions were compounding factors which reinforced our decision. Though offers were 

made on hours and conditions, as set out above, we took the view that beyond being inappropriate, it was too little 

and too late.

The LSC views the fact that the Premises Licence Holder has held a licence for these premises for almost nine years 

as an aggravating factor.”

3. The Licensing Sub-Committee resolved to revoke the licence.

Supporting documents:

• Asya, item 405. PDF 2 MB (documents/s49989/Asya.pdf)

• 110215 LICENSING AUTHORITY ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 2, item 405. PDF 145 KB

(documents/s50128/110215 LICENSING AUTHORITY ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 2.pdf)

Related links
• Calendar

(mgCalendarMonthView.aspx?

GL=1&bcr=1)

• Changing the

Executive Arrangement

(mggeneric.aspx?

md=mgverificationnumber&bcr=1)

• Councillor Conduct

(mggeneric.aspx?

md=mgcouncillorconduct&bcr=1)

• Committees

(mgListCommittees.aspx?

bcr=1)

• Decisions

(mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?

bcr=1&DM=0&DS=2&K=0&DR=&V=0)

• Forthcoming

Decisions

(mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?

RP=0&K=0&DM=0&HD=0&DS=1&Next=true&H=0&META=mgforthcomingdecisions&v=0&bcr=1)

• Key Decisions

(mgPlansHome.aspx?

bcr=1)

• Mayor of Enfield

(mggeneric.aspx?

md=mgmayorofenfield&bcr=1)

• Meetings

(ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1)

• Outside bodies

(mgListOutsideBodies.aspx?

bcr=1)

• Petitions

(mgEPetitionListDisplay.aspx?

bcr=1)

• Key documents

(ecCatDisplay.aspx?

bcr=1&sch=doc)

• Search documents

(ieDocSearch.aspx?

bcr=1)

• Subscribe to updates

(mgRegisterKeywordInterest.aspx?

bcr=1)

• Submit Key Decision

(mgIssueOutline.aspx?

bcr=1)

• Ward Forums

(mggeneric.aspx?

md=mgwardforums&bcr=1)

• What's New

(mgWhatsNew.aspx?

bcr=1)

• Your Councillors

(mgMemberIndex.aspx?

bcr=1)

• Your GLA Member

(mgMemberIndexMRP.aspx?

bcr=1)

• Your MPs

(mgMemberIndexMP.aspx?

bcr=1)

• Your MEPs

(mgMemberIndexMEP.aspx?

bcr=1)

• Statistics

(mgStatsReports.aspx?

bcr=1)

• Work to do

(mgWorkToDo.aspx?

bcr=1)

• Logon (ieLogon.aspx?

bcr=1)

Council opening hours (https://new.enfield.gov.uk/council-

opening-hours/)

Contact us / feedback

(https://new.enfield.gov.uk/contact-us/)


(https://twitter.com/EnfieldCouncil)


(http://www.facebook.com/pages/Enfield-

Council/252946378095154)


(https://www.youtube.com/user/EnfieldCouncil)

Site map

(https://new.enfield.gov.uk/site-

map/)

Privacy notice

(https://new.enfield.gov.uk/privacy-

notice/)

Terms of use

(https://new.enfield.gov.uk/terms-

of-use/)

Cookie policy

(https://new.enfield.gov.uk/cookie-

policy/)

© 2020 Enfield Council

Page 7 of 7Agenda item - ASYA WINE CENTRE, 495 HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5...

20/01/2020http://governance.enfield.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=33114

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



cPl [otGharlotte Palmer

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Karen.Staff@m et. pol ice. u k
03 June 20'1915:54
Charlotte Palmer
495 HERTFORD ROAD

Hi Ya

Have I shown you this? ls this Asya?

On 2610512019 called police via CAD 42591261MAY12019 on being spoken to by police she has stated that she believed that
counterfeit products Tobacco and alcoholwere being sold from the shop at 495 HERTFORD ROAD EN3SXH believed to be Asys
Wine Centre.

The informant has purchased some alcohol which she states that label is was not straight looking like it had been stuck on by a
child with no Uk duty mark displayed on the bottle.

They had also purchased a tobacco pouch the contents of which had been covered in mould again with no UK duty mark displayed
on the packaging.

The informant has continued to say that the shop owners have two vans parked outside the location where she believed that stock
was kept as they are often seen coming from the vehicles.

The CRIS also says that the time stamp on the CCTV was incorrect.

Shall we vísit?
Shallwe get HMRC to visit?
Op Wagtail?

TH AREA BCU
PG Karen Staff 2237NA
Licensing Officer
North Area BCU Partnership & Prevention
Metropolitan Police Service
North Area BCU ¡entieø a Haringey)

L ozogg¿s3329

lorcarcqøzaz
lEdmonton Police Station, 462 Forestreet, N9 oPW

târ*ttlptlç"¡ I Karen. Staff@met. pot ice. uk

Jl -T 
i c*{wtd -î } r+arLvrøeA

Unless otherwise stated this email is GSC Coae - Official

& þ{ARINGËY PTLIÊE

Consider our environment - please do not print this emoil unless obsolutely necessary.

NOTICE - This email and any attachments may be confidential, subject to copyright and/or legal privilege and are
intended solely for the use of the intended recipient. lf you have received this email in error, please notify the sender
and delete it from your system. To avoid incurring legal liabilities, you must not distribute or copy the information in
this email without the permission of the sender. MPS communication systems are monitored to the extent permitted
by law. Consequently, any email and/or attachments may be read by monitoring staff. Only specified personnel are
authorised to conclude any binding agreement on behalf of the MPS by email. The MPS accepts no responsibility for
unauthorised agreements reached with other employees or agents. The security of this email and any attachments
cannot be guaranteed. Email messages are routinely scanned but malicious software infection and corruption of

1

Appendix 2Page 33



content can still eccur dur¡ng transmission over the lnternet. Any views or opinions expressed in this communication
are solely'those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of the Metropolitan Police Service (MPS).

Find us at:

Facebook: httos: / /m.facebook.com/ inetpoliceuk

Tiñr¡tter: @meþoliceuk

c

2

Page 34



::i:'

I

filfiil iltl lilfiffï/l

J a¿

*,,pf,1, 
.

if¡*$

rÞ ¡"

zcl /¿:>

Page 35



a

a

I

---.#+.,_,..qæ.

*,tI *r!'.-)

Page 36



æx la+

It (,!) 
lg

7,! t)
tL/\

lü#

l{ajleprel

#ilüffi

sprtty( prted d,tt,r

,/ütilüil

Page 37



r)Ð 1l:i6

wsRoç

.4dñ\n?'

c-P x loc

'\|

Page 38



f c4 x lcrø

T

, i¡r THË qlÇ

I
+'

il

t

. :l'

I

i

i .:

ii.

Page 39



cPx lo-l

Mr Ali Tulu
Flat 3 Burren Gourt
Baxter Road'
Edmonton
NI8 2GE

Please reply to

E-mail:

Phone:
Textphone :

.' Fax:
My Ref :

Your Ref:
Date:

ENFIELD
Council

Ellie Green
Licensing Unit
PO Box 57, Civic
Centre
Silver Street, Enfield,
Middx EN1 3XH
licensing@enfield. gov.uk

020 8379 3578
020 8379 4419
020 8379 2190
LN/201500460
NOÏ PROVIDED
26th August 2015

Dear Mr Ali Tulu

Licensinq Act 2003
Premises : Asya Wine Centre,495 Hertford Road, ENFIELD, EN3 sXH

This letter concerns the application for a New Application Premises Licence under
the Licensing Act 2003.

Please find the licence enclosed. Please check the details on the licence carefully,
the Licensing Authority is prepared to correct any of our clerical errors within 28
days of the licence being issued.

Note - Transfers
On the grant of a transfer application, any notification or permit (under the Gambling
Act 2005) in respect of gaming machines at the premises becomes null and void. A
new notification or permit will need to be sought by the new holder of the premises
licence ('under the Licensing Act 2003) before gaming machines may be lawfully
provided at the premises.

Please be advised that the licence does not override any restrictions on trading
hours etc. that may apply to the premises in respect of planning permission'and/or
Sunday trading & etc.

The terms, conditions and restrictions of the licence must be complied with
whenever the premise is used for licensable activities. Failure to comply with the
licence is a criminal offence with, on conviction, a maximum fine of €20,000 and/or
up to 6 months imprisonment.

lan Davis
Þirector - Env¡ronment
Enfield Council
Cívic Centre, S¡lver Street
Enfield ENl 3XY

Phone: O2O 4379 lOOO
Website: www.enfi eld.gov.uk

,,.? ) f Vo, need ih¡s document ¡n another language or format chll Customer Serv¡ces on O2Q 6j379 I oOO, or email en6eld.counc¡l€Þenñeld.9ov.uk

Page 40



The Licensing Enforcement Team advise as follows

In order to support premises in meeting the conditions of their licence, the Licensing
Authority has produced material such as training guidance, leave quietly signs,
refusals book, which can be found on the Enfield website by following this link:
http://www.enfield.gov.uk/downloads/download/23l6lcompliance documents
Please print the material relevant to the conditions and use in accordance wíth your
licence.

Please be advised that a premises licence lapses íf the holder of the licence : dies;
becomes a person who lacks capacity (within the meaning of the Mental Capacity
Act 2005) to hold the licence; becomes insolvent; is dissolved; or if it is a club,
ceases to be a recognised club. An individual becomes insolvent on : the approval
of a voluntary arrangement proposed by him; being adjudged bankrupt or having his
estate sequestrated; or entering into a deed of arrangement made for the benefit of
his creditors or a trust deed for his creditors. A company becomes insolvent on : the
approval of a voluntary arrangement proposed by its directors; the appointment of
an administrator in respect of the company; the appointment of an administrative
receiver in respect of the company; or going into liquidation.

The licence, or a certified copy of it, must be kept on the premises at all times and
must be produced on request to any authorised officer. The summary of the licence
must be prominently displayed within the premises.

Should you wish to change the operation of the premises in the future by adding
new licensable activities or by changing the hours or removing conditions then you
will need to apply for a variatioñ of the licence. Please contact us for further advice.

You must notify the licensing authority of any change in the name and/or address of
either the premises licence holder or the designated premises supervisor.

The London re Brigade advise as follows

The issue of capacity should be addressed in the fire risk assessment for the
premises use. This does not mean that every premises must have a capacity figure.
There should be evidence however that the responsible person has considered the
number of persons who can be safely evacuated through the available exits.

A safe capacity figure will be expected in the following circumstances:
(1) in premises that could potentially become overcrowded; for example bars, pubs,
clubs, and other places of publTc assembly ;

(2) where an engineered solution or BS 9999 has been used to increase capacity;
(3) where capacity is risk-critical; for example where the premises use has a higher
occupancy factor than that which the building was designed for.

Where applicable, capacity should normally be inclusive of staff and performers.
Management should be able.to demonstrate a realistic method of controlling
ca

The licence is subject to an annual fee, payable on each anniversary of the licence
first being granted.

Page 41



Please be advised that if you are playing music in your business - to staff or
customers - it is a legal requirement to obtain permission from the copyright
holders. Two organisations exist to help make sure you are correctly licensed to
play the music you want. PPL collects royalties on behalf of performers and record
companies. PRS for Music collects royalties on behalf of songwriters, composers
and music publishers. ln most ínstances, a licence from both organisations is
needed to ensure all copyright holders are correctly paid for the use of their music.
lf you play music in your business, please contact PPL and PRS for Music to obtain
the right licences for you. Please visit ppluk.com and prsformusic.com for more
information on music licensing or call PPL on 020 75341095 and PRS for Music on
0800 068 4828,

All employers have a responsibility to prevent illegal migrant working in the UK.
Failure to comply could lead to a penalty of up to f 10,000 per illegal worker. Home
Office guidance is available at
www. u kba. homeoffice. qov. u ldemplovers/preventilleqalworki nq/

lf you require any further information, please do not hesitate to contact me

Yours sincerely

Ellie Green
Principal Licensing Officer

¿1

t.

{
I
I
L

Page 42



EttF[EL,#S
Licensinq Act 2003

PART A - PREMISES LICENCE

Granted by the London Borough of Enfield as Licensing Authority

Premises Licence Number : LN/201500460

Part I - Premises Details

Postal address of mises :

Premises name Asya Wine Gentre

Not provided

495 Hertford Road ENFIELD EN3 5XH

Telephone number:

Address :

Where the licence is time-limited, the
dates:

Not time limited

The opening hours of the premises, the licensable activities authorised by the
licence and the times the licence authorises the carrying out of those
activities :

(r) Open to the Public - Whole premises
Sunday: 00:00-00:00
Monday: 00:00-00:00
Tuesday: 00:00-00:00

Wednesday: 00:00 - 00:00
Thursday: 00:00-00:00

Friday: 00:00-00:00
Saturday: 00:00 - 00:00

(21 Supply of Alcohol - Off supplies
Sunday: 10:00-00:00
Monday: 10:00-00:00
Tuesday: 10:00-00:00

Wednesday : 10:00 .'00:00
Thursday: 10:00-00:00

Friday: 10:00-00:00
Saturday: 10:00-00:00

Page 43



Mr Ali Riza Tulu

Not provided

alituluali@gmail.com

3 Baxter Road LONDON NI8 2GEFIat 3 Burren Co

Parl2

Name and (reg
Name :

Telephone number:

e-mail :

Address :

Registered number of holder (where
applicable) :

applicable):
Name :

Telephone number:

Address :

address of holder of mises licence :

Name and (registered) address of second holder of premises licence (where

Name and address of designated premises supervisor (where the licence

Not applicable

of alcohol

LN/20r500101

London Bo of Enfield

Date : ?6th August 2015

authorises the supp
Name :

Telephone number:

e-mail

Address :

Personal licence number and issuing authority of persgnal licence held by
designated premises supervisor (where the licence authorises the supply of
alcohol):
Personal Licence Number :

lssuing Authority:

Premises Licence LN/201500460 was first granted on 26 August 2015

Signed:

I ì .r' ./')'. /l¡ /
,' /'

for and on behalf of the
London Borough of Enfield
Licensing Unit, Givic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield ENI 3XH
Telephone : 020 8379 3578

Mr Ali Riza Tulu

Not provided

alituluali@gmail.com

Flat NI8 2GEBu¡:ren Cou 3 Baxter Road LONDON

ENF[F,*t*

Page 44



Annex I - Mandatory Conditions

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence : (a) At a
time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence; or (b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor
does not hold a personal Iicence or his personal licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

Annex 2 - Gonditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

3. There shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children.

4. All staff shall receive induction and refresher training (at least every
three months) relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions of
the premises licence.

5. All training relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions
of the premises licence shall be documented and records kept at the
premises. These records shall be made available to the Police and/or Local
Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one year.

6. A'Think 25' proof of age scheme shall be operated and relevant
material shall be displayed at the premises.

7. A written record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and
completed when nêcessary. This record shall be made available to Police
and/or the Local Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one year
from the date of the last entry.

8. Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all public
exits from the premises requesting customers respect the needs of local
residents and leave the premises and area quietly. These notices shall be
positioned at eye level and in a location where those teaving the premises can
read them.

9. Alcohol and cigarette stock shall only be purchased from registered
wholesalers.

10. Only the Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor
shall purchase alcóhol and cigarette stock.

11. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods
bought are kept together in a file or folder as evidence that they have been
brought into the UK through legal channels. Receipts shall show the
following details: (l) Seller's name and address; (2) Seller's company details,
if applicable; (3) Seller's VAT details, if applicable. Gopies of these
documents shall be retained for no less than 12 months and shall be made
available to police or authorised officers of the council on request within five
working days of the request. The most recent three months'worth of receipts

Page 45



shall be kept on the premises and made available to the police or authorised
officers of the council on request.

12. Af l tobacco products which are not on the tobacco display shall be
stored in a container clearly marked 'tobacco stock'. This contalner shall be
kept within the store room or behind the sales counter.

13. Tobacco products shall only be taken from the tobacco display behind
the sales counter in order to make a sale.

14. A personal licence holder is to be present on the premises and
supervise the sale of alcohol, throughout the permitted hours for the sale of
alcohol.

15. Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed on all alcohol
fridges and at all other alcohol display areas advising customers of the
permitted sale of alcohol times.

16. Mr Uygar Altun (formally known as Kemal Altun) shall not be involved
in any way in the operation and / or management of the business or be
permitted to work in the business in any capacity.

17. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV
system:
(1) All entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of
every person entering in any light condition.
(2) All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 3l days with date
and time stamping.
(3) Recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of
Police or authorized officer throughout the preceding 31 day period.
(a) The CCTV system should be updated and maintained according to police
recommendations.
(5) A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of
the GGTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is
open to the public. This staff member must be able to show a Police or
authorized council officer recent data or footage with the absolute minimum
of delay when requested.

18. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on
request to an authorised officer of the Council or the Police, which will record
the following:
(1) All crimes reported to the venue
(2) All ejections of patrons
(3) Any complaints received
(a) Any incidents of disorder
(5) All seizures of drugs or offensive weapons
(6) Any faults in the CCTV system
(7) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service

19. The venue will operate a can marking scheme agreed in writing by the
Police and Licensing Authority. All cans of alcoholic beverages will be
marked with either indelible ink marker pens, UV marker pens or other can
marking scheme i.e. stickers.

Page 46



20. No super-strength beer, lagers or ciders of 6.5% ABV (alcohol by
volume).or above shall be sold at the premises.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority

Not applicable

Page 47



Annex 4 - Plans

à
o
r5
C
f
o
cå

r¡Lt
i6Mr*d-?dc@
thùIs.æe

s¡@€|&¡d
ieH..æ,.tæ
øÞOal*@d
dù¡Ldtk.tu

â&b4tuùk ¡¡L
lffid!&1dhl#

4l@9Ð¡@h
6

!ñ¡{i ñ þørûah
rF¡ñbwdffiæ

t Jnfil,, J*7

Ð
a
!9

t
>
Jur

t utc

U
u

I

I

t: *

SHRVgS

sHËtv$

Shop creo
6t rqlm

ú
u
T

4a

Õ
U

KtY

tSg_sd Are *rl-

a snì@t¿ Álørvr
shttvEs

t ñru fthlç'afuø- ha}ft iD ¡ns¡rm

t lìle Extrrgwtl^6- R¡?n

Cornera CCTV

r^¿Wt{i;th"T

Grlcüre
Alchfteclue

tu¡@diL,n4.,h
inh,hY )r.¡s,ð.à

¡lt¡ xarfior{l lôod
ITE ¡IH

üxt¡Ï]tle otolr¡tD ftoot
Qdínlflonr

0¡2345MItA¡ll{ll¡G APruCAnotil
l{ol ll conítcrbnhrúrt

Page 48



Licensinq Act 2003

PART B - PREMISES LICENCE SUMMARY

Granted by the London Borough of Enfield as Licensing Authority

Premises Licence Number : LN/201500460

Part I - Premises Details

Postal address of premises :

ENF[F.;.#'h

Premises name :

Telephone number':

Address:

Where the licence is time-limited, the
dates :

Asya Wine Centre

Not provided

495 Hertford Road ENFIELD EN3 sXH

Not time limited

The opening hours of the premises, the licensable activities authorised by the
licence and the times the licence authorises the carrying out of those
activities :

(1) Open to the Public - Whole premises
Sunday: 00:00-00:00
Monday: 00:00-00:00
Tuesday: 00:00-00:00

Wednesday: 00:00 - 00:00
Thursday: 00:00 - 00:00

Friday: 00:00-00:00
Saturday: 00:00-00:00

(21 Supply of Alcohol - Off supplies
Sunday= 10:00-00:00
Monday: 10:00-00:00
Tuesday: 10:00-00:00

Wednesday: 10:00-00:00
Thursday: 10:00-00:00

Friday: 10:00-00:00
Saturday: 10:00-00:00

Page 49



Part 2

Name and (registere
Name :

Address :

Registered number of holder (where
applicable):

Name and (registered) address of second holder of premises licence (where
applicable):

Name :

Address :

Name of designated premises
supervisor (where the licence
ãuthorises the supply of alcohol) :

State whether access to the premises
by children is restricted/prohibited :

address of holder of mises licence :

Not applicable

Mr Ali Riza Tulu

Not Restricted

Premises Licence LN/201500460 was first granted on 26 August 2015.

Date : 26th August 2015

London Borough of Enfield
Licensing Unit, Civic Gentre, Silver Street, Enfield ENI 3XH
Telephone : 020 8379 3578

E¡Itålt""r,4

Mr Ali Riza Tulu

Flat Bu 3 Baxter Road LONDON NI8 2GE

Page 50



I

I

t

li

I
t
l

cr x (o-l

93 & TA
sERrrrcES

U

J ,
I

C,

Page 51



C?x loa
&

Page 52



C(x/o7
,LI'.,

ABRA WHOLESALE LTD iihsiffi ¿'

F--"ffi 
t*q'e'P'

ffi
i*
i,-11

rrtu ;E

.e'y l).:','

.5e..'i,,

^JC*$#^,o""'o
:5 DAC,IES LAÈ¡F

Eii6"8W

CASH & CARFY
fÞllver Ïo
Þ(ìÍl f Flt ¡,'1Alìl I 1iì

:5 FARII ¡ r. ¡ Â?'lf

rN6 1BW

SALES INVOICF-

Í ,- ,!/''.' I i't''

: ,,ft..,:.t: l:t)

r.ir,¡,t21',1 ti,,.

r).|tlt \.

,,,.:¡:"¡rlt

t:)'

c, \r:

-- i.:

ÊrI
MISSAGE

N€W SECUFi]\' E¡11 ÇATE

F¡{fEFr CO}E :063

'NTO 
PIN ÞAI)

COCA ZFRo Pv tr & ? [3'00

ä,n *t*as roN'c *ATER' 
'LIMLlNË

r(A Ptt 81.79 FRUTT PUt\tCH

á*-,* mu't iw,sl PM f t.ss zc2'89

"TROLLEY COIJÑT: a 25'96

's

¡3Ð:10

6',7519
a7t0Æ..

cææ

1.75LTF 6

1LTR 6

zLTR 6

zLTR 6

500M1 12

284M1 24

20cL 24

500M1 24

50cL 6

70cL 6

440M1 6

275M1 6

6.r9
8.s9

6.79

5.93

2A.Qt)

70 a0

20.0ü

20 00

'1

1

5|2IO'}O EFES DÊÀFT

æo, t¡ DfiAgoñl STOU'r'NcB

9O026C MAGN'-lle! TONIC wlNE

;;;;; srÊLLA cANs PM ¿ roF c5 7e

9OOS9S SMTRNC'FF REÐ

íå*tr-l*Y AND NËPËF* ovEH PRooF

áærrl Fosr€RS ÇAN 1PK Ptú c4'50

,tr'* st/tlBNc;F tCE ?v |-a 99 í¿x6)

"-ïALLEY COUNT: 13 400'A7

.'TROLì-EY @UNT' O O,OO

4584? E$'EROE ENEBGY 49P

"IROL;EYç99¡'f ia99

16.49 P 20-00 i

23.19 P 2000 1

47.99 P 20.00 1

17 S9 P 20.00 6

52.99 20 00 1

114,99 P 20.00 '1

16.49 P 20.00 1

19.99 20.00 1

1l.a-l

li I

'ar g:

i " ¡.!ç

'o ùi

:a-

250M1 24 4.99 P 20.00 1

:ì :'.r'1"

i'-. !'1iì¡l'.,'i''
' , i",.\, i!!(',1,1ú

I

g).,lnt' 18, You çnre sorvod bY ËDMONTON Tltt' 2

CA5H Y Tltt No 03

20.No/c â31 .02

vAl
TERgI

6â30

ft€PMFçßTV OT

l*usE

ABNA WHOLESALE tTD UNIIT PAYMË'N] RETI'IVID II'¡ T I}i.ì'
'äiÄ¡¡ié ióu Fon YouH cusrt-lM

ûoorls'Tol¿i

VAT lolaì
(iro¡s Ïol¿l

¡.it'lj
itr' .l!,

¡1 l'-'

.....rr...¡1'.' r'..)

I Û¿,1 f;f1l.t

i.

D

THESE GOOÛS BEMilf{

Appendix 3Page 53



uPx ltç

ABRA WHOLESALE LTD
I \\l)Itrjì(
lnmll:!Ãra

l,'.ï" ,,-; 1,,..!. l. ¿
m-æE¡\ú

:Êþq lt*P*,

oLtltERS tr^Rr LfD
74 OÁq¡LÊS LAN€

O€llvor fo
PO-1fns N^Rl :. I D

cAsH & cARRv " sALÉs lNvolc.

EN6 lBW 21t )¿
eD242-.j

a7

;\6 18t1

90159nC ClÊOC MJNTATUFES

9¡Oô4OC WRAY AND NÊPhEW MIN|ÀTURES

90058ÛC JACK DANIELS I¡INIATURÊS

9OO558C GLENS VODKA

900556C AELLSWHTSKY

9OO578C JACK DANITLS WHISKEY

556580 JÂCKDANIELSPMft2.99 /- -

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

25.99

21.99
14.49

28-99

11.75

34.S9

52.99

3.49

2A9
2.39

7.49

3.69

8.95

12.99

25.5

16.9

272

19 A

21.8
18 ¿

NE!ï SÊCURIIY €XII GAI€
E\T€R COOE 1063

¡ÑIO PIN PAD

"TROLL€Y COUñ(:7 116.23

SOUÍHEPN COMFORI
PTMMS PM f11.99
PIMMS

ÕAMPANI

OISARONNO AMAR€fTO

PRINCE CONSORT WHISKÊY

JAM€SON WHISKEY

SIERRA IEOUIL.A SILVER PM Ê16,99

sacuRrlY

S'ERIING ROLL YOUR

5CL

5CL

35CL

10cL

20cL
35CL

70cL
70cl

70cL
70cL
70cL

70cL

70cL

50cL
35CL

35CL

35CL

35CL

20cL
20cL

¡¿ 49

28.99

14.79

34.99

s2.99

15.29

LS5
9.49

11.69

1 4.49

9.89

15.69

I 1.69

8.09

12.69

6.7S

6.89

3.59

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

20,00

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

12

12

10

6

6

6

6

900905

91 10{0

90069r
900756

900671

565001

900586

7874 t-1

910056

900587

9ö0509

1401 50

9006 1 4

9 r 0020

JW REO LABEL

.,JAM€SON IRISH W.IISKEY

HÉNNESSY COGNAC

JIM BE.ÄM WHIfE PMT9.99

¡,¡ARTELL COGNAC

N€W 
'.i.'SÍEBDAM 

VODKA

"TROLLEY COUNT:

30.58 24.74 25.8

5.95 11.s9 r0.4

9..19 14.99 24.0

23.38 15.75 10.9

28.38 23.69 26.5

19.78 14.49 t8.0

31.38 23.49 19.4

233e 1699 li"
27.87 12.9e 14 1

16 18 1199 t9tr
38.07 20.39 25 3

20.3? 9.99 18 4

20.67 9.99 172

7 18 5.29 r8.5

1S
1S

2S
2S
3S

3S
3s
3S

30G

30G

30G

20s
20s
20's
20s

695æ1
4'a4740

65021 2

08f 5t 6

695092

55{¿0
695023

AMAÊRLEÀF POUCIi

GOLO LEAF POUCHES

PALL MALL (S OOIJBLË CAPSULE

8ÉNSO'{ E HEOGES SILVEß
STERLING' KS DUAL CAPSULE

MABLAOflO KS GOLD

5

5

5

10

l0
10

10

41.25

52.1 0

4r.s9
70.39

8.1.65

?5.65

85 99

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.o0

{1.25 1 1.00 1Û 0

51.1ù r4,ù0 10.¡

{1.9!ì 11.\)0 8.:ì

70.39 8.90 5.Ù

8rôå rt)8¡ 6:l
ì51.30 I 70 d..i

85.99 11 05 6.6

s .. Sprr

ï{EgE ôOODS N€T'.À¡I{ THE PROPEÂTY OF ASRA WHOLESALE
ÁSNAWHOI€SALÊ IHANKS YOU FOR

LTD UNfIL
YOriR CUSfôM

NÊCEIVÊD IN FIJLL

Page 54



REF: WKI 2t.q.ó{Ol(5
cPx/ n
LICN 1

LICENSING ENFORCEMENT INSPECTION REPORT

Premises Name
Premises Address

Time of Visit: Start: Finish

+q5 r&-/tfc Õ{ A.JS sxtr/

During an inspection of your premises on .S. .-h-J).*4
J

.20..1.1...".., the foilowing was checked:

Part B of Premises Licence displayed?
Address & tel no. of PLH & DPS on licence correct?
Conditions of licence checked?

Yes
Yes
Yes

-7 â¡ì l-
(lf incorrect, insert new details below)

No

No

Evidence/Advice

{ a)¡)

L/.ç

n z
C {t

ñrs

f.a &fç

nC+ bQ't

I

CTÊ t

\i-Ål{
ü3t ru l,a

Any other s need

(,¡'Cilj,{,
(*,,..¿

Ç...,.,(.

hcss :M"mä. S çttç;zçr
LllÂì/

rlil*l.A,t luen
C

O '{,Jr?.û.'t

ng:

{

* no c/]g
:. rìd 1, 1.

You are required to have the above matters attended to wlthin ..1..*,Atytof this notice. Faiture to-rectify the above
breaches may constitute a criminal offence and result in legal proceedings being brought against you.

not in ranGe

(,+ å5
c6
CT
( u i4 r-lc,r {<-.J

L4'ì {

,(1CI c.a^c-o

c.l6

LICENSING ENFORCEMENT RECIPIENTPF M
Signature:Signature of Officer on visit:

Print lùãmê:

Clrü;' [b-tt q Pa{rvtsr

(,5
*. å6,1\.qy1 9",(. ., . @enfíeld.sov. uk

fì
Email/Tel:

c.ha.i,
0208

Mt Tfl()1'(ìt ttaN
f'C¡ L.ç É

E

Print Name

Email/Tel:

tÚQ 4n,{tsü'i

8r
S

ó
forms

n'g
{Q

\.t
r

ø tcr'l.

ç
_) sr

r".^ -.. t l" f ^ I

þ¡c
"t/^ v1q*:" tCqûtÌm lq. rtlt Lñkl NJß.

'f'

t-

\lçt

o:

Page 55



cPx l¡Z

I

Page 56



Cfxls
Page 57



CP x ltr

l

Page 58



c?xlø
Licensing Act 2003. Section 24

Premises Licence Summary

Premises Licence No.

Premises details

LrQ/365

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Potters Mart
75 Darkes Lane

Post town Potters Bar Post code ENO IBW
Telephone number 01707 643060

Date of Commencement of licence 24 November 2005

Where the licence is time limited the dates

Start date : N/A
Expiry date :

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

M: Su of Alcohol

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on

OFF

or off supplies

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where
licence

holder of premises

Name:
Address

Dervis Altun
  

Telephone:

Email:

The times the licence authorises the carrvinq out of licensable activities
M: Supply of Alcohol
M Supply of Alcohol

Monday to Saturday
Sunday

06:00
06:30

23:00
19:00

The opening hours of the premises

Monday:
Tuesday:
Wednesday
Thursday:
Friday:
Saturday:

06:00 to 23:00
06:00 to 23:00
06:00 to 23:00
06:00 to 23:00
06:00 to 23:00
06:00 to 23:00
06:30 to 19:00Su

Page 59



Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence
authorises the supply of alcohol

Name: Dervis Altun

Licence No: 
lssuing Authority: Enfield London Borough Council

Registered nu
Not applicabl

mber of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)
e

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited

Annex I - Mandatory Gonditions

All supplies of alccihol

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence-
(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who
holds a personal licence.

Age verification policy

1. The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification
policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.
2. The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply
of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.
3. The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 1B years of
age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either-

(a) a holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.

Permitted price

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liqupr Duties Act 1979
(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula

P=D+(DxV)
where

(i) P is the permitted price,

Page 60



(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the
date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises
licence
(i) the holder of the premises licence.
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which
enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and
(e) "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance.with the Value Added Tax Act
1994.
3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph2 would (apart from this paragraph)
not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the
price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.
a. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on
a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the secohd day") as
a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which
take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

The following conditions apply where the |icence or certificate authorises "on" or "on and off"
sales

lrresponsible drinks promotions

1. The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or
participate in any irresponsible promotíons in relation to the premises.

2. ln this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or
substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol
for consumption on the premises:

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage,
individuals to:

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the
premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or
supply alcohol), or

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the
public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of
undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the
purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner-which carries a
significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of,
the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social
behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other
person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

3. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available.

Page 61



Alcoholic drink measures

1. The responsible person must ensure that;
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises
(other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advânce ready for sale or supply
in a securely closed contaiher) it is available to customers in the following measures:
(i) beer or cider: % pint;

(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(iii) stillwine in a glass: 125 ml,

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to
customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold,
the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule

All íncidents must be recorded in an incident book, which must be kept on the premises and made
available to the Police and Licensing Authority on request.

A CCTV system must be installed, maintained, and correctly operated and the tapes must be kept for
3l days.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after hearing by the licensing authority.

1. Notices regarding under age drinking to be displayed on the premises;

2. Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) to be installed both inside and outside the premises;
and

3. The Manager of the premises to obtain a personal licence by 31 July 2006 to enable a
personal licence holder to be on the premises at all times.

Page 62



cP X ltt-
L¡CN 1

REF: Wl(
l\a$ lø f I 5i LtcENStNc ENFoRcEMENT tNSpEcnoN REpoRr

Premises Name M'ArK
Premíses Address

Start:

During an inspection of your premises on ..... ...1.ã.=-K=. 20.\.3....., the foilowing was checked

t+ns
Time of Visit:

Part B of Premises Licence displayed?
Address & tel no. of PLH & DPS on licence correct?
Conditions of licence checked?

Yes
Yes
Yes

Finish:

No
No
No

{
(lf incorrqct, insert new details below)

No, of condition
tn tance

EvidencelAdvice

Õ-\

(JJ \ 1

c

*D CAS

"c¡.
\\s

Any other matter(s) that need addressing

þ"\
\âUtr*t'b arrc,

You are required to have the above matters attended to with tn .$.a^ytof this
breaches may constitute a criminal offence and resutt in legal proceedings being brought against you

above

LICENSING ENFORCEMENT
ature of Officer on visit

ç

RECIPIENT OF NOTICE
Sign Signature:

Print Name:
c'a,na-toTr€" ?*w<er Print Name & Position:

Attt *^"út-

rxlQ-¿ . .... nfield .uk

Email/Tel:

forms can be downloaded At

ctR fàlged o's-},^a- rlo-¡,. ba-\ ô^t$s
\>\^Õ ^ vr8r cr-\ln^\eå -þ \o€

Mf tfl{tr¡<)l tfaN
POLIC E

)ur
\¡\¡br*ho tooothaf ftr e artff Lûndon

crys6c^á.Jed u5t{-^ EìtF/1!:,*P,,Tl$

Page 63



.{

ttl

r

u xr-s

Page 64



c.Px (tY

t'.i

Þ.."

1ETÌ

6.+t

¡rl , '

, r',rt;t"t:s

c'mo\r\n9

, lse. tat
, n (,,\Õ'
'Y

'

I

Page 65



o
:
X
\
1l

P
age 66



ül'X þLr]

¡,'

ìn

'-i.;g
h,,.*.

¿ t ¿'.,-

*ùÞ'-'"
t..,,1.

¡ I
r.i

sqù,.
{t

/
\T

^.l\r,t.

f^

#

0
ìJ

"{4t :

28[1@[2@n 12 :39

Page 67



üllqt

*

""{ Ë

I
II

i¡'¡ \ )

¿

!

ilt0
ïiì

."4!Ç¡l1" til
J

h
[* 

',''

lh!'

ît:*
f"t

i'

zBt1uo

Page 68



CP^ILL
ffir

*

It
a.
.;

#
r

b

"Kt *r
+.'q 

';

ü

#Ë

Sr
#
?,þ
\

¡.
ã'

.t:

M

I

I

rI
r

f

.. ,â'tu
{

'!
f.r

,ç

I

t
i,

Page 69



üxle7
Page 70



u6 lL+

t

,/ 7?-
-41

Page 71



clx lxs

Page 72



clx lee

5{}fiisi{ja.

I

i

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Sarah Cary 
Executive Director Place 
Enfield Council 
Civic Centre, Silver Street 
Enfield EN1 3XY 

www.enfield.gov.uk 

If you need this document in another language or format contact the service using the details above. 

Dear Mr Ali Riza Tulu 

Maxi Wine Centre 495 Hertford Road 

Police and Criminal Evidence Act (PACE) 1984 
1. The Tobacco Products (Traceability and Security Features) Regulations

2019
2. The Tobacco and Related Products Regulations 2016
3. The Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Products Regulations 2015
4. The Tobacco Advertising and Promotion (Display) (England) Regulations

2010
5. Children and Young Persons (Protection from Tobacco) Act 1991/ Children

and Young Persons Act 1933
6. Paragraph 9 or Schedule 1, of the Consumer Protection from Unfair

Trading Regulations 2008
7. Licensing Act 2003

I write to you as the owner of Maxi Wine Centre, 495 Hertford Road, EN3 5XH. 

On 28 October 2019 your premises was visited by Trading Standards & Licensing 
Enforcement Officers, along with a dog and dog handler. The premises was searched 
for counterfeit and non–duty paid alcohol and tobacco.  Officers also checked the 
premises for cigarettes and tobacco that did not comply with standardised packaging 
legislation.  The following non-duty paid items were found and seized; 

50 Marlboro Gold (20 sticks) 
24 x P3ct cigarettes (20 sticks) 
14 x Compliment Blue cigarettes (20 sticks) 
10 x Compliment Purple cigarettes (20 sticks) 

Mr Ali Riza Tulu 
Maxi Wine Centre  
495 Hertford Road 
London 
EN3 5XH 

Please reply to: Heena Kanani 

E-mail: Heena.kanani@enfield.gov.uk

Phone: 0203 132 0687/0208 379 8526 

Textphone: 

Fax: 

My Ref: WK/AB/CPX/WG 

Your Ref: 

Date: 12 November 2019 

Appendix 5Page 79

http://www.enfield.gov.uk/
http://www.enfield.gov.uk/


12 x Marvel cigarettes (20 sticks) 
13 x NZ cigarettes (20 sticks) 
14 x L & M Cigarettes (20) 
19 x Minsk cigarettes (20 sticks) 
17 x NZ Gold cigarettes (20 sticks) 
10 x Rothmans cigarettes (20 sticks) 
14 x Lifa cigarettes (20 sticks) 
20 x Marlboro Touch (20 sticks) 
4 x Victory Gold (20 sticks) 
221 x 20 = 4420 sticks 
3 x Golden Virginia hand rolling tobacco (50g) 
2 x Amber leaf hand rolling tobacco (50g) 
250g 
 
 
Knowingly keeping or allowing to be kept any goods which have been imported without 
payment of duty or which have otherwise been unlawfully imported is an offence; the 
cigarettes packets had foreign labelling and did not display the required health 
warnings, nor had the correct traceability/security and standardised packaging.  
 
As a result, the Trading Standards is considering enforcement action. There may be 
breaches with respect to the tobacco notices/display, which the visiting officers will have 
noted separately; you should be prepared to answer any question regarding these 
matters also. 
 
I invite you to attend a formal interview to be conducted in accordance with the Codes 
of Practice under The Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 in relation to these alleged 
offences.   
 
The following date and time has been chosen to conduct the interview: 
 

10 December 2019, 13:00 
Venue:  Interview Room 5, D Block, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield 

 
On arrival please report to Reception and inform them that you have an appointment 
with Amanda Butler.  
 
As it is alleged that offences may have been committed I must caution you that, “you 
do not have to say anything, but it may harm your defence if you do not mention 
when questioned something which you later rely on in court. Anything you do say 
may be given in evidence”  
 
The purpose of the interview is to ask you questions about the suspected offences and 
invite comments from you.  The interview will be recorded.  

Page 80



 
The interview is voluntary, however, if you choose not to be interviewed it may result in 
legal proceedings being brought against you without you having had the opportunity to 
put your views on record. 
 
You may seek legal advice prior to the interview and you are entitled to have a legal 
representative present with you at the interview.  Please contact me to confirm 
attendance and to let me know whether you shall be bringing a legal representative with 
you to the interview. 
 
Please let me know if you require an interpreter to be present, and if so which language. 
 
Please bring a form of photographic identification with you to the interview along with 
your national insurance number as you will be asked for this information during the 
interview.  If you have documents which you think are relevant to the case I recommend 
you also bring these with you.   
 
If you have any queries about the contents of this letter or are unable to attend on this 
date please contact me via email:  heena.kanani@enfield.gov.uk or 0203 132 0687. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
Heena Kanani 
Principal Trading Standards Officer 
 

IMPORTANT – Enfield residents should register for an online Enfield Connected account. Enfield Connected puts many 
Council services in one place, speeds up your payments and saves you time – to set up your account today go to 

www.enfield.gov.uk/connected 

  

Page 81

mailto:heena.kanani@enfield.gov.uk
mailto:heena.kanani@enfield.gov.uk
http://www.enfield.gov.uk/connected
http://www.enfield.gov.uk/connected


 
 
 
 
Dear Ms Eilem Kilic   
 
Maxi Wine Centre 495 Hertford Road 
 

 Police and Criminal Evidence Act (PACE) 1984 
1. The Tobacco Products (Traceability and Security Features) Regulations 

2019 
2. The Tobacco and Related Products Regulations 2016 
3. The Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Products Regulations 2015 
4. The Tobacco Advertising and Promotion (Display) (England) Regulations 

2010 
5. Children and Young Persons (Protection from Tobacco) Act 1991/ Children 

and Young Persons Act 1933 
6. Paragraph 9 or Schedule 1, of the Consumer Protection from Unfair 

Trading Regulations 2008 
7. Licensing Act 2003 

 
 
On 28 October 2019 your premises was visited by Trading Standards & Licensing 
Enforcement Officers, along with a dog and dog handler. The premises was searched 
for counterfeit and non–duty paid alcohol and tobacco.  Officers also checked the 
premises for cigarettes and tobacco that did not comply with standardised packaging 
legislation.  The following non-duty paid items were found and seized; 
 
50 x Marlboro Gold (20 sticks) 
24 x P3ct cigarettes (20 sticks) 
14 x Compliment Blue cigarettes (20 sticks) 
10 x Compliment Purple cigarettes (20 sticks) 
12 x Marvel cigarettes (20 sticks) 
13 x NZ cigarettes (20 sticks) 

 
Ms Eilem Kilic 
Maxi Wine Centre   
495 Hertford Road  
London 
EN3 5XH 

 

Please reply to: Heena Kanani 

 

E-mail: Heena.kanani@enfield.gov.uk 

Phone: 0203 132 0687/0208 379 8526 

Textphone:  

Fax:  

My Ref: WK/AB/CPX/WG 

Your Ref:  

Date: 12 November 2019 

Page 82



14 x L & M Cigarettes (20) 
19 x Minsk cigarettes (20 sticks) 
17 x NZ Gold cigarettes (20 sticks) 
10 x Rothmans cigarettes (20 sticks) 
14 x Lifa cigarettes (20 sticks) 
20 x Marlboro Touch (20 sticks) 
4 x Victory Gold (20 sticks) 
221 x 20 = 4420 sticks 
3 x Golden Virginia hand rolling tobacco (50g) 
2 x Amber leaf hand rolling tobacco (50g) 
250g 
 
 
Knowingly keeping or allowing to be kept any goods which have been imported without 
payment of duty or which have otherwise been unlawfully imported is an offence; the 
cigarettes packets had foreign labelling and did not display the required health 
warnings, nor had the correct traceability/security and standardised packaging.  
 
As a result, the Trading Standards is considering enforcement action. There may be 
breaches with respect to the tobacco notices/display, which the visiting officers will have 
noted separately; you should be prepared to answer any question regarding these 
matters also. 
 
I invite you to attend a formal interview to be conducted in accordance with the Codes 
of Practice under The Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 in relation to these alleged 
offences.   
 
The following date and time has been chosen to conduct the interview: 
 

10 December 2019, 15:00 
Venue:  Interview Room 5, D Block, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield 

 
On arrival please report to Reception and inform them that you have an appointment 
with Amanda Butler.  
 
As it is alleged that offences may have been committed I must caution you that, “you 
do not have to say anything, but it may harm your defence if you do not mention 
when questioned something which you later rely on in court. Anything you do say 
may be given in evidence”  
 
The purpose of the interview is to ask you questions about the suspected offences and 
invite comments from you.  The interview will be recorded.  
 
The interview is voluntary, however, if you choose not to be interviewed it may result in 

Page 83



legal proceedings being brought against you without you having had the opportunity to 
put your views on record. 
 
You may seek legal advice prior to the interview and you are entitled to have a legal 
representative present with you at the interview.  Please contact me to confirm 
attendance and to let me know whether you shall be bringing a legal representative with 
you to the interview. 
 
Please let me know if you require an interpreter to be present, and if so which language. 
 
Please bring a form of photographic identification with you to the interview along with 
your national insurance number as you will be asked for this information during the 
interview.  If you have documents which you think are relevant to the case I recommend 
you also bring these with you.   
 
If you have any queries about the contents of this letter or are unable to attend on this 
date please contact me via email:  heena.kanani@enfield.gov.uk or 0203 132 0687. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
Heena Kanani 
Principal Trading Standards Officer 
 
 

IMPORTANT – Enfield residents should register for an online Enfield Connected account. Enfield Connected puts many 
Council services in one place, speeds up your payments and saves you time – to set up your account today go to 

www.enfield.gov.uk/connected 

  

Page 84

mailto:heena.kanani@enfield.gov.uk
mailto:heena.kanani@enfield.gov.uk
http://www.enfield.gov.uk/connected
http://www.enfield.gov.uk/connected


 
 
Dear Mr Tulu   
 

• Maxi Wine Centre 495 Hertford Road 

• Police and Criminal Evidence Act (PACE) 1984 

• Tobacco and Related Products Regulations 2016 

• Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Products Regulations 2015 

• Licensing Act 2003 
 

Further to a letter dated 12th November 2019, from Enfield Trading Standards whereby 
you were invited to attend an interview under the provisions of the Police and Criminal 
Evidence Act 1984 (PACE) on Tuesday 10th December 2019 at 1pm, you did not attend. 
 
I am writing to request that you telephone me on 0208 132 1572 or email 
Amanda.butler@enfield.gov.uk within 7 days, in order to arrange a mutual convenient 
date and time for you to attend the said PACE interview.  
 
I have enclosed the letter dated 12th November 2019 which explains the reason for the 
PACE interview and your rights. 
 
Please note, if you do not contact me within 7 days, the alleged offence(s) may be 
reported to our Legal Department without any further reference to you. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
Amanda Butler 
Senior Fair Trading Officer 
Encl. Letter dated 12th November 2019 
 
  

 
Mr Ali Riza Tulu 
Maxi Wine Centre   
495 Hertford Road  
London 
EN3 5XH 

 

Please reply to: Amanda Butler 

 

E-mail: Amanda.Butler@enfield.gov.uk  

Phone: 0203 132 1572 

Textphone:  

Fax:  

My Ref: WK/AB/CPX/WG 
Your Ref:  

Date: 11 December 2019 

Page 85

mailto:Amanda.butler@enfield.gov.uk
mailto:Amanda.butler@enfield.gov.uk
mailto:Amanda.Butler@enfield.gov.uk
mailto:Amanda.Butler@enfield.gov.uk


From: Amanda Butler  

Sent: 18 December 2019 15:48 

To:  

 Products Regulations 2015/Standardised Packaging of 

Tobacco Products Regulations 2015/Licensing Act 2003 

 

Dear Mr Ali Riza Tulu 

 

Thank you for telephoning to reschedule a PACE interview to 15th January 2019 at 

10.30am.  I have enclosed a letter outlining the reason for the PACE interview and your 

rights.  You have confirmed that you do not require an interpreter. 

 

Kind Regards 

 

Amanda Butler 

Senior Fair Trading Officer 

Environment & Operational Services 

Place Directorate  

Enfield Council  

Silver Street  

Enfield  

EN1 3XY 

 

Website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

Protect the Environment – Think Before You Print. 

"Enfield Council is committed to serving the whole Borough fairly, delivering excellent 

services and building strong communities". 
  

Page 86

http://www.enfield.gov.uk/
http://www.enfield.gov.uk/


Dear Mr Ali Riza Tulu 
 
 Police and Criminal Evidence Act (PACE) 1984 
           The Tobacco and Related Products Regulations 2016 
           The Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Products Regulations 2015  
            Licensing Act 2003 
 

I write to you as the owner of Maxi Wine Centre, 495 Hertford Road, EN3 5XH.  
 
On 28 October 2019 your premises was visited by Trading Standards & Licensing 
Enforcement Officers, along with a dog and dog handler. The premises was inspected 
for counterfeit and non–duty paid alcohol and tobacco.  Officers also checked the 
premises for cigarettes and tobacco that did not comply with standardised packaging 
legislation.   
 
The following non-duty paid items were found and seized; 
 
50 Marlboro Gold (20 sticks) 
24 x P3ct cigarettes (20 sticks) 
14 x Compliment Blue cigarettes (20 sticks) 
10 x Compliment Purple cigarettes (20 sticks) 
12 x Marvel cigarettes (20 sticks) 
13 x NZ cigarettes (20 sticks) 
14 x L & M Cigarettes (20) 
19 x Minsk cigarettes (20 sticks) 
17 x NZ Gold cigarettes (20 sticks) 
10 x Rothmans cigarettes (20 sticks) 
14 x Lifa cigarettes (20 sticks) 
20 x Marlboro Touch (20 sticks) 
4 x Victory Gold (20 sticks) 
221 x 20 = 4420 sticks 
3 x Golden Virginia hand rolling tobacco (50g) 
2 x Amber leaf hand rolling tobacco (50g) 
250g 
 
Knowingly keeping or allowing to be kept any goods which have been imported without 
payment of duty or which have otherwise been unlawfully imported is an offence; the 
cigarettes packets had foreign labelling and did not display the required health 

Mr Ali Riza Tulu 
Maxi Wine Centre 
495 Hertford Road 
London 
EN3 5XH 

Please reply to: Amanda Butler 

Trading Standards, Civic Centre, Silver 
Street, Enfield, EN1 3XY 

E-mail : amanda.butler@enfield.gov.uk 

My Ref : WK/219031507 

Your Ref :  

Date : 18 December 2019 

Page 87



warnings, nor had the correct traceability/security and standardised packaging.  
 
As a result, the Trading Standards is considering enforcement action. There may be 
breaches with respect to the tobacco notices/display, which the visiting officers will have 
noted separately; you should be prepared to answer any question regarding these 
matters also. 
 
I invite you to attend a formal interview to be conducted in accordance with the Codes 
of Practice under The Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 in relation to these alleged 
offences.   
 
The following date and time has been chosen to conduct the interview: 
 

15 January 2020, 10:30 am 
Venue:  Interview Room 5, D Block, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield 

 
On arrival please report to Reception and inform them that you have an appointment 
with Amanda Butler -Senior Fair-Trading Officer.  
 
As it is alleged that offences may have been committed I must caution you that, “you 
do not have to say anything, but it may harm your defence if you do not mention 
when questioned something which you later rely on in court. Anything you do say 
may be given in evidence”  
 
The purpose of the interview is to ask you questions about the suspected offences and 
invite comments from you.  The interview will be recorded.  
 
The interview is voluntary, however, if you choose not to be interviewed it may result in 
legal proceedings being brought against you without you having had the opportunity to 
put your views on record. 
 
 
You may seek legal advice prior to the interview and you are entitled to have a legal 
representative present with you at the interview.  Please contact me to confirm 
attendance and to let me know whether you shall be bringing a legal representative with 
you to the interview. 
 
Please let me know if you require an interpreter to be present, and if so which language. 
 
Please bring a form of photographic identification with you to the interview along with 
your national insurance number as you will be asked for this information during the 
interview.  If you have documents which you think are relevant to the case I recommend 
you also bring these with you.   
 

Page 88



If you have any queries about the contents of this letter or are unable to attend on this 
date please contact me via email:  amanda.butler@enfield.gov.uk or 0203 132 1572. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
Amanda Butler 
Senior Fair Trading Officer 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

           IMPORTANT – Enfield residents should register for an online Enfield Connected account. Enfield Connected puts 
many Council services in one place, speeds up your payments and saves you time – to set up your account today go to 

www.enfield.gov.uk/connected 

 

 
  

Page 89

mailto:amanda.butler@enfield.gov.uk
mailto:amanda.butler@enfield.gov.uk


Sent: 15 January 2020 10:51 
To: Heena Kanani <Heena.Kanani@enfield.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE APPOINTMENT TIME 
  
Dear Sir/Madam 
My name is Ali Riza Tulu i had an meeting today i do not know the time could you please get 
back to me thank you.   
  
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

From: Heena Kanani <Heena.Kanani@enfield.gov.uk> 

Sent: Wednesday, January 15, 2020 10:53:46 AM 

Cc: Amanda Butler <Amanda.Butler@enfield.gov.uk> 

Subject: RE: RE APPOINTMENT TIME [SEC=OFFICIAL]  

  

Classification: OFFICIAL 

Hello 
  
The interview was at 10:30, we have the room until  2pm (you should arrive by 1pm at the 
latest), you were sent a letter confirming the appointment. Could you please advise what time 
you can get here? 
  
  
Kind regards 
  
Heena Kanani 
Principal Trading Standards Officer 
Environment & Operational Services 
Place Directorate  
Enfield Council  
Silver Street  
Enfield  
EN1 3XY 
 ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

 

Page 90

mailto:Heena.Kanani@enfield.gov.uk
mailto:Heena.Kanani@enfield.gov.uk
mailto:Heena.Kanani@enfield.gov.uk
mailto:Heena.Kanani@enfield.gov.uk


From: ali tulu 

Sent: 15 January 2020 11:47 

To: Heena Kanani <Heena.Kanani@enfield.gov.uk> 

Subject: Re: RE APPOINTMENT TIME [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

 

Hi, 

Im so sorry i havent received the letter is it possible if i come at 1:30pm ?  
 

 

From: Heena Kanani <Heena.Kanani@enfield.gov.uk>  

Sent: 15 January 2020 11:54 

To: ali tulu  

Cc: Amanda Butler <Amanda.Butler@enfield.gov.uk> 

Subject: RE: RE APPOINTMENT TIME [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

 

Classification: OFFICIAL 

Good morning 

 

No Mr Tulu, 30 minutes is not sufficient to conduct the interview. You may write in 

with any comments you wish to make. Please be advised you do not have to say 

anything, however if you do not mentioned when questioned something which you later 

rely on in court. The court may draw inference as to why you did not mention this 

when questioned. Anything you do say may be given evidence. The question is: please 

provide an explanation as to why this occurred:  

 

 

On 28 October 2019 your premises was visited by Trading Standards & Licensing 

Enforcement Officers, along with a dog and dog handler. The premises was searched 

for counterfeit and non–duty paid alcohol and tobacco.  Officers also checked the 

premises for cigarettes and tobacco that did not comply with standardised packaging 

legislation.  The following non-duty paid items were found and seized; 

 

 

50 Marlboro Gold (20 sticks) 

24 x P3ct cigarettes (20 sticks) 

14 x Compliment Blue cigarettes (20 sticks) 

10 x Compliment Purple cigarettes (20 sticks) 

12 x Marvel cigarettes (20 sticks) 

Page 91

mailto:Heena.Kanani@enfield.gov.uk
mailto:Heena.Kanani@enfield.gov.uk


13 x NZ cigarettes (20 sticks) 

14 x L & M Cigarettes (20) 

19 x Minsk cigarettes (20 sticks) 

17 x NZ Gold cigarettes (20 sticks) 

10 x Rothmans cigarettes (20 sticks) 

14 x Lifa cigarettes (20 sticks) 

20 x Marlboro Touch (20 sticks) 

4 x Victory Gold (20 sticks) 

221 x 20 = 4420 sticks 

3 x Golden Virginia hand rolling tobacco (50g) 

2 x Amber leaf hand rolling tobacco (50g) 

250g 

 

 

Also could you please advise, if you did not get the letter how did you get my email 

address? Please also be advised it is not possible to re-schedule for tomorrow, the room 

and personnel are booked in advance. 

 

 

Kind regards 

 

Heena Kanani 

Principal Trading Standards Officer 

Environment & Operational Services 

Place Directorate  

Enfield Council  

Silver Street  

Enfield  

EN1 3XY 

 

Website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

Protect the Environment – Think Before You Print. 

 

"Enfield Council is committed to serving the whole Borough fairly, delivering excellent 

services and building strong communities". 
 

Page 92

http://www.enfield.gov.uk/
http://www.enfield.gov.uk/


F K01/37 

     

 

         
 

POLICE REPRESENTATION  
 
 
Name and address of premises:   Maxi Wine Centre 

           495 Hertford Road  
           Enfield  
           EN3 5XH 

 
Type of Application:   Review of a Premises Licence 
 
 
The Application 
 
Enfield Trading Standards Authority is seeking a review of the premises licence on the 
grounds that smuggled goods have been found on the premises i.e. non-duty paid 
cigarettes and hand rolling tobacco. 

 
Location 
 
This venue is situated within a parade of shops on a busy high street consisting 
of mainly commercial premises with residential properties above and a slip road 
running in front. 
 
The Metropolitan wish to support the application and make representation under 
the Prevention of Crime and Disorder Licensing Objective. 
  
 
History 
 
This venue has a long history of being involved in criminal activity associated 
with either counterfeit or illicit goods since 2009. 
Mr Kemal Altun, now known as Uygar Altun, used to be the Licence holder and 
was prosecuted for selling counterfeit alcohol. Non duty paid tobacco and 
alcohol were found subsequent to this, and despite a variation of the licence to 
strengthen the conditions, non duty paid goods were found again. In view of this 
Mr Altun had his premises licence revoked in 2015. 
There were suspicions and concerns that Mr Altun may still be involved in the 
running of the business so a condition was put onto the licence that he should 
have no part in the running or control of the business when the current 
Premises Licence was granted. This was agreed by the current PLH, Mr Ali 
Tulu, who stated at the time that he did not know Mr Altun.  

Page 93



F K01/37 

Due to several intelligence reports received by the Police saying that illicit 
goods were being sold at the venue, also, on occasion, mentioning Mr Altun, 
licensing visits were made during 2018 and 2019. Nothing was found on these 
occasions but Mr Altuns name was mentioned by staff when asked who the 
boss was. Obviously this concerned both myself and the Council Officer but Mr 
Tulu continued to refute the fact that Mr Altun was involved. One piece of 
information received stated that the stock was kept in two vans parked outside 
of the shop. These vans, a white and a silver one, were noted by Officers but 
the staff denied they had anything to do with the business. PNC checks on the 
vehicles showed both of them to be registered to Mr Altun even though he did 
not live anywhere near the venue. This led us to believe that he was still 
involved in the business. The Silver van was subsequently searched by Police 
but nothing of note was found. From then on the Silver van did not park outside 
the venue.  
On one visit, made by the Police and the Council Licensing officer in August 19, 
the white van was parked outside the shop. Whilst conducting our visit an open 
packet of illegal cigarettes was found on the shelf behind the counter by the till 
along with a key that, in appearance, could have belonged to the white van. 
When asked if the key opened the van the staff member denied it but also 
refused to prove it to us by testing it. She became very defensive and made a 
phone call. We assumed this to be to Mr Tulu but after about 20 minutes an 
unknown male turned up, ignored us, went behind the counter, picked up the 
cigarettes and the key and started to walk out of the shop. I attempted to speak 
with him but he walked past me. I followed and as he got in the van by using the 
key that was behind the counter, I knocked on the window for him to speak with 
me but he refused to answer and drove away very quickly. Due to this action we 
believed there would have been illicit goods in the van. Since then the van has 
not been seen outside the shop. 
On 28th Oct 2019 a visit was made to the venue by Trading Standards, Council 
Licensing, Police and sniffer dogs as part of Op Wagtail searching for illicit 
tobacco. During this visit a substantial amount of non duty paid tobacco was 
found in a specially made box behind the counter under the till. Also on sale in 
the venue was a considerable amount of drug paraphernalia including self seal 
bags and cannabis grinders.  
 
The Police do not have confidence in the Licence holder Mr Tulu for the 
following reasons:- 

- The storage and selling of illicit goods – contrary to Sec 144 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 

- The numerous breaches of the conditions on the Premises Licence as 
explained in the review application. 

- Storage and sale of drug paraphernalia – although not illegal, it 
encourages drug use, which is. 

 
Mr Tulu shows clear disregard for the law and has been complacent in running 
this venue in breach of his licence. The onus is on Mr Tulu to promote the 
licensing objectives which he has clearly failed to do.  
Police do not believe Mr Tulu to be a fit and proper person to hold a premises 
licence as he does not appear to appreciate the seriousness of his non - 

Page 94



F K01/37 

compliance of the licence conditions. The council have given him the 
opportunity to explain himself in an interview and he has failed to appear.  
 
The Police contend that there are no alternatives but to seek the revocation of 
the licence and reserve the right to submit additional information to support this 
review application if necessary. 
 
 
Officer:   Karen Staff PC2237NA    Tel:  0208 345 3379 
 
NAMailbox-.Licensing@met.police.uk 
 
Date:  21st February 2020 
  
 

Page 95

mailto:NAMailbox-.Licensing@met.police.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 4 
Proposed Conditions 

 
Annex 1 - Mandatory Conditions 
 
The Mandatory Conditions are attached and form part of the Operating Schedule of 
your licence/certificate. You must ensure that the operation of the licensed 
premises complies with the attached Mandatory Conditions as well as the 
Conditions in Annex 2 and Annex 3 (if applicable). Failure to do this can lead to 
prosecution or review of the licence. 
 
Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 
 

1. There shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or matters 
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of 
children. 
 

2. All staff shall receive induction and refresher training (at least every three 
months) relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions of the 
premises licence.   
 

3. All training relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions of the 
premises licence shall be documented and records kept at the premises. 
These records shall be made available to the Police and/or Local Authority 
upon request and shall be kept for at least one year. 
 

4. A 'Think 25' proof of age scheme shall be operated and relevant material shall 
be displayed at the premises.   
 

5. A written record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and 
completed when necessary. This record shall be made available to Police 
and/or the Local Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one 
year from the date of the last entry. 
 

6. Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all public exits from 
the premises requesting customers respect the needs of local residents and 
leave the premises and area quietly.  These notices shall be positioned at eye 
level and in a location where those leaving the premises can read them. 
 

7. Alcohol and cigarette stock shall only be purchased from registered 
wholesalers. 
 

8. Only the Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor shall 
purchase alcohol and cigarette stock. 
 

9. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods bought 
are kept together in a file or folder as evidence that they have been brought 
into the UK through legal channels.  Receipts shall show the following 
details: (1) Seller's name and address; (2) Seller's company details, if 
applicable; (3) Seller's VAT details, if applicable.  Copies of these documents 
shall be retained for no less than 12 months and shall be made available to 

Page 97



police or authorised officers of the council on request within five working 
days of the request.  The most recent three months' worth of receipts shall be 
kept on the premises and made available to the police or authorised officers 
of the council on request. 
 

10. All tobacco products which are not on the tobacco display shall be stored in a 
container clearly marked 'tobacco stock'. This container shall be kept within 
the store room or behind the sales counter. 
 

11. Tobacco products shall only be taken from the tobacco display behind the 
sales counter in order to make a sale. 
 

12. A personal licence holder is to be present on the premises and supervise the 
sale of alcohol, throughout the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol.   
 

13. Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed on all alcohol fridges 
and at all other alcohol display areas advising customers of the permitted 
sale of alcohol times. 
 

14. Mr Uygar Altun (formally known as Kemal Altun) shall not be involved in any 
way in the operation and / or management of the business or be permitted to 
work in the business in any capacity.  
 

15. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system: 
(1) All entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every 
person entering in any light condition. 
(2) All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and 
time stamping. 
(3) Recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or 
authorized officer throughout the preceding 31 day period. 
(4) The CCTV system should be updated and maintained according to police 
recommendations. 
(5) A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 
CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open to the 
public. This staff member must be able to show a Police or  authorized council 
officer recent data or footage with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 
 
16. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to 
an authorised officer of the Council or the Police, which will record the following: 
(1) All crimes reported to the venue 
(2) All ejections of patrons 
(3) Any complaints received 
(4) Any incidents of disorder 
(5) All seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(6) Any faults in the CCTV system 
(7) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 
 

17. The venue will operate a can marking scheme agreed in writing by the Police 
and Licensing Authority. All cans of alcoholic beverages will be marked with 
either indelible ink marker pens, UV marker pens or other can marking 
scheme ie. Stickers.  
 

Page 98



18. No super-strength beer, lagers or ciders of 6.5% ABV (alcohol by volume) or 
above shall be sold at the premises. 
 

 
Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority 
 
PROPOSED BY TRADING STANDARDS: 
 

19. Non-duty paid tobacco or alcohol must not be stored or sold from the 
premises or from any vehicle. 
 

20. There will be no drug related paraphernalia in the shop or being displayed for 
sale 
 

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019/20 REPORT 
NO.244 

 

 

 
Agenda - Part 

 
Item 

 

COMMITTEE : 
Licensing Sub-Committee 
11 March 2020 
 
REPORT OF : 
Principal Licensing Officer 
 
LEGISLATION : 
Licensing Act 2003 

SUBJECT : 
Review Application 
 
PREMISES : 
Sarge Off Licence – 240 Fore Street, 
Edmonton N18 2QD  
 
WARD : 
Edmonton Green 

 
 
1 LICENSING HISTORY & CURRENT POSITION: 

 
1.1 A new premises licence (LN/201200255) was issued to Mr Rajasingam 

Sundaramoorthy on 15 June 2012 without objection.  
 

1.2 The named Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) has also been Mr 
Rajasingam Sundaramoorthy, since the licence was issued. 
 

1.3 No previous review applications have been submitted. 
 
1.4 The current Premises Licence permits: 

 
        Hours the premises are open to the public: From 06:00 to 23:00 daily. 
         
        Supply of alcohol (off supplies only): From 08:00 to 23:00 daily. 
 
 
1.5  A copy of the current premises licence (LN/201200255) is attached in Annex 1. 
 
 
2        THIS APPLICATION: 
 
2.1 On 24 January 2020 an application was made by Enfield Council’s Trading 

Standards for the review of Premises Licence LN/201200255 and is produced in 
Annex 2, including the Additional Information.  
 

2.2 The review application relates to the prevention of crime and disorder licensing 
objective and is made on the grounds that smuggled goods have been found on 
the premises i.e.  non-duty paid cigarettes. 
 

2.3 The review application is to revoke the premises licence in its entirety. 
 
 

2.4 The review application was advertised in accordance with the requirements 
of the Licensing Act 2003. 

 

Page 101 Agenda Item 4



2.5 Each of the Responsible Authorities were consulted in respect of the 
application. 

 
2.6 To date, no written response to the review has been provided by Mr Rajasingam 

Sundaramoorthy. 
 

 

 
3    RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS: 
 

3.1  No representations were received in respect of this review application.  
 

 
4 PROPOSED LICENCE CONDITIONS: 
 
4.1 Trading Standards have proposed modification to conditions should the 

Licensing Sub-Committee be minded not to revoke the premises licence, and 
these are produced in Annex 3. Mr Sundaramoorthy has not indicated any 
agreement to these conditions. 
 

4.2 Trading Standards further request that if the Licensing Sub-Committee is 
minded not to revoke the licence that the licence be suspended until full 
compliance with the licence conditions has been demonstrated.  

 

 

 
5 RELEVANT LAW, GUIDANCE & POLICIES: 
 
5.1 The paragraphs below are extracted from either : 

5.1.1 the Licensing Act 2003 (‘Act’); or 

5.1.2 the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State to the Home Office of 
March 2017 (‘Guid’); or 

5.1.3 the London Borough of Enfield’s Licensing Policy Statement of January 
2015 (‘Pol’). 

 
 General Principles : 
 
5.2 The Licensing Sub-Committee must carry out its functions with a view to 

promoting the licensing objectives [Act s.4(1)]. 
 
5.3 The licensing objectives are : 

5.3.1 the prevention of crime and disorder; 

5.3.2 public safety; 

5.3.3 the prevention of public nuisance; & 

5.3.4 the protection of children from harm [Act s.4(2)]. 

 

Page 102



5.4 In carrying out its functions, the Sub-Committee must also have regard to : 

5.4.1 the Council’s licensing policy statement; & 

5.4.2 guidance issued by the Secretary of State [Act s.4(3)]. 

 
 
 
 

Review: 
 
5.5 In reviewing a licence the Licensing Sub-Committee will consider, and take into 

account, the complaints history of the premises and all other relevant information 
[Pol s.10.3].  

 
5.6 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly 

connected with licensable activities, for example the sale of contraband goods. 
The Sub-Committee does not have the power to judge the criminality or 
otherwise of any issue. The Sub-Committee’s role is to ensure the promotion of 
the crime prevention objective [Guid s.11.24].  

 
5.7 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed 

premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These include the use of 
the premises for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol [Guid 
s.11.27].  

 
5.8 Where reviews arise in respect of these criminal activities and the Sub-

Committee determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined, 
it is expected that revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should 
be seriously considered [Guid s.11.28]. 

 
Decision : 

 
5.9 Having heard all of the representations (from all parties) the Licensing Sub-

Committee must take such steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives. The steps are :  

5.9.1 to modify the conditions of the licence; 

5.9.2 to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; 

5.9.3 to remove the designated premises supervisor 

5.9.4 to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 

5.9.5 to revoke the licence [Act s.52]. 

 
5.10 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, the Sub-Committee should so far as 

possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns which the 
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed 
at these causes and should generally be directed at those causes and should 
always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate response [Guid 
s.11.20]. 

 

Page 103



Background Papers :  
None other than any identified within the 
report.  
 
Contact Officer :  
Ellie Green on 020 8379 8543 

 

 

Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 1 F LIC 1A 

Annex 2 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate 
under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 
 
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all 
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use 
additional sheets if necessary. 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  
I   Ann Bowes Senior Fair Trading Officer 

 

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below  
 

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details   
 
Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 
 

Sarge Off Licence – 240 Fore Street, Edmonton N18 2QD 

Post town 
 
Enfield  
 

Post code (if known)  
 
N18 2QD 

 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if 
known)  
 
Mr Rajasingam Sundaramoorthy  

 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known  
 
LN/201200255 

 

Part 2 - Applicant details  

I am  
 Please tick yes 

1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below) 
 

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises 
 
b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises 

 
c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises 

 
d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the 

premises 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 111



                       2                  F LIC 1A 

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)  

 

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) 
below) 

    

 

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 
 

Please tick 
Mr  Mrs  Miss  Ms  Other title       
 (for example, Rev) 
 
Surname  First names 

             

 
 Please tick yes 

I am 18 years old or over 
 

 

 

Current postal  
address if  
different from 
premises 
address 

      

 
Post town       Post Code       

 
Daytime contact telephone number       

 
E-mail address 
(optional)  

      

 

 

(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 

 
Name and address 
      

Telephone number (if any) 
      

E-mail address (optional)  
      

 

Page 112



                       3                  F LIC 1A 

 

 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 
 
 Name and address 
Ann Bowes  
Trading Standards 
London Borough of Enfield 
PO Box 57 
Civic Centre 
Silver Street 
EN1 3XH 

Telephone number: 020 8132 0684 

E-mail address: Ann.bowes@enfield.gov.uk 

 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 
 Please tick one or more boxes 

1) the prevention of crime and disorder  
2) public safety  
3) the prevention of public nuisance  
4) the protection of children from harm  

 

Please state the ground(s) for review: (please read guidance note 1) 
 
Enfield trading standards is seeking a review of the premises licence on the grounds 
that smuggled goods have been found on the premises ie.  non-duty paid cigarettes. 
 
This review is primarily based on the prevention of crime and disorder licensing 
objective. The review application is to revoke the premises licence in its 
entirety. 
 
Background: 
 
On 29/10/19 - Officers from Enfield Council’s Trading Standards & Licensing 
Enforcement Team, the Police Licensing Officer, and a dog handler and dogs from 
Wagtail International carried out a day of unannounced visits to shops in the borough 
in a crackdown against the sale of illicit tobacco. 
 
One of the premises visited was Sarge Off Licence  240 Fore Street, Edmonton N18 
2QD 
 
At the time of the visit there was one member of staff on the premises, a male.  Mr 
Jesi PATHI 
 
The premises was searched and a total of 260 packets of non-duty paid items were 
found and seized.  The packets had foreign labelling and were non duty paid.   
 
18 packets 50g each of hand rolling tobacco all of which were non – duty paid.  The 
packets had foreign labelling and were non – duty paid.  
 

Officers found the following cigarettes behind the shop counter:-  

22 x B & H Cigarettes 20 cigarettes   440 sticks 
2 x Marvel Cigarettes 20 cigarettes   40 sticks  
10 x Victory Blue  20 cigarettes   200 sticks  
78 x Victory Gold 20 cigarettes    1560 sticks  

Page 113



                       4                  F LIC 1A 

7 x Marlboro Touch 20 cigarettes   140 sticks  
9 x Jin Ling 20 cigarettes    180 sticks 
7 x Marlboro Blue 20 cigarettes     140 sticks 
80 x Marlboro Gold 20 cigarettes   1600 sticks 
14 x L & M 20 cigarettes    280 sticks  
3 x Marvel 20 cigarettes     60 sticks  
22 x Marlboro Gold 20 cigarettes   440 sticks 
6 x Marlboro Touch 20 cigarettes   120 sticks 
 
260 Packets in total  
 
18 x Amber leaf 50g hand rolling tobacco  900g 
 
31 single cigarettes     
 
 
The documents issued on 29/10/19 are produced at Appendix 1 & 2, and the 
photos of the seized are produce at Appendix 3. 
 
Other 
 
 
 
Previous History 
 
On the 3rd December 2019 covert test purchasing of illicit tobacco was 
conducted by Enfield Trading Standards department.  An attempt to purchase 
such tobacco was made at Sarge Off Licence 240 Fore Street Edmonton.  N18 
2QD.  The attempt to purchase such goods failed.  
 
No other previous history on the trader. No variations on the licence have been 
made.  
 
Additional Information: 
 
Home Office revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
(11.27), states that there are certain criminal activities that may arise in connection 
with licensed premises which should be treated particularly seriously. The list 
includes the use of licensed premises for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco 
and alcohol (i.e. non duty paid products). 
 
The guidance (11.28) goes on to say that it is envisaged that responsible authorities 
will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where 
reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention 
objective is being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is 
expected that revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should be 
seriously considered.  
 
 
Conclusion: 
 
Although this is the first  time that smuggled goods have been found at this premises 
and trading standards is of the opinion that given the large volume of cigarettes 
seized it is appropriate to recommend that this licence be revoked.   
 

Page 114



                       5                  F LIC 1A 

The cigarettes and rolling tobacco  were found behind the counter. Despite the 
excessive quantity being seized and the numerous different brands seized the 
premises licence holder / designated premises supervisor claimed they were all for 
personal use.  He informed us that his customers had given all the cigarettes to him 
as gifts and he cannot keep these at his home. If this is the case they should have 
been kept in a place that is not commercial licensed premises. Trading Standards 
has a lack of confidence in the explanation offered by those involved in running the 
business.   
 
If the Licensing Committee is minded not to revoke the licence then trading standards 
ask that the licence be suspended until the following actions have been completed: 
 
1. Full compliance with the licence conditions has been demonstrated.  
 
Trading Standards  would also recommend the following conditions be added to the 
licence: 
 

 Only the Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor shall 
purchase alcohol and/or tobacco stock. 
 

 Alcohol and tobacco stock shall only be purchased from registered 
wholesalers. 

 

 The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods bought 
are kept together in a file or folder as evidence that they have been brought into 
the UK through legal channels.  Receipts shall show the following details: (1) 
Seller's name and address; (2) Seller's company details, if applicable; (3) Seller's 
VAT details, if applicable.  Copies of these documents shall be retained for no 
less than 12 months and shall be made available to police or authorised officers 
of the council on request within five working days of the request.  The most 
recent three months’ worth of receipts shall be kept on the premises and made 
available to the police or authorised officers of the council on request. 

 

 All tobacco products which are not on the tobacco display shall be stored in a 
container clearly marked ‘Tobacco Stock’.  This container shall be kept within the 
store room or behind the sales counter.   
 

 Tobacco products shall only be taken from the tobacco display behind the 
sales counter in order to make a sale. 

 
 
Trading Standards reserve the right to add any additional information to support this 
review application. 
 

Suspension of Licence:                                                      N 
 
Revocation of Licence:                                                       Y 

Recommended period of suspension (max 3 months):  

 
A significant quantity of smuggled tobacco has been found at this premises.   
Having regard to the Home Office guidance the Licensing Authority feels it is 
appropriate to seek total revocation of the premises licence.  
 

Page 115



                       6                  F LIC 1A 

 

Please tick yes 

Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before No  
 
If yes please state the date of that application 

Day Month Year 

   
 

 

If you have made representations before relating to these premises please state 
what they were and when you made them 
 
N/A 
 
 

 

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON 
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
APPLICATION 
 
Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 3) 
 
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent 
(See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what 
capacity. 
 

Signature:      
 

Date: 22nd January 2020  
 

Capacity:  Senior Fair Trading Officer  
   

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for 
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5) 
      

Post town 
      

Post Code 
      

Telephone number (if any)        

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
mail address (optional)       

Please tick yes 

 I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible 
authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club 
premises certificate, as appropriate 

 

 I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements 
my application will be rejected 

 

Page 116



                       7                  F LIC 1A 

 
Notes for Guidance  

1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 
2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems 

which are included in the grounds for review if available. 
3. The application form must be signed. 
4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf 

provided that they have actual authority to do so. 
5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this 

application. 
 

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                                             
            
    

 
LICENSING AUTHORITY REPRESENTATION 

 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  

 
 
Name and address of premises:   Sarge Off Licence 
     240 Fore Street 
     London 
     N18 2QD 
     
Type of Application:   Review of Premises Licence 
 
 
Detailed below is additional information not previously included in the review 
application submitted on 22nd January 2020: 
 
31/01/2020 – Out of Hours Licensing Enforcement Officers (EVG/CT) and carried out a 
full licence inspection.  The following conditions were found to be non-compliant: 
4 - The leave quietly sign needed to be moved so as to be at eye level 
5 - No proof of age scheme poster was displayed 
6 - Unable to access CCTV 
9 - Only one person on premises, two required at all times. 
10,11- No training carried out, no records 
12 - No refusals book. 
Also observed the tobacco display was not suitably covered up (just a bit of sheet but 
still left the shelving exposed). 
Completed inspection report giving 14 days to rectify the non-compliances. See 
Appendix 4.  Request was made to pass information on for a variation application. A 
copy of the report was left with the cashier.  No evidence of illicit tobacco. Cashier 
stated there was not any. 
 
03/02/2020 – Resources emailed to Premises Licence Holder to help with compliance. 
 
06/02/2020 – Email from Premises Licence Holder advising conditions now compliant. 
 
27/02/2020 – The Principal Licensing Officer (EVG) emailed the Premises Licence 
Holder advising them that it has been noticed that the annual fee for the period 
15/06/2019 to 14/06/2020 had not yet been paid and is well overdue.  The Premises 
Licence Holder was advised that they should pay the annual fee as soon as possible 
and that until payment was received the premises licence is suspended and alcohol 
must not be sold.  
 
28/02/2020 – The Premises Licence Holder’s agent submitted photos demonstrating 
compliance with condition 4, 5, 10, 11, 12 and improvements to the tobacco display. 
See Appendix 5A-I. 
 
02/03/2020 – Proof of Annual Fee payment provided. 
 
03/03/2020 - 14:23 - 14:42 - Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer (CPX) visited the 

premises to check outstanding licence conditions 6 and 9.  There was only one 

member of staff at the premises - the Premises Licence Holder.  This is a breach of C9.  

Page 119



Premises Licence Holder advised that his son had been there with him earlier but had 

left to get some lunch.  He showed the officer CCTV footage on his mobile phone from 

13:25 showing another male stacking shelves.  Officer advised the condition states 

there must be two members of staff there at all times.  Advised he could apply to have 

the condition removed from the licence but in the meantime must comply.  Although 

CCTV could be seen on the mobile phone the footage only went back to 12th February 

instead of the required 31 days – breach of Condition 6.  The Premises Licence Holder 

did not know how to check the footage via the screen in the shop.  He advised 2 new 

cameras had been installed recently and that they seemed to be too big for the hard 

drive.  Unable to check the time was correct on the monitor as font unclear.  Inspection 

Report completed and copy signed by and given to Premises Licence Holder.  See 

Appendix 6. 

 
 

Page 120



NOTICE OF SEIZURE No :-4üi:
ENFIEL

Name

Add

The following items have been seized by the officer
of contained lowin

Trading
Civic Centre
Silver Street
Enfield
ENI 3XH

trad i ng.standa rds@enfield.gov. u k
Telephone: 020 8379 8505
Fax: 020 8379 8506

as they may be required

c.tûî OC)

Cø¡r û¿

Council
rww.rnfield.govuk

;l c/)
\c t'

I tÀ

\\-!¿¡r S
e?, fl

\

it \c"À.

ò- .ñ. x.n
Y" X\

I SùÂ

Êì

\.

),.c\s;

\ß

"'i".'...............
ØØ.(!3

pJu ;!in

¡F YOU BELEIVE THE OFFICER DID NOT HAVE
ALL OR SOME OF THE ITEMS LISTED YOU MAY APPEAL AGAINST T
WISH TO APPEAL PLEASE WRITE/TELEPHONE THE MANAGER OF T

, -) \' s'l Position in Business:Received

È-1
INFO N A

REASONABLE G UNDS FOR SEIZING
HE SEIZURE. IF YOU

RADING STANDARDS
USING THE CON

Authorised Officer Date: ......... Ir* \rq
Signature: .... D i re ct D i a I : . -o- -?#..s-..,åf .?... .-AZ 6 S....,..........

P*+ J ,'*t ,^^

B

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



L.B. ENFIELD TRADING STANDARDS INFORMATION TO THE OCCUPIER
Notiôe of the powers to search premises and the rights of occupiêrs Police and Criminal

Evidence Act 1984 Code of Practice

Premises Searched Record

.tÊ

,

ù

Address of Premises
Type of

STATUTORY POWER (These powers are summarised overleaf)
Statutory powers under: Trade Description Act 1968 / Consumer Rights Act 2015

\ryRITTEN CONSENT (TICK THOSE V/HICH APPLY AND OBTAIN A SIGNATURE)
With the written consent of a person entitled to grant entry (only applicable if not under \¡r'arrant or statutory
powers)

I HEREBY CONSENT TO OFFICERS OF THE L.B. ENFIELD TRADING STANDARDS
SEARCHING THE ABOVE NAMED PREMISES. I UNDERSTAND THAT ANYTHING F'OUND
MAY BE USED IN COURT PROCEEDINGS.

I HEREBY CONSENT TO THE OFFICER MAKING USE OF EQUIPMENT ON THESE PREMISES, NAMELY
A TILL SCANNER OR OTHER SIMILAR EQUIPMENT FOR THE PURPOSE OF CHECKING PRICES ON
THESE PREMISES. I UNDERSTAND THAT ANY INFORMATION PRODUCED MAY BE USND

(TICK WHICH

!

\\(,\ c\\

' "ìJ..
(

Act Date

POWER UNDER WHICH

under

Status relative to

IN COURT PROCEEEDINGS.

WARRANT (Officers powers are summarised overleaf)

OFFICERS PRESENT AT SEARCH
(Show Name & Organisation)

Ilr

EiærFsÇrÊ-Charlotte Palmer

from Vy'agtail InternationalAmanda Butler Dog Hadler and Dog

Forced: state reasons:NO-

Damage - caused on entry or during search and circumstances:

Arrangements to Secure Premises:

Extent of Search:

Search Register No:

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



T

idÈ

qr'*t*--"'fË

ffi';; '¡'"*k'&

f
+
è.{;

Ë

'I
\

I

i
\

!ì

å''

ç
1

*

t

Í
/

a,

{/
I

[*

nI
t

þ

,'Å

Jl

I
i

i
J

\

2g

Wn

P
age 125



*:1

.-f:'i-'
t
Jt,

I
É,

t
r

::'1

Page 126



ì
Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



I

)
J

Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



!;!
:¡r
iri

¡t!

P
age 134



p
'*

" ','.

g

ss

å
P
t

!

t
I

ì5

Í

LEAF
llfr

rÙ{r

lra !r't t¡-l

3oc
:9g

I
o
:=I

1É
ú

CD
.Ê
I,a
Ë(n

rn

.a

L, :'

¡
i
q

{

I
{

t

Ê I
a

P
age 135



Page 136



\ I,f
Page 137



U

Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



I Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 3 
 

Proposed Conditions 
 
 

Annex 1 - Mandatory Conditions 
 
The Mandatory Conditions are attached and form part of the Operating Schedule of 
your licence/certificate. You must ensure that the operation of the licensed 
premises complies with the attached Mandatory Conditions as well as the 
Conditions in Annex 2 and Annex 3 (if applicable). Failure to do this can lead to 
prosecution or review of the licence. 
 
Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 
 

1. There shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or matters 
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of 
children. 

 
2. Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all public exits from 

the premises requesting customers respect the needs of local residents and 
leave the premises and area quietly. These notices shall be positioned at eye 
level and in a location where those leaving the premises can read them. 

 
3. The Local Authority or similar proof of age scheme shall be operated and 

relevant material shall be displayed at the premises. Only passport, 
photographic driving licences or ID with the P.A.S.S. logo (Proof of Age 
Standards Scheme) may be accepted. 

 
4. A digital CCTV system must be installed in the premises complying with the 

following criteria: (1) Cameras must be sited to observe the entrance and exit 
doors both inside and outside, the alcohol displays, and floor areas; (2) 
Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots of the heads and 
shoulders of all people entering the premises i.e. capable of identification; (3) 
Cameras overlooking floor areas should be wide angled to give an overview 
of the premises; (4) Be capable of visually confirming the nature of the crime 
committed; (5) Provide a linked record of the date, time, and place of any 
image; (6) Provide good quality images - colour during opening times; (7) 
Operate under existing light levels within and outside the premises; (8) Have 
the recording device located in a secure area or locked cabinet; (9) Have a 
monitor to review images and recorded picture quality; (10) Be regularly 
maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention; (11) 
Have signage displayed in the customer area to advise that CCTV is in 
operation; (12) Digital images must be kept for 31 days; (13) Police will have 
access to images at any reasonable time; (14) The equipment must have a 
suitable export method, e.g. CD/DVD writer so that the police can make an 
evidential copy of the data they require. This data should be in the native file 
format, to ensure that no image quality is lost when making the copy. If this 
format is non-standard (i.e. manufacturer proprietary) then the manufacturer 
should supply the replay software to ensure that the video on the CD can be 

Page 155



replayed by the police on a standard computer. Copies must be made 
available to Police or authorised local authority employees on request. 

 
5. A monitored alarm system to EU 50131 must be installed at the premises. 

 
6. Signs shall be prominently displayed on the exit doors advising customers 

that the premises is in a 'Drinking Control Area' and that alcohol should not 
be taken off the premises and consumed in the street.  These notices shall be 
positioned at eye level and in a location where those leaving the premises can 
read them. 

 
7. At least two members of staff shall be on the shop floor at all times that the 

premises is open. 
 

8. A written record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and 
completed when necessary. This record shall be made available to Police 
and/or the Local Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one 
year from the date of the last entry. 

 
9. All staff shall receive induction and refresher training (at least every three 

months) relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions of the 
premises licence. 

 
10. All training relating to the sale of alcohol and times and conditions of the 

licence shall be documented and records kept at the premises. These records 
shall be made available to the Police and/or Local Authority upon request and 
shall be kept for at least one year. 

 
11. Children under the age of 14 years shall not be admitted to the premises after 

21:00 unless they are accompanied by an adult.   
 
Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority 
 
SOUGHT BY TRADING STANDARDS: 
 

12. Only the Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor shall 
purchase alcohol and/or tobacco stock. 

 
13. Alcohol and tobacco stock shall only be purchased from registered 

wholesalers. 
 

14. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods bought 
are kept together in a file or folder as evidence that they have been brought 
into the UK through legal channels.  Receipts shall show the following 
details: (1) Seller's name and address; (2) Seller's company details, if 
applicable; (3) Seller's VAT details, if applicable.  Copies of these documents 
shall be retained for no less than 12 months and shall be made available to 
police or authorised officers of the council on request within five working 
days of the request.  The most recent three months’ worth of receipts shall be 
kept on the premises and made available to the police or authorised officers 
of the council on request. 

 

Page 156



15. All tobacco products which are not on the tobacco display shall be stored in a 
container clearly marked ‘Tobacco Stock’.  This container shall be kept within 
the store room or behind the sales counter.   

 
16. Tobacco products shall only be taken from the tobacco display behind the 

sales counter in order to make a sale. 
 

Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank



MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019/20 REPORT 
NO.245 

 

 

 
Agenda - Part 

 
Item 

 

COMMITTEE : 
Licensing Sub-Committee 
18 March 2020 
 
REPORT OF : 
Principal Licensing Officer 
 
LEGISLATION : 
Licensing Act 2003 

SUBJECT : 
Review Application 
 
PREMISES : 
Carpathina Ltd 337 Bowes Road, N11 1BA  
 
WARD : 
Southgate Green 

 
 
1 LICENSING HISTORY & CURRENT POSITION: 

 
1.1 A new premises licence (LN/201700925) was issued to Mr Iulian Frasinescu  

on 8 March 2018 without objection.  
 

1.2 The named Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) has also been Mr Iulian 
Frasinescu, since the licence was issued. 
 

1.3 No previous review applications have been submitted. 
 

1.4 A minor variation application was submitted on 18 September 2018 at the 
request by Licensing Enforcement, following a seizure of illicit tobacco. The 
application was granted with modified conditions on 3 October 2018. 

 

1.5 The current Premises Licence permits: 
 

        Hours the premises are open to the public: From 06:00 to 22:00 daily. 
         
        Supply of alcohol (off supplies only): From 11:00 to 22:00 daily. 
 
 
1.15  A copy of the current premises licence (LN/201700925) is attached in Annex 1, 

Appendix 4. 
 
 
2        THIS APPLICATION: 

Page 159 Agenda Item 5



2.1 On 24 January 2020 an application was made by Enfield Council’s Trading 
Standards for the review of Premises Licence LN/201700925 and is produced in 
Annex 1, including Additional Information.  
 

2.2 The review application relates to the prevention of crime and disorder licensing 
objective and is made on the grounds that smuggled goods have been found a 
second time on the premises i.e.  non-duty paid cigarettes. 
 

2.3 The review application is to revoke the premises licence in its entirety. 
 
 

2.4 The review application was advertised in accordance with the requirements 
of the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
2.5 Each of the Responsible Authorities were consulted in respect of the 

application. 
 

 

 
3    RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS: 
 

3.1 No representations were received from the Responsible Authorities in respect of 
this review application.  

 
3.2    Mr Iulian Frasinescu has responded to the review application, which is now 

produced in Annex 2. 
 

 
4 PROPOSED LICENCE CONDITIONS: 
 
4.1 Trading Standards have stated that no further conditions could be added to the 

premises licence.  
 

4.2 Trading Standards further request that if the Licensing Sub-Committee is minded 
not to revoke the licence that the licence be suspended until full compliance with 
the licence conditions has been demonstrated and a vary DPS application has 
been received who is competent to meet the conditions.  

 

 

 
5 RELEVANT LAW, GUIDANCE & POLICIES: 
 
5.1 The paragraphs below are extracted from either : 

5.1.1 the Licensing Act 2003 (‘Act’); or 

5.1.2 the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State to the Home Office of 
March 2017 (‘Guid’); or 

5.1.3 the London Borough of Enfield’s Licensing Policy Statement of January 
2015 (‘Pol’). 

 
 General Principles : 
 

Page 160



5.2 The Licensing Sub-Committee must carry out its functions with a view to 
promoting the licensing objectives [Act s.4(1)]. 

 
5.3 The licensing objectives are : 

5.3.1 the prevention of crime and disorder; 

5.3.2 public safety; 

5.3.3 the prevention of public nuisance; & 

5.3.4 the protection of children from harm [Act s.4(2)]. 

 
5.4 In carrying out its functions, the Sub-Committee must also have regard to : 

5.4.1 the Council’s licensing policy statement; & 

5.4.2 guidance issued by the Secretary of State [Act s.4(3)]. 

 
 
 
 

Review: 
 
5.5 In reviewing a licence the Licensing Sub-Committee will consider, and take into 

account, the complaints history of the premises and all other relevant information 
[Pol s.10.3].  

 
5.6 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly 

connected with licensable activities, for example the sale of contraband goods. 
The Sub-Committee does not have the power to judge the criminality or 
otherwise of any issue. The Sub-Committee’s role is to ensure the promotion of 
the crime prevention objective [Guid s.11.24].  

 
5.7 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed 

premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These include the use of 
the premises for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol [Guid 
s.11.27].  

 
5.8 Where reviews arise in respect of these criminal activities and the Sub-

Committee determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined, 
it is expected that revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should 
be seriously considered [Guid s.11.28]. 

 
  

Page 161



Decision: 
 

5.9 Having heard all of the representations (from all parties) the Licensing Sub-
Committee must take such steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives. The steps are :  

5.9.1 to modify the conditions of the licence; 

5.9.2 to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; 

5.9.3 to remove the designated premises supervisor 

5.9.4 to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 

5.9.5 to revoke the licence [Act s.52]. 

 
5.10 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, the Sub-Committee should so far as 

possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns which the 
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed 
at these causes and should generally be directed at those causes and should 
always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate response [Guid 
s.11.20]. 

 

 

Background Papers :  
None other than any identified within the 
report.  
 
Contact Officer :  
Ellie Green on 020 8379 8543 

 

 

Page 162



1 F LIC 1A 

Annex 1 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate 
under the Licensing Act 2003 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all 
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use 
additional sheets if necessary. 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  
I   Heena Kanani Principal Trading Standards Officer 

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below  

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details 

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

Carpathina Ltd 337 Bowes Road, N11 1BA 

Post town 

Enfield 

Post code (if known) 

N11 1BA 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if 
known)  

Mr Iulian Frasinescu 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known 

LN/201700925 

Part 2 - Applicant details 
I am  

Please tick yes 
1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises

b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises

c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the
premises

Page 163



                       2                  F LIC 1A 

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)  
 

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) 
below) 

    

 
(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 

 
Please tick 
Mr  Mrs  Miss  Ms  Other title       
 (for example, Rev) 
 
Surname  First names 
             

 
 Please tick yes 
I am 18 years old or over 
 

 
 
Current postal  
address if  
different from 
premises 
address 

      

 
Post town       Post Code       

 
Daytime contact telephone number       
 
E-mail address 
(optional)  

      

 
 
(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 
 
Name and address 
      

Telephone number (if any) 
      
E-mail address (optional)  
      
 

Page 164



                       3                  F LIC 1A 

 
 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 
 
 Name and address 
Heena Kanani 
Trading Standards 
London Borough of Enfield 
PO Box 57 
Civic Centre 
Silver Street 
EN1 3XH 

Telephone number: 020 8132 0687 

E-mail address: heena.kanani@enfield.gov.uk  
 
This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 
 Please tick one or more boxes 

1) the prevention of crime and disorder  
2) public safety  
3) the prevention of public nuisance  
4) the protection of children from harm  

 
Please state the ground(s) for review: (please read guidance note 1) 
 
Enfield trading standards is seeking a review of the premises licence on the grounds 
that smuggled goods have been found on the premises ie.  non-duty paid cigarettes. 
 
This review is primarily based on the prevention of crime and disorder licensing 
objective. The review application is to revoke the premises licence in its 
entirety. 
 
Background: 
 
On 29/10/19 - Officers from Enfield Council’s Trading Standards & Licensing 
Enforcement Team, the Police Licensing Officer, and a dog handler and dogs from 
Wagtail International carried out a day of unannounced visits to shops in the borough 
in a crackdown against the sale of illicit tobacco. 
 
One of the premises visited was Carpathina Ltd 337 Bowes Road, N11 1BA. At the 
time of the visit there was one member of staff on the premises, a female.  Ms 
Cocuta GAFITA 
 
The premises was searched and a total of 203 packets of non-duty paid items were 
found and seized.  The packets had foreign labelling and were non duty paid.   
 
The following cigarettes above an industrial fridge freezer (with a small number 
behind the counter):-  
8 x Parliament cigarettes (20 sticks) 
7 x Pall Mall cigarettes (20 sticks) 
7 x Sobranie Cigarettes (20) 
77 x Dunhill cigarettes (20s) 
52 x Marlboro Red Cigarettes (20s) 
52 x Kent cigarettes (20s) 
203 x 20 = 4060 sticks 
 

Page 165



                       4                  F LIC 1A 

The paperwork from 29/10/2019 can be viewed in Appendix 1 and 2 and the photos 
of the products can be viewed in Appendix 3. 
 
Other 
 
On 22/11/19, Licensing officers carried out a licence inspection. 
The following conditions were not in compliance: 
Condition 4 – refresher training not carried out every 3 months (no training taken 
place in 2019). 
Conditions 7 & 8 – refusals book available on site but not completed. 
Condition 12 – no up to date invoices available at time of visit.  
 
It was requested that these conditions brought into compliance within 7 days (ie. By 
29/11/19). 
Further checks required. 
 
An inspection report of these outstanding conditions was completed, signed by and a 
copy issued to Mr John Gherman Ioans, cashier. (Now known to be Ion GHERMAN) 
 
The premises licence holder/DPS was not present at the time of the visit. 
 
Previous History 
 
07/08/18 :-  
 
The premises was searched and a total of 387 packets (of 20 cigarettes) of non-duty 
paid items were found and seized.  The packets had foreign labelling and were non 
duty paid.   
 
64 x Marlboro Red 
171 x Rothmans 
115 x Kent 
37 x Sobranie 
 
The premises licence holder/DPS was not present at the time of any of the 
visits. 
 
A minor variation was agreed and amended licence issued in 3 October 2018. 
LN2017000925 this can be found at Appendix 4. 
 
 
Additional Information: 
 
Home Office revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
(11.27), states that there are certain criminal activities that may arise in connection 
with licensed premises which should be treated particularly seriously. The list 
includes the use of licensed premises for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco 
and alcohol (i.e. non duty paid products). 
 
The guidance (11.28) goes on to say that it is envisaged that responsible authorities 
will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where 
reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention 
objective is being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is 
expected that revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should be 
seriously considered.  
 
Conclusion: 

Page 166



                       5                  F LIC 1A 

 
This is not the first time that smuggled goods have been found at this premises and 
trading standards is of the opinion that given the large volume of cigarettes seized it 
is appropriate to recommend that this licence be revoked.   
 
The fact that the named Premises Licence Holder (who is also the DPS) is rarely at 
the premises, and undertakes minimal supervision relaying on ‘trust’ and given the 
licence breaches,trading standards has a lack of confidence in those running the 
business.   
 
If the Licensing Committee is minded not to revoke the licence then trading standards 
ask that the licence be suspended until the following actions have been completed: 
 
1. Full compliance with the licence conditions has been demonstrated. 
2. The named DPS demonstrates a thorough understanding of the licence 

conditions and discusses with the licensing authority his intention to fully 
supervise and record compliance with the conditions or a Vary DPS application 
has been granted to a DPS who is capable of doing so. 

 
Trading Standards make no recommendation regarding amendments to the licence 
conditions, these had already been varied in October 2018 and have been 
demonstrated as not being adhered to. They contain the most appropriate and up to 
date conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule. 
 
Trading Standards reserve the right to add any additional information to support this 
review application. 
 
Suspension of Licence:                                                      N 
 
Revocation of Licence:                                                       Y 

Recommended period of suspension (max 3 months):  
 
A significant quantity of smuggled tobacco has been found at this premises.   
Having regard to the Home Office guidance trading standards feels it is appropriate 
to seek total revocation of the premises licence.  
 
 

Please tick yes 
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before No  
 
If yes please state the date of that application 

Day Month Year 
  

 

 

If you have made representations before relating to these premises please state 
what they were and when you made them 
 
N/A 
 
 

Please tick yes 
 I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible 

authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club 
premises certificate, as appropriate 

 

Page 167



                       6                  F LIC 1A 

 
IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON 
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
APPLICATION 
 
Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 3) 
 
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent 
(See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what 
capacity. 
 

Signature:      
 

Date: 17 January 2020  
 
Capacity:  Principal Trading Standards Officer  
   
Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for 
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5) 
      

Post town 
      

Post Code 
      

Telephone number (if any)        
If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
mail address (optional)       

 
Notes for Guidance  

1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 
2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems 

which are included in the grounds for review if available. 
3. The application form must be signed. 
4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf 

provided that they have actual authority to do so. 
5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this 

application. 
 

 I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements 
my application will be rejected 

 

Page 168



                                                                                                                             
            
    

 
LICENSING AUTHORITY REPRESENTATION 

 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  

 
 
Name and address of premises:   Carpathina Ltd 
     337 Bowes Road 
     London 
     N11 1BA 
     
Type of Application:   Review of Premises Licence 
 
 
Detailed below is additional information not previously included in the review 
application submitted in January 2020: 
 
31.012020 – Out of Hours Licensing Enforcement Officers (EVG/CT) visited the 
premises to carry out an inspection revisit. They met Mr Gherman Ioan, who was the 
same cashier who was working during their last visit.  Conditions 4 – the training 
records were compliant.  Condition 7 – a refusal book was available, although there 
were no entries in it.  Mr Ioan stated that he had not needed to make any entries.  
Condiiton 12 - only one recent invoice seen for tobacco, no more on site. Requested 
that a copy of last month's invoices be sent to a named officer within the next 7 days.  
An inspection report was completed which Mr Ioan signed and was given a copy of to 
pass on to the Premises Licence Holder.  See Appendix 5. 
 
06.02.20202 - Invoices were emailed to the officer.  See Appendix 6a-d   
 
 

Page 169



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1Page 171



Appendix 2Page 172



Appendix 3Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Act 2003 

PART A – PREMISES LICENCE 

Granted by the London Borough of Enfield as Licensing 
Authority 

Premises Licence Number: LN/201700925 

Part 1 – Premises Details 

Postal address of premises: 
Premises name: 

Telephone number: 

Address: 

Carpathina Ltd 

 

337 Bowes Road LONDON N11 1BA    

Where the licence is time-limited, 
the dates: 

Not time limited 

The opening hours of the premises, the licensable activities authorised by 
the licence and the times the licence authorises the carrying out of those 
activities: 

Operating Schedule Details 

Location Whole premises 
Activity OPEN-Open to the Public 
Sunday 06:00-22:00 
Monday 06:00-22:00 
Tuesday 06:00-22:00 
Wednesday 06:00-22:00 
Thursday 06:00-22:00 
Friday 06:00-22:00 
Saturday 06:00-22:00 
Non-Standard Timings & Seasonal 
Variations 

Location Off supplies 
Activity ALCS-Supply of Alcohol 
Sunday 11:00-22:00 
Monday 11:00-22:00 
Tuesday 11:00-22:00 
Wednesday 11:00-22:00 
Thursday 11:00-22:00 
Friday 11:00-22:00 

Appendix 4Page 177



Saturday 11:00-22:00 
Non-Standard Timings & Seasonal 
Variations 
 

  

 

Page 178



Part 2 
 
Name and (registered) address of holder of premises licence: 

Name: 
 

Telephone number: 
 

e-mail: 
 

Address: 

Mr Iulian Frasinescu 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
Registered number of holder (where 
applicable): 

 

 
Name and (registered) address of second holder of premises licence 
(where applicable): 

Name: 
 

Telephone number: 
 

Address: 

 

 
Name and address of designated premises supervisor (where the licence 
authorises the supply of alcohol): 

Name: 
 

Address: 

Mr Iulian Frasinescu 
 

 
 
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by 
designated premises supervisor (where the licence authorises the supply 
of alcohol): 
Personal Licence Number: 

 
Issuing Authority: 

 
 
London Borough Of Enfield 

 
Premises Licence LN/201700925 was first granted on 8 March 2018.  
 

Signed:                   Date: 3 October 2018                         
 
for and on behalf of the 
London Borough of Enfield 
Licensing Unit, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield EN1 3XH 
Telephone: 020 8379 3578 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 179



Annex 1 - Mandatory Conditions 
 
The Mandatory Conditions are attached and form part of the Operating 
Schedule of your licence/certificate. You must ensure that the operation of 
the licensed premises complies with the attached Mandatory Conditions as 
well as the Conditions in Annex 2 and Annex 3 (if applicable). Failure to do 
this can lead to prosecution or review of the licence. 
 
Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 
 
1. There shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or 
matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in 
respect of children. 
 
2. A digital CCTV system must be installed in the premises complying 
with the following criteria:  
(1) Cameras must be sited to observe the entrance and exit doors both 
inside and outside, the alcohol displays, and floor areas. 
(2) Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots of the heads 
and shoulders of all people entering the premises i.e. capable of 
identification.  
(3) Cameras overlooking floor areas should be wide angled to give an 
overview of the premises.  
(4) Provide a linked record of the date, time, and place of any image. 
(5) Provide good quality images. 
(6) Operate under existing light levels within and outside the premises. 
(7) Have the recording device located in a secure area or locked cabinet. 
(8) Have a monitor to review images and recorded picture quality. 
(9) Be regularly maintained to ensure continuous quality of image 
capture and retention. 
(10) Have signage displayed in the customer area to advise that CCTV is 
in operation. 
(11) Digital images must be kept for 28 days. 
(12) Police or authorised local authority employees will have access to 
images at any reasonable time. 
(13) All staff engaged in the sale/supply of alcohol shall be trained to 
operate the CCTV system and download images/footage upon request by 
Police or  authorised local authority employees. 
(14) The equipment must have a suitable export method, e.g. CD/DVD 
writer so  that the police can make an evidential copy of the data they 
require. This data should be in the native file format, to ensure that no 
image quality is lost when making the copy. If this format is non-standard 
(i.e. manufacturer proprietary) then the manufacturer should supply the 
replay software to ensure that the video on the CD can be replayed by the 
police on a standard computer. Immediate copies must be made available 
to Police or authorised local authority employees on request. 
 
3. Signs shall be prominently displayed on the exit doors advising 
customers  that the premises is in a Public Space Protection Order Area 
(or similar) and that alcohol should not be taken off the premises and 
consumed in the street.  These notices shall be positioned at eye level and 
in a location where those leaving the premises can read them. 
  

Page 180



4. All staff involved in the sale of alcohol shall receive induction and 
refresher training (at least every three months) relating to the sale of 
alcohol and the times and conditions of the premises licence. 
 
5. All training relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and 
conditions of the  premises licence shall be documented and records kept 
at the premises. These records shall be made available to the Police and/or 
Local Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one year. 
 
6. A 'Think 25' proof of age scheme shall be operated and relevant 
material shall be displayed at the premises.   
 
7. A record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and 
completed when necessary. This record shall contain the date and time of 
the refusal, a description of the customer, the name of the staff member 
who refused the sale, and the reason the sale was refused.  This record 
shall be made available to Police and/or the Local Authority upon request 
and shall be kept for at least one year from the date of the last entry. 
 
8. The Designated Premises Supervisor shall regularly check the 
refusals system to ensure it is being consistently used by all staff. 
 
9. Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all public 
exits from the premises requesting customers respect the needs of local 
residents and  leave the premises and area quietly.  These notices shall 
be positioned at eye level and in a location where those leaving the 
premises can read them. 
 
10. Only the Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor 
shall purchase alcohol and / or tobacco stock. 
 
11. Alcohol and tobacco stock shall only be purchased from registered 
wholesalers. 
 
12. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods 
bought are kept together in a file or folder as evidence that they have been 
brought into the UK through legal channels.  Receipts shall show the 
following details: (1) Seller's name and address; (2) Seller's company 
details, if applicable; (3) Seller's VAT details, if applicable.  Copies of these 
documents shall be retained for no less than 12 months and shall be made 
available to police or authorised officers of the council on request within 
five working days of the request.  The most recent three months' worth of 
receipts shall be kept on the premises and made available to the police or 
authorised officers of the council on request. 
 
13. All tobacco products which are not on the tobacco display shall be 
stored in a container clearly marked 'Tobacco Stock'.  This container shall 
be kept within the store room or behind the sales counter.   
 
14. Tobacco products shall only be taken from the tobacco display 
behind the sales counter in order to make a sale. 
 
 

Page 181



Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority 

Not applicable 

Page 182



Annex 4 – Plans 

Page 183



Annex 1 – Mandatory Conditions 
 
Mandatory conditions where the licence authorises the sale of alcohol 
(Note: Conditions 4, 5, and 7 relate to on-sales only) 
 
These Mandatory Conditions form part of the Operating Schedule of your 
licence. You must ensure that the operation of the licensed premises 
complies with these Mandatory Conditions, as well as the Conditions 
stated in Annex 2 and Annex 3 (if applicable). Failure to do this can lead to 
prosecution or review of the licence. 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated 
premises supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises 
supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a 
person who holds a personal licence. 
 
4. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not 
carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 
following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises 
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to 
require or encourage, individuals to; 
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the 
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to 
encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 
24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a 
licensing objective; 
(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers 
on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other 
than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 
 
5. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on 
request to customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must 
ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in 
relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

Page 184



(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 
ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to 
be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 
photograph, date of birth and either - 
(a) a holographic mark, or 
(b) an ultraviolet feature. 
 
7. The responsible person must ensure that – 
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption 
on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made 
up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is 
available to customers in the following measures - 
(i) beer or cider: ½ pint; 
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 
(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 
which is available to customers on the premises; and 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity 
of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the 
premise licence in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor 
(if any) or any individual aged 18 or over who is authorised by either the licence 
holder or designated premises supervisor. For premises with a club premises 
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a 
capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8 (i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for 
consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted 
price. 
(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 
(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 
P = D+(DxV) 
Where - 
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty 
were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the 
value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 
(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a premises licence - 
(i) the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol 
under such a licence; 
(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 

Page 185



premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 
(e) "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the 
Value Added Tax Act 1994. 
(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart 
from this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that 
sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph 
rounded up to the nearest penny. 
(iv). (1) Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 
Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 
 
Supply of alcohol under a Club Premises Certificate 
The mandatory conditions 4 to 8 above will apply. If the club premises certificate 
authorises the supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises, the following 
three mandatory conditions must also be included: 
1. The supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises must be made at a 
time when the premises are open for the purposes of supplying alcohol to 
members of the club for consumption on the premises. 
2. Any alcohol supplied for consumption off the premises must be in a sealed 
container. 
3. Any alcohol supplied for consumption off the premises must be made to a 
member of the club in person. 
 
Supply of alcohol from community premises 
The following mandatory condition will replace the first three mandatory 
conditions above when an application is made for a premises licence by the 
management committee of community premises and the licensing authority also 
grants an application for this alternative licence condition to be included in the 
licence: 
1. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or 
authorised by the [management committee / management board / board of 
trustees]. 
 
Mandatory condition when a premises licence or a club premises certificate 
authorises the exhibition of films 
9. Admission of children to the premises must be restricted in accordance with 
the film classification recommended by the British Board of Film Classification or 
recommended by this licensing authority as appropriate. 
 
Mandatory Condition relating to door supervision which only applies where 
a premises licence includes a condition that one or more individuals must 
be at the premises to carry out a security activity 
10. All persons guarding premises against unauthorised access or occupation or 
against outbreaks of disorder or against damage (door supervisors) must be 
licensed by the Security Industry Authority. 
 

Page 186



REF:w6 J II o¿+-&2-YJ
LICENSING ENFORCEMENT INSPECTION REPORT

ûPg<.arn s
L¡CN_1

Premises Name
Premises
Address 33f L-'<^tu:f Q 04 ñ/r 1ßk,

I I

Time of Visit: Start: Oc¡

During an inspection of your premises on ...... 3l r ..... .. .20. ?*-.?. ., the following was checked:

Part B of Premises Licence displayed?
Address & tel no. of PLH & DpS on licence correct?
Conditions of licence checked?

Yes
Yes

Yes

! Non
E No fl ltf incorrect, insert new detaits betow)n Notr

No. of condition
not in

nce

+-
B'
iz

rrìy other matter(s) that need addressing:

0u are required to have the above matterc attended to wlthin..
'eaches may constitute a crlminal offence and result

r-i""'
.fr..aaVsof this notice. Faiture to

in legal proceedlngs being brought against you.
rectify the above

^¿t-c- å

l¡1 r,,to¡ 1-Z AZ ¿5,I

7l/'\áI c^ r'e

J'aa. þ ¿, ,.,L

-t
)rint Name of Officers in Attendance:

â,1¡-- Ge--,
Cl ^t-t-z 

{,¡r^.,-;-

you have any queries to this report please contact
)harlotte Palmer, Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer via
2O8 1322O04 or charlotte. .uk

forms can down

NG ENFORCEM RECIPIE NT OF NOTICE
Signature:

Position:
tO4rt

ntPri meNa &
 l,+rqea Ø¡'t

Email/Tel:

vl ¡!r¡rP()r rraN
POLIC E

t¡t¡b*hg to¡attrr ltr E aatur Lsrdort

at: https://new gov

Page 187



.\ 'i ,

,i'i!','u; ¡.[rr'i {r, i
¡ij

ç
'I

Ð

I *b5 f vV*r¡
mf þi*L[$Éqs"L

@
ûate ''-rinrc .

I Iotall

1 53551 247
.. l2-10-2019 ?r 50i?1

_. 
1o1 2

lnvoice

fcCILLÊcrEDl

Pqgg ì

i

¡

Ì;

i.
I
i
I

I
t
I
l;
ll

i
¡l

illcr
Locâtron- ETJFIELD lC.Je d:i3)
Bsstway
1.1:a¡D¡Âil ,,.,þY

:t.lFlE Lg
LJtIDCIJ

à Alcohol Reseiler rJo

ÌCuslomer no. {Type 2)
I ATHINA LIMITED

I None

lvAT Number:

! Contact:
ì Telep¡one:

lEma¡l:

Unil Price Line Value VAT

o
v,

Fis henes App.lJo. : F,S cApp 9-r fr9
VÂt Hqmber 316ô 19:a9

GE¡¡ tJlGR. NAUM/r¡i i,ìÀHi\,,1OOù
OEP IJIGR

BÂI¡ ÀIGR
Telephonei020S As7 !f3B
Emarl; Di É¡tFtEL¡l,,iAt¡qGEÊSatlBFSTyr'Ay

Câs¡rer ËtigUHAr,l:JAh
Scannerls) ENt,lALtKl

o

{,

=(,
!

ol-
o
,9
o

€

Oescr¡

f;erge Transact¡on 153550194
I,,!ARLBORÔ TOUCH 2O-S
!.tARr3öRO TOUCH 20.S
I,IÁRLBORO KS GOLD 2O'S
VARLBORO KS GOLD 2O'S
B}H SK BIUE TT 2o's
BrH KS BtUE 20S
BTH KS ELUE 2O'S
BTH KS.SKI, BLUE II 2O'S
ROTHM,{IrS SK ELUE 20S
CHESTERFIEID I<S REO 2C'S
STÊRIING KS DUAL TT 2O'S
RO'THI¡/1.NS SK GREEN 2O'S
PALL MALL SK GREEN CAP 2O'S
ROTHI,IÂNS XI KS BLUF 24'S
8+HGOLD TT2O'S
PALL LIALr FINE CUI 30G
OUNHILI- KS CONSULATE

j f72.69 Q.),i c t-¡z.sg
1 17269',,:l.rc tzzag
t eeø:s /tj,ri stests
1 Ê86 13 ti ./. lj Ê86 13

1 e67.Be ql,ie $t.eg
J €67.89 ;ìYç C È67 .8e
1 €67 Bs .)y ?¿ eoz.es
i Ê67 Be 'iv,) o tat.as
1 Ê6749 )f,ì) t67.49
ì e66 32 .;v,(),r t66.32
1 Ê76. 19 /¡y c, -' ttøjts
1 Ê68.79 ; y,Ì/; î6879
1 Ê6s.oe t7!g.r eoe.oe
1 Ê64.s3 -1iì, +,-Ê64 53
i €e1 4e !,Li,1C eet ce
1 e4s.3o l¡!,rú etgzo
1 Ês7 60 ¡þ,'i¿ æz ao
r e52 4et14,,¡!;Èsz¿s
1 Ês? 4e +!i.9{îsz1e

Pack

3?52CJ
:3,íi2Aû
it22Aat
i28?6e
62746-i
J1t721

b27i(.¿
325132
13186:

a2?4t7
1252.t)
299892
3031 0ô
ô2e038
325121
29350s
315295
3152ei

aa59î)717A$78
aaaaß?a78657A
a:300777ø7031
,iatQ77ì67Ðq1
:3tô 1,1??3?753

5Ca;:.i3914:rar
5ûtJi¿331;345
1010143934656
5taa3e3a3u63
,Côu07-11A5257
500¡1433207s8
5403393083166
::!S3393062985
.93039308324 1

503C143918359
5000393082459
50003930833¡0
5C00143951 I 58
50GC143951158

A¡,IBER
AJ,TIgER

lrolley

IEAF
LEÂ9

1x1o '/ r¡q
1x10 1'i.,i
txto ll +;)
1x1o ll :; )

urog$!
txto./ t'Ç
1x1o': Ç'4
txto '/, l 1

tx10'i, Ç j
1x10c) t'; .1

1xß!C,'+ 9
inoq, i9
1rt0q, ¿ Ç
,rtt-/b,??

irto12,l,
1x6 r; jY',

1x1o 12.9 7
txs /?,),¡
1x5 lç 41

t9 20
19 20

Ê11 05
Ê1 1.05

€8.70
Ê8.70
Ê8.70
e8 70
Ê8.70
e8.65

18 70
e8-70

Ê10 20
Ê1r.85
e 11.00
Ê12.35
e14 00
e14.00

5.1A%
5.18%
6.46%
6 46t'j
6_364/.

6.36%
6.3ô%
6 36%
6.91%
8.00%
5.74
5.1144
4.70&
5 10y1

7.35%
10.3ô%
4.evh

10.010,!

10.01%

3u5i 14

5û99-1,i
aÁ1a133A3292"
3AaQ22ê912ã9)

5!J1t314492207
5C99873S0r601

l9 S¡ngl€s

RIZLÁ S,LVER REg
s*,¡N rrLrens ex;¡Ásuí 12onps
Trolley Coun,?¡ZSingte¡

,o,,rous c*ousu -,'-si,
MrNr JACK onruç¡C scL
Trolley Count få S¡ngles

1x100
1x20

Ixl2
1x t0

, tA.
t'!) tj î â1s 1s Ål-.

e 18.93
E7.n

e0.39 41.74%
Ê1.01 53.86yo

t
¡

Ê18.93 /¿,
E7.n J"C

;aai7i.
593069

421 7 -!g -:= -.' - åCli??gï91f33-- g)çACOl¡ Ssp;..:?' 6^+-.
rrouey coyñ-1;t{ífofè

e 14.49 i'.? rl¡.¿g 1

êê æo.za 1

t1.89 23.329:
Ê2 49 26.80%

.l

:

-:

.'.:. 
:1,1

SUbtotãl 27 81,447.13

,/rU
't lL¡ )\, þ.,\\'f

There are no outstanding security dockets
TT¿ (jomc¡ñ/ n ,ena r tìa s:'e ê.C d!ælu:¿ own:. oJ tre ¡nlo,cùJ çaxis rnli paymeil ¡ fur! is receired-

Unlll !1li:C!:'a¡rittttlFJi!èsa't¿',iel tìegzfs¡at iîeCgnps",l5h3iibeeiiilellt¡etai€po:s€ssq1
Âr, glJf s êre t: J s,-:re;l lo Besi¿ ¿t \,'Jra'e F'e l ems å Conlil,ils Ol Sãle * h ah a-É O:SplAyeC ¿l cugtcñer rec€pl,ø

Page 188



frfø.'din 6b

¡- rutçrlÍrelÎI

BESTWAY
WHOTESALE

lnvoice 162566239
Oate / Time 21-01-    58
lotal:

-- - .'-, -- ,+.

i!¡ge-, -

P¡omotions included
Proqrq!!9!
47859 SPEND €1200 TOB.G1 SOFT DRINK

Assrde_d Value (E! VAI)
-e9 45

-€9.46

| ---
Pack Count lnvoice S

Code Rate

. ,.-.20.99o/o
Totals

Pâck 1 Value (Ex VAÐ c1.288.62
ir.,it,Total 23 Dlscoúrl

Total velue {Ex VAT} f 1,288,62

8257 76

€1,546.38

__ Ê43:.2

162566239

P¡Md br .Nffi tun CdS Sotu¡F 6roup

(no werghed rtems ¡n

transaclio¡)

Count Summa
CaseE

0

0

0

0

t1, t95.92

€67 89

f0.00

t24.A1

S¡viag¡
Fõrúñe---T1s
Tod et.¿S

Cash t1 S90 00
Ch¡noe

2

3

17

1

1

1¡tals 0 23 €1.288.ô2

I

#
dockets

lnvoice No.

Total due {lnc VAI)

hflrlúttailaat

Page 189



f 
:| 

g:'1: ,fr I t¿ ,4 (:> q.

It*trE
l¡¡È'-s
I

1

iiit"il
i. ir: Ii ii':. i.r¡¡¡

lits rwAY
rtr/ H*Lf$f{t"F"

Irrvoice tffirrl
lDate/f¡me

Totalr

1 6256623S
21-01-2020 :3 44 5¡

)J' :¿¿
i Pa99 lol 2

Locatron: [NFlËL..-. .Code 833ì
Bestway

,¡,IFR¡DIAN 
UJAY

t I'lF rtL L
.LTNDON

Alcohot Reseller No: XOA!V00000. U I Ê.15Flshefl.s rlpþ l¡o. FtstiAppggg!
'VAT Number 19861938r,
.GEN MGR. NAUMAN Ii,AHi\,loo.),DEP 

MGR:
iBl\t1 ttGRl
leleohone. O2OB BB7 9038

, ema¡t; OL-ËNFtÊLÐMANAGERS@BESTWAY
lCash¡er: 

ENALT\,V
'Scatrner{s}: ENA|_|AS

6?8795 50605920û282s

trffr

r,
o

' 
(t,

o
f-
o
,9
o

o

{,
È
0)o

¡{:oLLECTEDI

'Cuslomer no.:  (Type 2t
.CARPATHINA LIMITEO

VAÌ Numtre¡;

I

I Cont¿ct;
llelephone:
i Ema¡lr 

Pack Oty

tl
I

_-J

Unlt Pr,cê
{Ex VATì

Line Value VÂT
lÉr VAf! Codê SRP POR

Coúe Barcode Descnpt¡on 
_

6_19?'" 5000i13es2rs5 r-iÊii,JÅ:ii:lï"t"#ï¿'628295 5000143958041 AMBER tËAF r 30G628295 5000143958041 AMBÊR IEAF TT 30G
5261 5s 5OOO435O.t21s2 GOLF !_EAF .lps Tf 30c626300 s00043501?093 GOLDÊN VtRctNtA iT 30c3r003a] 5000393082909 p/rli ¡,iALL KS BLUE CAp 20'S627407 5000143920758 STERLTNG KS OUAI rT 20,sr:1651- 5000143930948 S|LK Cijr puRpt..E 20,s62706{. 5000143939750 B+H SK BLUE TT 2o.S2ç19692 s000393082985 pAl,L t¡ALt S'( GREEN CAp 20,S626944 5000393364739 VOcuE oR|GINAL GREËN TT 20'S.ì03r0b 5000393083241 ROTH¡,IANS XL KS BLrJE 24,S628784 5050592002702 MARTBORO KS GOLD ÌT 20'S628784 5060592002702 r¡ARLBORO KS GOLD ri 20,S628740 5060592002ô41 MARLBORO TOUCH rr 20.S6?-874A 5060592002641 ¡,IARLBORO TOUCH Tr 2o.S

1x5
1x5

txs
1x5
1x5 a

1x 10

1x10
1x 10

1x10
1x 10
1x10

1x8
1xl0
1x 10
1x l0
1x 10

1x10

Ê56.50
e52 49
€52.49
141 39

e55.79
€69 09
lf 5.7 5
î91.49
!67.89
169 09

895.65
e64.53
€86.1 3
186 13

e72.69

9.60%
10 01%
10 019¡
I 69ô/"

7.661o
4 tÙ.h
6.29i;
¡- 35orc

6.360/.
4.70%
5.14%
5 10%

6.46%
6 4 6c¿,

5 '130¡¡

5 18%
6.4ô%

e

I ä-. t,:r f56.50
tL.'.t4 *z og

'',.1'Jræztg
ll, ,q e¿r ¡sll*l( ess'g

:.,\l €6909
tô¡ \'t zts¡s

ll ' 
9l rst as

pr 5l 162.Be

/) 1? :s:s:
fQrtq coq.s¡
ll 31 res rs
l{, J{ tao r:¿J,fJ ezz.esq.qq €72 6s

ü, 5S eao r¡

t ll.lfrts oo

;ä:ll:;l:;
r þ[. l¡ 5lr r oo

i,ffitr'il;i.¡¡Ç(þrrr as
r Ç¡''.Qoro.zo

' 9À.40 ea;o
t 12\6otlz to
t lÇ'f¿ttozo
tilf lsi;l:::
t f€.lo tszo
r 19- 30 ¡s zo
r it{þerr.os

62717b 500014391 7758

421798 501 772610,?5s0

MARLBORO KS RED TT ?O'S
Trolley Cou¡t 1 I .17 SJ-ngles

B+r{ SK Bt.uÉ o6i rr ro,s
frolley Counl 2: 1 S¡ngl€

coc¿ cor¡ o¡p ¿sóiir
Trolfey Count 3: I Srngle

.tUB8A BUBßA STRAWBËRRY 7G
HUEBA 8UB84 ATOMIC APPLE 7G
SWAN FILTERS EXTR,A SLI¡I l2OIIPS
SVr'AN FILTER SLIM POP l2OTIPS
Trolley Count 4: 4 Singles

1r l0

1x24

1xì'¿

lr2t
1x20

t9 45

er as i)
14.89 r(4

ì7.77
87.æ

eut un { 4 9 .ut un r 9 \,1o r.a to

e0.00' 1

6 36%

e0.ô5 100.oûye

10.90

31 .7 401.

31 740k
53 869'.
51.61i/6

1451 12

1 8401 6
509944
249384

40099û0469883
4009900J5 r8s4
500022601 289çl
50c02206009ô6

t0 43
t0 43
e 1.01

lo
to
Yt

€4.89
€4.89
Ê7 77

27.2ô

ñ
çc
,/

Subtotal €1,288.6223

| ?? 2,41-

'. li.,.'.:

,. .¡l

There are no o.uts!9¡Ç.ing security dockets
liÈcompå.yw¡,rêmôîrnesoba4Ja¿rsduleo*n6rc'trñe iìro¡æãloodsLn¡rpâ./ãñrúìfuir¡sfece[ed

Lr. liieitnêCus:rme:ñaiailroserianyùlinegæds-âôl rheCøpânyshaj¡best{tdtoretaiepogs€sson
A¡l ooc{s arÈ solj sli:ttr! lo 8Èil¿/ Wtat€slc -fems I Cond,lryrs c{ Sate- *hìch are d,sptàyeO 

"t 
.r"t."iiãpn*

Page 190



,Éì7¿t r'ol,'x 6 d
ili ; il;itHll
tr@Ð

*ËSTWAY
wË-f*tËsAË-F

lnvoice @
I Dâte I Time 

',

: Tôtal:

r Page

153551247
,r,1e.2ots 

2of? b

Promotions included
ej1r-ôle.,L, . -, -, 4wqiqc_qv,ärue-tExvlTl
47859 SP€ry,q t1200 TOB.€ j .SOÊ'_ ORTNX ì _t:9 4s

-e9.45

Pack Count
!nuqicg Summary

2ti
VAIUe IE¡ VA¡

lliscaùn,
t1 A47 13

î1,447.13
4289 46

€1,736.59

E3.41

ognt Summary
_.- 9,t¡s!9r - 

--,, 
qr v3r l

fi.345 lô

t2c.j a '

{no werghed ¡lems rf
Vansôc¡on,

Savings
Prmæo"l_ --gg,as
Total €9.4S

Total value {Ex VATI

' chan-ge Gryån:

153551247

175.25

¡0.00
lotals

f1,447.13

,, \..:rd ù! .r,4Íro r onr C.:ec¡ Se4.È ¿ 
,r Gro!;

Totâl due VAT)

tq
1

2

3

4

l

i it:

l

I
{
I

i

There are no outstanding security dockets
lÞ Cøxr7 rr' reie,l tb€ sai¡ âd aþsrue w c. fu j}ûr:S geds u.!r prrTell tl ful; ,s ¡@¡rÊó

ua! ûÐ tÞ cG'|oie: rat n3r reFli an.r' or tE 9&s aæ rrE cffiia.y shar, be ø'{red ro reràê pcssess,o^
Ar Carjs a.e $-i suqÉ la ¡esla' \'¡hoþÞþ _feîs 

S COlJ!.ôrs ct Sale. wh..¡ are O,Sptayeo at cu:tDrs, .æeplcr

Page 191



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 2 
Response from Premises Licence Holder 

 

Dear Mrs Ellie Green,  

Thank you ever so much for all your assistance. In addition we would like to inform 

you and the Sub-Committee in written that:  

1)We noticed the plan presented in your documentation in Appendix 4 (3 October 

2028) is not of our shop, perhaps it describes the previous coffee shop. Could you 

please be so kind and amend your documents with Annex 4 337 Bowes Road N11 

1BA Plan.pdf, see below. For conformity please check our Carpathina Ltd Premises 

Licence of 8 March 2018 page 8 that I also attach. 

1bis) In the same document  of 3 October 2018 at point 4: Mandatory Conditions it is 

mentioned: it is not allowed to encourage/promote alcohol drinking on the premises, 

which is not our case, we are on-sale only, we do not allow alcohol drinking on the 

premises, period. We just wonder if these should apply to the previous coffee shop, 

whose plan was in the documentation. Could you please be so kind and clarify, 

thank you. 

2) We understand that the consultation period passed (we attach the Notice we 

displayed) and no representations had been received 

3) We had Refresh Training with our staff on 20/08/209; 23/11/209 and 22/02/2020 

please see the attached pages. 

4) Please make a note that apart from Iulian Frasinescu we hired two more Personal 

Licence Holders,  Ana-Maria Silaghi and Georgian Arsene, see their Personal 

Licences attached 

5) We complied with the mandatory conditions and displayed the Licence, trained 

our staff and operated A Think 25 prof of age, see images attached  

6) Two of our staff were awarded Certificate of achievements, see image Certificate 

of achievment for Cocuta Gafita and Ioan Gherman 

7) Also see Image of BIIB Level 2 for Personal Licence Holder Iulian Frasinescu  

8) We paid the ANNUAL FEE: LN/201700925 as you advised us to, on 29 February 

2020 and sent the payment confirmation for £180 Ref 6416569: Annual information 

Licensing Act 2003 - ANNUAL FEE: LN/201700925 to licensing@enfield.gov.uk. 

9) Iulian Frasinescu, Nicoleta Gafita and I, Gabriela Doina Basca, certified interpreter 

- we will attend the 18 March 2020 Hearing at the Council Chamber of Enfield Civic 

Centre. Do hope that the certified interpreter's presence is acceptable to facilitate the 

communication, thank you. 

 

Page 193

mailto:licensing@enfield.gov.uk


We would highly appreciate if you could be so kind and amend the plan of our 

premises and add these images/proves of our endeavours to comply with the 

Licence requirements to our file for the 18 March 2020 Hearing at the Council 

Chamber of Enfield Civic Centre.  

 

10) We are a little bit confused about the Annex 2 Application for the review of a 

premises licence or club premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

that you sent us by post and e-mail. We couldn’t figure if Is it only for our knowledge, 

or do we have to fill (what paragraphs?) and send it back to you? Should the points 

we raised in this e-mail from 1 to 8 be included in the Annex 2 and sent back to you? 

Could you please be so kind and clarify, thank you. 

Looking forward to hearing from you, 

Yours with gratitude, 

Gabriela Doina Basca on behalf of Iulian Frasinescu and Nicoleta Gafita 

 

_________________________________ 

Response from Ellie Green:  

Dear Gabriela 

Thank you for your email. I will include your response in the report. I have responded 

to the points requiring a response, using your numbering as per your email below. 

1). I can confirm that the incorrect plan will be removed and the correct premises 

licence will be provided in the main report, as attached. 

1bis). The condition you mention is “Mandatory” therefore these conditions are 

applied to every licence and must be complied with, if it relates to the licensable 

activities provided. it is not specific to the premises, unlike conditions in Part 2, 

Annex 2 or Annex 3 (where applicable). This condition has not been identified as one 

that officers are concerned with. 

9). That is helpful and acceptable, thank you. 

10). Annex 2 of the application is the section in case the person or company 

submitting the review is an individual or a company, and not a Responsible Authority. 

This section is not required to be completed by you or Trading Standards. Thank you 

for checking. 

Kind regards 

Ellie 

Page 194



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 195



 

 

 

 

 

Page 196



 

Page 197



 

Page 198



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 199



 

Page 200



 

Page 201



 

 

 

 

 

Page 202



 

Page 203



 

 

 

 

 

Page 204



MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019/20 REPORT 
NO.246 

 

 

 
Agenda - Part 

 
Item 

 

COMMITTEE : 
Licensing Sub-Committee 
18 March 2020 
 
REPORT OF : 
Principal Licensing Officer 
 
LEGISLATION : 
Licensing Act 2003 

SUBJECT : 
Review Application 
 
PREMISES : 
Polonezz 14 Green Lanes London N13 6JR  
 
WARD : 
Bowes 

 
 
1 LICENSING HISTORY & CURRENT POSITION: 

 
1.1 A new premises licence (LN/201401122) was issued to Polonez Limited on 25 

March 2015 without objection.  
 

1.2 The named Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) has been Ms Izabella 
Kuziola, since the licence was issued. 
 

1.3 No previous review applications have been submitted. 
 

1.4 A minor variation application was submitted on 27 April 2018 at the request by 
Licensing Enforcement, following a seizure of illicit tobacco. The application was 
granted with modified conditions on 14 May 2018. 

 

1.5 The current Premises Licence permits: 

1.5.1 Hours the premises are open to the public: From 09:00 to 20:00 Monday to 
Saturday, and 10:00 to 19:00 Sunday. 

 
1.5.2 Supply of alcohol (off supplies only): From 09:00 to 20:00 Monday to 

Saturday, and 11:00 to 19:00 Sunday. 
 
1.15  A copy of the current premises licence (LN/201401122) is attached in Annex 1, 

Appendix 4. 
 
 
2        THIS APPLICATION: 

Page 205 Agenda Item 6



2.1 On 24 January 2020 an application was made by Enfield Council’s Trading 
Standards for the review of Premises Licence LN/201401122 and is produced in 
Annex 1, including Additional Information.  
 

2.2 The review application relates to the prevention of crime and disorder licensing 
objective and is made on the grounds that smuggled goods have been found a 
second time on the premises i.e.  non-duty paid cigarettes. 
 

2.3 The review application is to revoke the premises licence in its entirety. 
 
 

2.4 The review application was advertised in accordance with the requirements 
of the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
2.5 Each of the Responsible Authorities were consulted in respect of the 

application. 
 

 

 
3    RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS: 
 

3.1 No representations were received from the Responsible Authorities in respect of 
this review application.  

 
3.2    Polonez Ltd have not responded to the review application to date. 

 
 
4 PROPOSED LICENCE CONDITIONS: 
 
4.1 Trading Standards have stated that no further conditions could be added to the 

premises licence.  
 

4.2 Trading Standards further request that if the Licensing Sub-Committee is minded 
not to revoke the licence that the licence be suspended until full compliance with 
the licence conditions has been demonstrated and a vary DPS application has 
been received, naming a licence holder who is competent to meet the conditions.  

 

 

 
5 RELEVANT LAW, GUIDANCE & POLICIES: 
 
5.1 The paragraphs below are extracted from either : 

5.1.1 the Licensing Act 2003 (‘Act’); or 

5.1.2 the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State to the Home Office of 
March 2017 (‘Guid’); or 

5.1.3 the London Borough of Enfield’s Licensing Policy Statement of January 
2015 (‘Pol’). 

 
 General Principles : 
 

Page 206



5.2 The Licensing Sub-Committee must carry out its functions with a view to 
promoting the licensing objectives [Act s.4(1)]. 

 
5.3 The licensing objectives are : 

5.3.1 the prevention of crime and disorder; 

5.3.2 public safety; 

5.3.3 the prevention of public nuisance; & 

5.3.4 the protection of children from harm [Act s.4(2)]. 

 
5.4 In carrying out its functions, the Sub-Committee must also have regard to : 

5.4.1 the Council’s licensing policy statement; & 

5.4.2 guidance issued by the Secretary of State [Act s.4(3)]. 

 
 
 
 

Review: 
 
5.5 In reviewing a licence the Licensing Sub-Committee will consider, and take into 

account, the complaints history of the premises and all other relevant information 
[Pol s.10.3].  

 
5.6 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly 

connected with licensable activities, for example the sale of contraband goods. 
The Sub-Committee does not have the power to judge the criminality or 
otherwise of any issue. The Sub-Committee’s role is to ensure the promotion of 
the crime prevention objective [Guid s.11.24].  

 
5.7 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed 

premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These include the use of 
the premises for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol [Guid 
s.11.27].  

 
5.8 Where reviews arise in respect of these criminal activities and the Sub-

Committee determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined, 
it is expected that revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should 
be seriously considered [Guid s.11.28]. 

 
  

Page 207



Decision: 
 

5.9 Having heard all of the representations (from all parties) the Licensing Sub-
Committee must take such steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives. The steps are :  

5.9.1 to modify the conditions of the licence; 

5.9.2 to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; 

5.9.3 to remove the designated premises supervisor 

5.9.4 to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 

5.9.5 to revoke the licence [Act s.52]. 

 
5.10 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, the Sub-Committee should so far as 

possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns which the 
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed 
at these causes and should generally be directed at those causes and should 
always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate response [Guid 
s.11.20]. 

 

 

Background Papers :  
None other than any identified within the 
report.  
 
Contact Officer :  
Ellie Green on 020 8379 8543 

 

 

Page 208



 

 

 1 F LIC 1A 

Annex 1 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate 
under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 
 
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all 
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use 
additional sheets if necessary. 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  
I   Heena Kanani Principal Trading Standards Officer 

 

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below  
 

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details   
 
Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 
 

Polonez Ltd t/as Polonezz 14 Green Lanes London N13 6JR 

Post town 
 
Enfield  
 

Post code (if known)  
 
N13 6JR 

 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if 
known)  
 
Polonez Ltd 

 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known  
 
LN/201401122 

 

Part 2 - Applicant details  

I am  
 Please tick yes 

1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below) 
 

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises 
 
b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises 

 
c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises 

 
d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the 

premises 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 209



                       2                  F LIC 1A 

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)  

 

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) 
below) 

    

 

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 
 

Please tick 
Mr  Mrs  Miss  Ms  Other title       
 (for example, Rev) 
 
Surname  First names 

             

 
 Please tick yes 

I am 18 years old or over 
 

 

 

Current postal  
address if  
different from 
premises 
address 

      

 
Post town       Post Code       

 
Daytime contact telephone number       

 
E-mail address 
(optional)  

      

 

 

(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 

 
Name and address 
      

Telephone number (if any) 
      

E-mail address (optional)  
      

 

Page 210



                       3                  F LIC 1A 

 

 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 
 
 Name and address 
Heena Kanani 
Trading Standards 
London Borough of Enfield 
PO Box 57 
Civic Centre 
Silver Street 
EN1 3XH 

Telephone number: 020 8132 0687 

E-mail address: heena.kanani@enfield.gov.uk  

 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 
 Please tick one or more boxes 

1) the prevention of crime and disorder  
2) public safety  
3) the prevention of public nuisance  
4) the protection of children from harm  

 

Please state the ground(s) for review: (please read guidance note 1) 
 
Enfield trading standards is seeking a review of the premises licence on the grounds 
that smuggled goods have been found on the premises ie.  non-duty paid cigarettes. 
 
This review is primarily based on the prevention of crime and disorder licensing 
objective. The review application is to revoke the premises licence in its 
entirety. 
 
Background: 
 
On 29/10/19 - Officers from Enfield Council’s Trading Standards & Licensing 
Enforcement Team, the Police Licensing Officer, and a dog handler and dogs from 
Wagtail International carried out a day of unannounced visits to shops in the borough 
in a crackdown against the sale of illicit tobacco. 
 
One of the premises visited was Polonez Ltd. T/as Polonezz 14 Green Lanes London 
N13 6JR 
 
At the time of the visit there was one member of staff on the premises, a female.  Ms 
Monika BUGALSKA 
 
The premises was searched and a total of 74 packets of non-duty paid items were 
found and seized.  The packets had foreign labelling and were non duty paid.   
 

Officers found the following cigarettes behind the shop counter:-  

10 x Marlboro Red cigarettes (20 sticks) 
12 x Marlboro Gold cigarettes (20 sticks) 
52 x L & M Cigarettes (20) 
74 x 20 = 1480 sticks 
 
14 x Knipnik vodka 

Page 211



                       4                  F LIC 1A 

23 x Zubrowka Biala vodka 
3 x Nalewka Babini Cherry 
1x Nawleka Babini Hazelnut 
10 x Soplira Wisniowa 
51 bottles 
 
The documents issued on 29/10/19 are produced at Appendix 1 & 2, and the 
photos of the seized are produce at Appendix 3. 
 
Other 
 
On 22/11/19, Licensing officers carried out a licence inspection. 
The following conditions were not in compliance: 
Condition 10 & 11 No up to date invoices available at time of visit 
Condition 2 the CCTV was not working 
Condition 3 no signs were displayed – drinking control area.   
 
It was requested that these conditions brought into compliance within 7 days (ie. By 
29/11/19). 
 
Further checks required by Licensing. 
 
An inspection report of these outstanding conditions was completed by Claire, which 
was signed by and a copy issued to Mr Monika BUGALSKA, manager. 
 
The DPS Izabella Kusziola was not present at the time of either visit. 
 
There is no indication a valid licence is in place at present, the licensee has been 
asked to provide further information. 
 
 
Previous History 
 
26/1/2018 – seizure of 94 packets (20 cigarettes): 
60 x Marlboro gold 
12 x Chesterfield Blue 
2 x Marlboro Red 
20 x Marlboro Micro Beyond 
By Charlotte Palmer 
 
Minor variation licence issued with additional conditions issued 14 May 2018 
218005546 this can be found at Appendix 4. 
 
Additional Information: 
 
Home Office revised guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
(11.27), states that there are certain criminal activities that may arise in connection 
with licensed premises which should be treated particularly seriously. The list 
includes the use of licensed premises for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco 
and alcohol (i.e. non duty paid products). 
 
The guidance (11.28) goes on to say that it is envisaged that responsible authorities 
will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where 
reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention 
objective is being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is 

Page 212



                       5                  F LIC 1A 

expected that revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should be 
seriously considered.  
 
 
Conclusion: 
 
This is not the first time that smuggled goods have been found at this premises and 
trading standards is of the opinion that given the large volume of cigarettes seized it 
is appropriate to recommend that this licence be revoked.   
 
The cigarettes and alcohol were in plastic bags behind the counter and alleged to be 
for personal use, if this is the case they should have been kept in a place that is not 
commercial licensed premises. Trading Standards has a lack of confidence in the 
explanation offered by those involved in running the business.   
 
If the Licensing Committee is minded not to revoke the licence then trading standards 
ask that the licence be suspended until the following actions have been completed: 
 
1. Full compliance with the licence conditions has been demonstrated. 
2. The named DPS demonstrates a thorough understanding of the licence 

conditions and discusses with the licensing authority her intention to fully 
supervise and record compliance with the conditions or a Vary DPS application 
has been granted to a DPS who is capable of doing so. 

 
Trading Standards make no recommendation regarding amendments to the licence 
conditions, these had already been varied in May 2018 and have been demonstrated 
as not being adhered to. They contain the most appropriate and up to date conditions 
consistent with the Operating Schedule. 
 
Trading Standards reserve the right to add any additional information to support this 
review application. 
 

Suspension of Licence:                                                      N 
 
Revocation of Licence:                                                       Y 

Recommended period of suspension (max 3 months):  

 
A significant quantity of smuggled tobacco has been found at this premises.   
Having regard to the Home Office guidance the Licensing Authority feels it is 
appropriate to seek total revocation of the premises licence.  
 
 

Please tick yes 

Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before No  
 
If yes please state the date of that application 

Day Month Year 

   
 

 

If you have made representations before relating to these premises please state 
what they were and when you made them 
 
N/A 
 

Page 213



                       6                  F LIC 1A 

 

 

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON 
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
APPLICATION 
 
Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 3) 
 
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent 
(See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what 
capacity. 
 

Signature:      
 

Date: 17 Janaury 2020  
 

Capacity:  Principal Trading Standards Officer  
   

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for 
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5) 
      

Post town 
      

Post Code 
      

Telephone number (if any)        

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
mail address (optional)       

 
Notes for Guidance  

1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 
2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems 

which are included in the grounds for review if available. 
3. The application form must be signed. 
4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf 

provided that they have actual authority to do so. 
5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this 

application. 
 

Please tick yes 

 I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible 
authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club 
premises certificate, as appropriate 

 

 I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements 
my application will be rejected 

 

Page 214



                                                                                                                             
            
    

 
LICENSING AUTHORITY REPRESENTATION 

 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  

 
 
Name and address of premises:   Polonezz 
     14 Green Lanes 
     London 
     N13 6JR 
     
Type of Application:   Review of Premises Licence 
 
 
Detailed below is additional information not previously included in the review 
application submitted on 24th January 2020: 
 
 
11.02.2020 – 11:14 – 11:38 - Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer (CPX) visited the 
premises to carry out a premises licence inspection revisit.  Condition 2 relates to 
CCTV.  When the officer advised that they needed to check that the system was 
working the member of staff advised that they kept having issues with the CCTV and 
that it was fixed recently but that they have a problem with rates and that the rats keep 
chewing through the CCTV cables.  The officer asked if there was any evidence that 
the CCTV had been fixed and that there was a reoccurring issue with the system being 
damaged and was shown a folder full of invoices from Pest Control Companies.  The 
Manager spoke some English but not much so she made a phone call and handed the 
officer the phone to speak to the person.  The officer spoke to a lady who said she was 
a friend of the owner and that the owner was not available.  The officer advised why 
they were there and she told the officer that they had kept getting the CCTV fixed but 
that it kept breaking.  The officer advised that a licence review application had recently 
been submitted and that it was very import that the premises licence holder be able to 
demonstrate compliance with the licence condition as the results of each inspection 
would be submitted and considered as part of the licence review.  Whilst at the 
premises the officer also checked conditions 3 of the licence and advised the lady on 
the phone that a 'Designated Public Place Order' poster needed to be displayed at the 
exit.  The y officer advised that they would email a copy to them.  Also whist at the 
premises the officer checked to see if products had English labelling.  Not all products 
did but staff showed the officer that they had a machine via which staff or customers 
could scan the bar code of an item and it would print out a sticky label with the 
ingredient printed in English.  The officer completed an inspection report which was 
signed by the manager.  See Appendix 5. 
 
Once the officer left the premises they phoned Food Safety Team and advised them of 
the rat infestation.  The premises was subsequently closed until this issue was 
resolved.   
 
27/02/2020 – Out of Hours Licensing Enforcement Officers  (EVG/VPK) visited the 
premises to check the outstanding licence conditions.  Condition 10 -  Time on CCTV 
monitor was 2 hours 40 minutes fast.  This need correcting.  Staff unable to access 
password to access playback s unable to check how long footage was being stored for. 

Page 215



An inspection report was completed and a copy signed by and given to staff.  See 
Appendix 6. 
 

Page 216



Appendix 1 & 2Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Act 2003 

PART A – PREMISES LICENCE 

Granted by the London Borough of Enfield as Licensing 
Authority 

Premises Licence Number: LN/201401122 

Part 1 – Premises Details 

Postal address of premises: 
Premises name: 

Telephone number: 

Address: 

Polonezz 

Not provided 

14 Green Lanes LONDON N13 6JR 

Where the licence is time-limited, 
the dates: 

Not time limited 

The opening hours of the premises, the licensable activities authorised by 
the licence and the times the licence authorises the carrying out of those 
activities: 

Operating Schedule Details 

Location Whole premises 
Activity OPEN-Open to the Public 
Sunday 10:00-19:00 
Monday 09:00-20:00 
Tuesday 09:00-20:00 
Wednesday 09:00-20:00 
Thursday 09:00-20:00 
Friday 09:00-20:00 
Saturday 09:00-20:00 
Non-Standard Timings & Seasonal 
Variations 

Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday preceding 
Good Friday: 09:00 - 21:00 
21, 22 and 23 December (if on Monday to 
Saturday): 09:00 -21:00 
21, 22 and 23 December (if on a Sunday): 10:00 - 
21:00 

Location Off Supplies 
Activity ALCS-Supply of Alcohol 
Sunday 11:00-19:00 
Monday 09:00-20:00 
Tuesday 09:00-20:00 
Wednesday 09:00-20:00 

Annex 1  Appendix 4Page 225



Thursday 09:00-20:00 
Friday 09:00-20:00 
Saturday 09:00-20:00 
Non-Standard Timings & Seasonal 
Variations 
 

  

 

Page 226



Part 2 
 
Name and (registered) address of holder of premises licence: 

Name: 
 

Telephone number: 
 

e-mail: 
 

Address: 

Polonez Ltd 
 
Not provided 
 

 
 
Polonezz, 14 Green Lanes, LONDON, N13 6JR 

 
Registered number of holder (where 
applicable): 

09302439 

 
Name and (registered) address of second holder of premises licence 
(where applicable): 

Name: 
 

Telephone number: 
 

Address: 

Not applicable 
 
 

 
Name and address of designated premises supervisor (where the licence 
authorises the supply of alcohol): 

Name: 
 

Address: 

Ms Izabella Kuziola 
 

 
 
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by 
designated premises supervisor (where the licence authorises the supply 
of alcohol): 
Personal Licence Number: 

 
Issuing Authority: 

 
 
Croydon Council 

 
Premises Licence LN/201401122 was first granted on 25 March 2015.  
 

Signed:                   Date: 14 May 2018                         
 
for and on behalf of the 
London Borough of Enfield 
Licensing Unit, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield EN1 3XH 
Telephone: 020 8379 3578 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 227



Annex 1 - Mandatory Conditions 
 
The Mandatory Conditions are attached and form part of the Operating 
Schedule of your licence/certificate. You must ensure that the operation of 
the licensed premises complies with the attached Mandatory Conditions as 
well as the Conditions in Annex 2 and Annex 3 (if applicable). Failure to do 
this can lead to prosecution or review of the licence. 
 
Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 
 
1. There shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or 
matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in 
respect of children. 
 
2. A digital CCTV system must be installed in the premises complying 
with the following criteria: (1) Cameras must be sited to observe the 
entrance and exit doors both inside and outside, the alcohol displays, and 
floor areas; (2) Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots of 
the heads and shoulders of all people entering the premises i.e. capable of 
identification; (3) Cameras overlooking floor areas should be wide angled 
to give an overview of the premises; (4) Be capable of visually confirming 
the nature of the crime committed; (5) Provide a linked record of the date, 
time, and place of any image; (6) Provide good quality images; (7) Operate 
under existing light levels within and outside the premises; (8) Have the 
recording device located in a secure area or locked cabinet; (9) Have a 
monitor to review images and recorded picture quality; (10) Be regularly 
maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention; 
(11) Have signage displayed in the customer area to advise that CCTV is in 
operation; (12) Digital images must be kept for 31 days; (13) Police or 
authorised local authority employees will have access to images at any 
reasonable time; (14) The equipment must have a suitable export method, 
e.g. CD/DVD writer so that the police can make an evidential copy of the 
data they require. This data should be in the native file format, to ensure 
that no image quality is lost when making the copy. If this format is non-
standard (i.e. manufacturer proprietary) then the manufacturer should 
supply the replay software to ensure that the video on the CD can be 
replayed by the police on a standard computer. Copies must be made 
available to Police or authorised local authority employees on request. (15)  
At least one member of staff trained in how to operate the CCTV system 
and how to download images/footage shall be on the premises throughout 
the sale of alcohol hours. 
 
3. Signs shall be prominently displayed on the exit doors advising 
customers that the premises is in a 'Designated Public Place Order' and 
that alcohol should not be taken off the premises and consumed in the 
street.  These notices shall be positioned at eye level and in a location 
where those leaving the premises can read them. 
  
4. A written or electronic record of refused sales shall be kept on the 
premises and completed when necessary. This record shall be made 
available to Police and/or the Local Authority upon request and shall be 
kept for at least one year. 
 

Page 228



5. All staff at the premises shall receive induction and refresher training 
(at least every 3 months), relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and 
conditions of the premises licence. 
 
6. All training relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and 
conditions of the premises licence shall be documented and records kept 
at the premises. These records shall be made available to the Police and/or 
Local Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one year. 
 
7. The Local Authority or similar proof of age scheme shall be operated 
and relevant material shall be displayed at the premises. Only passport, 
photographic driving licences or ID with the P.A.S.S. logo (Proof of Age 
Standards Scheme) may be accepted. 
 
8. The premises licence holder shall ensure that the pavement from the 
building line to the kerb edge immediately outside the premises, including 
the gutter/channel at its junction with the kerb edge, is kept clean and free 
from litter at all material times to the satisfaction of the Licensing Authority.  
   
 
9. Only the Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor 
shall purchase alcohol and / or tobacco stock. 
 
10. Alcohol and tobacco stock shall only be purchased from registered 
wholesalers. 
 
11. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods 
bought are kept together in a file or folder as evidence that they have been 
brought into the UK through legal channels.  Receipts shall show the 
following details: (1) Seller's name and address; (2) Seller's company 
details, if applicable; (3) Seller's VAT details, if applicable.  Copies of these 
documents shall be retained for no less than 12 months and shall be made 
available to police or authorised officers of the council on request within 
five working days of the request.  The most recent three months' worth of 
receipts shall be kept on the premises and made available to the police or 
authorised officers of the council on request. 
 
12. All tobacco products which are not on the tobacco display shall be 
stored in a container clearly marked 'Tobacco Stock'.  This container shall 
be kept within the store room or behind the sales counter.   
 
13. Tobacco products shall only be taken from the tobacco display behind 
the sales counter in order to make a sale. 
 
Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority 
 
Not applicable 
 

Page 229



Annex 4 – Plans 

 

Page 230



Annex 1 – Mandatory Conditions 
 
Mandatory conditions where the licence authorises the sale of alcohol 
(Note: Conditions 4, 5, and 7 relate to on-sales only) 
 
These Mandatory Conditions form part of the Operating Schedule of your 
licence. You must ensure that the operation of the licensed premises 
complies with these Mandatory Conditions, as well as the Conditions 
stated in Annex 2 and Annex 3 (if applicable). Failure to do this can lead to 
prosecution or review of the licence. 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated 
premises supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises 
supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a 
person who holds a personal licence. 
 
4. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not 
carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 
following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises 
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to 
require or encourage, individuals to; 
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the 
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to 
encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 
24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a 
licensing objective; 
(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers 
on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other 
than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 
 
5. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on 
request to customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must 
ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in 
relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

Page 231



(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 
ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to 
be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 
photograph, date of birth and either - 
(a) a holographic mark, or 
(b) an ultraviolet feature. 
 
7. The responsible person must ensure that – 
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption 
on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made 
up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is 
available to customers in the following measures - 
(i) beer or cider: ½ pint; 
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 
(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 
which is available to customers on the premises; and 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity 
of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the 
premise licence in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor 
(if any) or any individual aged 18 or over who is authorised by either the licence 
holder or designated premises supervisor. For premises with a club premises 
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a 
capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8 (i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for 
consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted 
price. 
(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 
(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 
P = D+(DxV) 
Where - 
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty 
were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the 
value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 
(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a premises licence - 
(i) the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol 
under such a licence; 
(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 

Page 232



premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 
(e) "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the 
Value Added Tax Act 1994. 
(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart 
from this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that 
sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph 
rounded up to the nearest penny. 
(iv). (1) Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 
Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 
 
Supply of alcohol under a Club Premises Certificate 
The mandatory conditions 4 to 8 above will apply. If the club premises certificate 
authorises the supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises, the following 
three mandatory conditions must also be included: 
1. The supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises must be made at a 
time when the premises are open for the purposes of supplying alcohol to 
members of the club for consumption on the premises. 
2. Any alcohol supplied for consumption off the premises must be in a sealed 
container. 
3. Any alcohol supplied for consumption off the premises must be made to a 
member of the club in person. 
 
Supply of alcohol from community premises 
The following mandatory condition will replace the first three mandatory 
conditions above when an application is made for a premises licence by the 
management committee of community premises and the licensing authority also 
grants an application for this alternative licence condition to be included in the 
licence: 
1. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or 
authorised by the [management committee / management board / board of 
trustees]. 
 
Mandatory condition when a premises licence or a club premises certificate 
authorises the exhibition of films 
9. Admission of children to the premises must be restricted in accordance with 
the film classification recommended by the British Board of Film Classification or 
recommended by this licensing authority as appropriate. 
 
Mandatory Condition relating to door supervision which only applies where 
a premises licence includes a condition that one or more individuals must 
be at the premises to carry out a security activity 
10. All persons guarding premises against unauthorised access or occupation or 
against outbreaks of disorder or against damage (door supervisors) must be 
licensed by the Security Industry Authority. 
 

Page 233



This page is intentionally left blank



REF: Wll
t lcto3Ç315 LrcENstNG ENFORCEMENT tNSpEcTtoN REPORT

Awvd¿x 5
LICN 1

Premises Name a

I ç 6re<n Lrrr<.> ,. ñ J3 65T(
Premises
Address
Time of Visit:

During an inspection of your premises on ."...f /.il1. ...eh ...20.Ao..,..., the following was checked:

Part B of Premises Licence displayed?
Address & tel no. of PLH & DPS on licence ærrect?
Conditions of licence checked?

(lf incorrect, insert new details below)

Yes
Yes
Y

No

No

No. of cond on
not in

iance

¿

\ny other matter(s) that need addressing:

.Nof...qll .fh0cl[ctl ...ø.e...I*.Þ¿,ç{*d .ri.. ñt}.r.,\\....,11?weu.st....!l2s.{g..ir1...s..{y.}t.Ç.hrV..
dl^.ç* W+ ...Coo..,J-Ç"çc..fu....@ucÈ...mÇl ¡h*l--.çÀ.|ç¡¡Je.{...¿m.m....çru].r.{h...lS*h,,.

'ou are requlred to have the above matters attended to within ..7....4"y" of this notice. Failure to rectify the above,reaches may constitute a criminal offence and result in legal proceedings being brought agalnst you.

'1J

dence/Advice

fZo*x'"

5 1 €1r¡C l-çt.¡ <l c^-

bta/-{ !.kì-J -f,"/ f\ 1t^-c-

Lr-*

Ltc ING EN EMENT
Print Name of cers A nce:

c^1a rzucÍT4- ?a wtqu

you ave any gto report please contact
Charlotte Palmer, Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer via
C208 132 2004 or charlotte. enfield uk

can usr

RECI NOTICE
SÍgnatu

¿\\jvt

(v\Co,r\¿\q
Print ame Po

Email/Tel:

MEIROPOI¡fÀN
POL!C E

Appl

lf¡rf hO tðosús fur ¿ ¡gfur lsldoei

at enfield.gov.u

r*r¿FtP,,*

Page 235



REF: Wll 2 rq.o 3,ô 3+t
LICENSING ENFORCEMENT INSPECTION REPORT

ffiø^d;x 6' LtcN I

P, lo a-2-2-

Start

Â.)ri 6:5€..

Finish:rq r.çs-

tk $r,r-o,r^- L.clú.9s

Premises Name
Pre
Address

me of

rart B of Premises Licence displayed?
\ddress & tel no. of PLH & DPS on licence correct?
londitions of licence checked?

During an inspection of your premises on .ff.._Þ.ç:..$.9f.Þ..... .20.2p......., the foilowing was checked:

Yes
Yes
Yes

r
n
n

Notr
Notr
Non

(lf incorrect, insêrt new details below)

No. of condition
not in

rance

"L

c.\Ò

ou are required to have the above matters attended to within
reaches may constitute a criminal offence and result in legal

notice. Failure to rectify the above
brought agalnst you.

CvlCùMlr'
(. J}Jí.

z.
....'1....days of this
proceedings being

Evidence/Advice

Vrsrt tojtr( <Z

srL-|.'
CC ]! 'rv\Cur:fcr r,-> Lltct¡S ç (),4,t-r'ntÂe :

-I*l'r.-,s ¡r\eer{J Cc¡r / e(r

Sf¿l Ltaâl, LA I-ù CrC C-aJ':¡
T-O âCC-Q,S' üt

-ICENS E
)rint Name of Officers in Attendance:

V r c,rU €" ç"roRpty(r J

Ettì¿ (\v e-Qv1

f you have any gueries relating report please contact
)harlotte Palmer, Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer via
12081322O04 or

forms can

RECI CE
Signature:

CASh'QI
Print lrkr& on

¡
s&ñ^k¡^\

Email/Tel:

MEIROPOTIIAN
¡toLtc E

I^,trkllg toqsür fü e FfEr Lddoo

uk
gov.u

Elt

Page 236



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 22.1.2020 

 

- 362 - 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 22 JANUARY 2020 

 
COUNCILLORS  
 
PRESENT (Chair) Chris Bond, Mahym Bedekova and Maria Alexandrou 
 
ABSENT  

 
OFFICERS: Ellie Green (Principal Licensing Officer), Charlotte Palmer 

(Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer), Catriona McFarlane 
(Legal Services Representative), Jane Creer (Democratic 
Services) 

  
Also Attending: (Item 3) 

2 representatives on behalf of Euro International (applicant) 
(Item 4) 
3 representatives on behalf of Fresh Food Centre (applicant) 

 
414   
WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Councillor Bond (Chair) welcomed all those present and explained the order 
of the meeting. 
 
415   
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
NOTED there were no declarations of interest. 
 
416   
EURO INTERNATIONAL, 212-214 CHASE SIDE, ENFIELD EN2 0QX  
(REPORT NO. 187)  
 
RECEIVED the application made by Mr Ali Serbet for the premises situated at 
Euro International, 212-214 Chase Side, Enfield, EN2 0QX for a New 
Premises Licence. 
 
NOTED 
 
1. The introduction by Ellie Green, Principal Licensing Officer, including: 

 
a. This was a new premises licence application. At the Licensing Sub 

Committee (LSC) hearing in December, the applicant Mr Serbet had 
attended to request an adjournment to allow the applicant to obtain 
legal advice, which was granted. 

b. A similar premises licence at the premises was surrendered by Mr 
Hikmet Samsun on 19 October 2019. Mr Serbet had applied for the 

Page 237 Agenda Item 7



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 22.1.2020 

 

- 363 - 

same hours as the previous licence: opening hours 06:30 to 00:00 and 
supply of alcohol (off sales) 08:00 to 00:00 daily. 

c. It should be noted that Mr Serbet had former involvement in the 
premises. This formed the basis of the Licensing Authority and Police’s 
objections. Those representations were based on the prevention of 
crime and disorder licensing objective. The Licensing Authority sought 
additional conditions (set out in Annex 7 of the report) to be included on 
the licence should LSC be minded to grant the application, and the 
applicant had agreed to all the conditions proposed. 

d. The applicant had now provided a written representation, set out in 
Annex 6. 

e. Mr Serbet was in attendance at the hearing, with Mr Ali Hussain of AHS 
Law. Charlotte Palmer was in attendance, representing the Licensing 
Authority. PC Karen Staff sent apologies on behalf of the Police, but 
had no further information to add. 

 
2. The statement of Mr Hussain on behalf of Mr Serbet, the applicant, 

including: 
 
a. The core issue around the application was whether the licensing 

objectives could be met. 
b. There had been incidents at these and related premises, and the 

concerns of the Police and Licensing Authority were understood. 
c. He wanted in no way to undermine those concerns, but Mr Serbet had 

taken advice on and tried to address them so there would not be 
problems in the future. 

d. The applicant’s representation was highlighted, and it was submitted 
that going forward the licence could be safely and properly granted.  

e. The 2016 incident was subject to court proceedings and the charges 
were dismissed in respect of whether Mr Serbet was involved in selling 
contraband cigarettes. It was asked that undue weight was not placed 
on those previous matters, which were also some time ago. 

f. In respect of the further incident in August 2018 at the Bush Hill Park 
premises where non-duty paid cigarettes were found on Mr Serbet; he 
told authorities at the time that these cigarettes were given to him as a 
gift by someone who was visiting. The packets were in a carton and Mr 
Serbet was going to smoke them and not sell them. 

g. In respect of the incident on 3 December 2019, that sale was done by a 
staff member, Mehmet, and as soon as Mr Serbet was aware of that 
sale Mehmet was dismissed. In the circumstances Mr Serbet took 
appropriate action. The sale was made without his knowledge and he 
made no financial gain from that transaction. Indeed it would be foolish 
to be involved in illegal selling whilst having a licensing application in 
process. However, Mr Serbet takes responsibility for those working at 
the premises and he took appropriate action. 

h. Going forward, all the objections had been considered, and Mr Serbet 
was committed to complying with all the licence conditions. Ada 
Consulting had been instructed to provide a training programme and 

Page 238



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 22.1.2020 

 

- 364 - 

advice on supervision, maintaining registers, etc. Mr Serbet would be 
supported by Ada Consulting who also had Turkish speakers and could 
translate documents to ensure Mr Serbet understood what was 
expected of him. Concerns such as the display of posters had been 
addressed. 

i. Mr Serbet had invested a considerable amount of time in the business. 
He was the leaseholder and was responsible for paying the rent and 
bills. He employed three people at the premises. Mr Serbet was the 
Designated Premises Supervisor and had another trained employee, 
Hussain. 

j. All efforts had been made since October in respect of compliance with 
the licence. Mr Serbet was committed and determined to ensure the 
business succeeded. The business would be operated within the law 
and Mr Serbet would meet the licensing objectives. He understood that 
the licence may be reviewed and revoked otherwise. 

 
3. Mr Serbet and his representative responded to questions, including: 

 
a. In response to the Chair’s queries, Mr Hussain clarified that his contact 

with Ada Consulting had taken place yesterday, but that the company 
had been instructed by Mr Serbet in October and they had been 
working together for three months. Mr Hussain had asked and received 
confirmation about the training provided by Ada Consulting to Mr 
Serbet. 

b. In response to questions from Charlotte Palmer, Senior Licensing 
Enforcement Officer, Mr Serbet advised that he was present at the 
premises every morning, and that all the staff at the premises were new 
and had not been involved in the premises previously.  

c. In response to further questions regarding Mr Serbet’s takeover of the 
business, he confirmed that he had taken control of the business seven 
to eight months ago. When asked why the application had not been 
made earlier than October, and noting that there had been a breach of 
conditions for several months, Mr Serbet apologised but that those 
running the premises had run away and left behind bills and no stock. 
He had given the Police that information. He did not know what he had 
to do in respect of the licence. When asked specifically about the 
licence condition mentioning his name, Mr Serbet referred to the 2016 
court case, and stated that he had not read the premises licence as he 
had too many bills to deal with. 

d. In response to further queries as to how the licence could be complied 
with if Mr Serbet was not aware of its conditions, and how the Licensing 
Authority could have confidence in him as licence holder, Mr Hussain 
confirmed that Mr Serbet had to accept that he should not have been at 
the business, but he had been trying to explain the situation. 

 
4. The statement of Charlotte Palmer, Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer, 

on behalf of the Licensing Authority, including: 
 

Page 239



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 22.1.2020 

 

- 365 - 

a. Although this application was for a new premises licence, Mr Serbet 
had held the licence previously. That licence was revoked in April 2016 
on grounds including that the premises had been found to be selling 
non-duty paid alcohol and tobacco and breaching other licence 
conditions. 

b. Mr Serbet had connections to another licensed premises in Bush Hill 
Park, and in August 2018 was working there when seven packets of 
non-duty paid cigarettes were found on his person. These were 
advised to be for personal use, but this was a commercial premises 
where having those cigarettes would be a silly thing to do, particularly 
after having been taken to court previously. Mr Serbet appeared at best 
naïve. 

c. In October 2018 during a further illicit tobacco check, three packets of 
non-duty paid cigarettes were found in a jacket in the store room and 
Mr Serbet was working at the premises at the time of the visit. 

d. At a visit by Trading Standards officers on 3 December 2019 a test 
purchase, asking for ‘cheap tobacco’, was made and a packet of 
cigarettes which appeared to be non-duty paid was sold by a member 
of staff that was not Mr Serbet. 

e. The issues in respect of businesses owned by Mr Serbet had led the 
Licensing Authority to lack confidence in him to hold a licence. The 
Licensing Authority therefore continued to object to this application in 
its entirety. 

 
5. The summary statement by Ellie Green, Principal Licensing Officer, that 

having heard all the representations it was for the LSC to consider whether 
the application was appropriate and in support of the licensing objectives. 
The potential steps the sub committee may be minded to take were set out 
in the officers’ covering report, along with relevant guidance and policy. 
 

6. The summary statement of Charlotte Palmer, Senior Licensing 
Enforcement Officer, that the repeated non-duty paid tobacco seizures had 
led to the Licensing Authority’s lack of confidence in Mr Serbet to operate 
a licence and to object to this application. 

 
7. The summary statement of Mr Ali Hussain on behalf of the applicant that 

Mr Serbet’s previous incidents could be summed up as silly and naïve. 
Action had now been taken to ensure compliance with the licence. Mr 
Serbet had learned his lesson. There had been meetings and discussions 
and he knew he could not fail in the business as his livelihood depended 
on it. The licensing conditions had been discussed at length with Mr Serbet 
and he did understand them. 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
1. In accordance with the principles of Section 100(a) of the Local 

Government Act 1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting 
for this item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 

Page 240



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 22.1.2020 

 

- 366 - 

disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act. 

 
The Panel retired, with the legal representative and committee 
administrator, to consider the application further and then the meeting 
reconvened in public. 
 

2. The Chairman made the following statement: 
 

“We have listened and read and considered all of the evidence put 
before us and find we are not persuaded that Mr Serbet has the 
capability to run any business which involves licensed premises. 
 
Mr Serbet previously ran a business at this site and lost that licence. 
The licence granted to the new business at that premises, included a 
condition that Mr Serbet could not be involved in it. When those licence 
holders left in the summer of 2019, Mr Serbet took over the business in 
specific breach of that licence condition. Mr Serbet said he didn’t know 
this. The fact makes the Licensing Sub Committee (LSC) believe Mr 
Serbet is incapable of running any licensed business in accordance 
with its conditions. 
 
Further, at another shop owned by Mr Serbet/his company, another 
staff illegally sold non-duty paid cigarettes. The LSC are persuaded 
that Mr Serbet lacks the ability even now after training to manage his 
staff to prevent from doing illegal activity on his premises.” 
 

3. The Licensing Sub-Committee resolved that the application be refused. 
 
417   
FRESH FOOD CENTRE, 220-222 HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD EN3 5BH  
(REPORT NO. 188)  
 
RECEIVED the application made by KYK Trading Ltd for the premises 
situated at Fresh Food Centre, 220-222 Hertford Road, Enfield, EN3 5BH for 
a New Premises Licence. 
 
NOTED 
 
1. The introduction by Ellie Green, Principal Licensing Officer, including: 

 
a. This was an application for a new premises licence, and the applicant 

was KYK Trading Ltd. The proposed Designated Premises Supervisor 
(DPS) was Mr Talip Kaynar, as per the existing premises licence. He 
was also a Director of the company. 

b. Since 2009 a licence had been held at the premises. There had been 
no review applications for the existing licence. 

Page 241



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 22.1.2020 

 

- 367 - 

c. This new application sought 24 hour opening and sale of alcohol 24 
hours daily. 

d. Current timings for opening and supply of alcohol were both 08:00 to 
23:00 daily. 

e. An objection to the hours sought had been made by the Licensing 
Authority and the Police due to the premises being in the Enfield 
Highway Cumulative Impact Policy (CIP) Area and seeking times in line 
with the CIP of 08:00 to 00:00 daily. 

f. Authorities may seek additional conditions to the licence should it be 
minded to grant a full 24 hour licence. 

g. The applicant had not given indication before the hearing in respect of 
additional conditions proposed by the responsible authorities whether 
the conditions were agreed. 

h. There was an automatic presumption of refusal for applications outside 
the CIP core hours. It was for the applicant to set out what mitigation 
measures would be taken and why the application should be an 
exception to the CIP policy. 

i. KYK Trading were represented at the hearing by two of the Directors, 
and by Mr David Dadds, Dadds LLP Solicitors. 

j. PC Karen Staff gave apologies for absence at the hearing, but did not 
wish to add anything further to the written representation on behalf of 
the Police. 

 
2. The statement of Mr Dadds, solicitor on behalf of the applicant, including: 

 
a. The applicant had not made any further written submissions as they 

expected to provide their responses at the hearing. 
b. There were only two representations against the application, from the 

responsible authorities. 
c. The business was described: it was a fairly big store/small supermarket 

operation which had undergone substantial investment to bring it up to 
a very high standard. A sum of £885,000 had been invested in the refit. 
21 staff were employed at the premises. It stocked over 7,000 product 
lines. Alcohol sales were a component of the business but not a 
majority: the store plan showed alcohol taking up around 10 – 12% of 
the floor area, in one corner. 

d. The application had been written with conditions that should rebut the 
presumption of refusal, as they provided more than adequate 
mitigation. If the licensing objectives were being promoted, the licence 
should be granted. In this case the conditions and the way the 
premises operated showed that the applicants believed they can 
promote the licensing objectives. 

e. Two representations had been received from the responsible 
authorities. There were no representations from members of the public 
and no representations from local councillors. On a visit to the area he 
had spoken to a community warden who told him there were no issues 
in the immediate area in respect of street drinking or any particular 
crime issues over and above what could be seen in any town. 

Page 242



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 22.1.2020 

 

- 368 - 

f. With reference to the Police report, if they were just looking at the CIP 
policy and objecting on that basis only, that would be unlawful and 
arbitrary. Guidance said that anyone making a representation should 
refer back to the information that put the policy in place, or the issues in 
the area. Enfield’s CIP policy was five years old, and a lot may change 
over that time span. The onus would be on the Police to refer to any 
anti-social behaviour, nuisance or crime and disorder locally, with areas 
where problems were occurring identified with specific days, times, 
issues, etc. That there were special policies did not relieve the 
responsible authorities of the need to make such representations. Each 
application should still be considered individually in each case. There 
was no history of crime and disorder at this premises, and nothing of 
particular concern was raised in the Police written representation. 

g. A CIP would deal with a number of licensed premises in a given area 
where the concentration caused problems such as queueing for taxis 
and for late night food. There was no such cumulative effect in this 
vicinity.  

h. In respect of an off-licence, the only concerns could be street drinking 
and anti-social behaviour. It was understood there was a 24-hour shop 
around 300 metres away that would have been a good source of 
reference. It had been hoped to seek clarification from the Police at this 
hearing. As there was no Police representative in attendance, it may be 
assumed that there was no concerning crime and disorder in the area. 
The Police may have objected purely on the grounds of the CIP policy, 
but the reasoning was weak. 

i. In respect of hours, the aspiration for the business was to trade 24 
hours, and the operators believed this could be done safely and in 
promotion of the licensing objectives. He would ask, if the panel were 
not minded to grant 24 hours, that they would look at giving later 
licensed hours until at least 02:00. Data was not available for nearby 
businesses, but the councillors may be able to use their local 
knowledge. 

j. He had asked Licensing Authority officers if there could be discussion 
around the times, but been told that the Council policy had to be 
upheld. This fed back to his argument that this was just a policy 
decision. 

k. In respect of the conditions requested by the Police, these were in 
principle acceptable except for 1) c. that cameras overlooking floor 
areas should be wide angled. The operators would argue that not all 
cameras should or needed to be wide angled; for example cameras 
covering the doorway. This premises had sophisticated CCTV with 56 
cameras, which were all electronic and able to be viewed remotely. 
Otherwise, the Police’s proposed conditions, with the exception of the 
change of hours, were all agreed. 

l. Similarly, in respect of the Licensing Authority representation, there 
was no information referring back to the data at the time of the CIP 
policy coming into force, five years ago. There was no evidence of anti-

Page 243



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 22.1.2020 

 

- 369 - 

social behaviour, complaints, street drinking, noise, etc from 
Environmental Health. 

m. After midnight, this vicinity was very quiet: too quiet. There was no 
cumulative impact and no issues. It was not considered that there 
would be issues when the business was operating at night either. Even 
if licensable activities were not granted beyond 02:00 the shop would 
want to open 24 hours. 

n. The arrival of the shop was well received by local residents, and there 
was demand for 24 hour opening. The shop would offer a range of 
products that the community wanted. The business wanted to be a part 
of the community, and did not want to undermine the licensing 
objectives. 

o. In respect of the conditions requested by the Licensing Authority, he 
suggested the amendment from ’regularly’ to ‘monthly’ checking of the 
refusals system to ensure it is being consistently used by all staff. This 
amended wording would be more specific, and enforceable, and had 
been agreed with the Licensing Authority. 

p. He had not been given the opportunity to look at any other conditions 
should the panel be minded to grant later hours. 

 
3. The applicant and representative responded to questions, including: 

 
a. Councillor Alexandrou questioned known demand if the vicinity was 

quiet at night, and the likely volume of alcohol sales. It was advised that 
the shop had only been open for three weeks, and that alcohol had 
been around 8% of sales. Rather than an off-licence, this was a 
supermarket, with high sales of food, and a bakery, for which there 
would still be a demand. The business wanted to establish and to 
improve. This was a commercial decision to open 24 hours. There was 
no cumulative impact effect and no reason the shop should be stopped 
from opening. The Legal Services representative confirmed that the 
panel did not have to consider the commercial demand for the 
business. 

b. In response to the Chair’s queries regarding investigations made 
locally, it was confirmed that data had been sought for crime and 
disorder within a 200 metre radius and that the surrounding area had 
been walked, looking out for evidence of street drinking or other issues. 
This visit was confirmed as being during the daytime 11:30 to 13:30. 
There were no specific issues raised by the Police, or relevant 
evidence. 

 
4. The statement of Charlotte Palmer, Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer, 

on behalf of the Licensing Authority, including: 
 
a. The objection was on grounds of prevention of crime and disorder. This 

application was for a large convenience store for 24 hour opening, on 
Hertford Road, but there were residential properties above and in 
nearby side streets.  

Page 244



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 22.1.2020 

 

- 370 - 

b. This morning, the applicant had agreed to all conditions suggested by 
the Licensing Authority with one slight amendment: to replace the word 
‘regularly’ with ‘monthly’, which was agreed. 

c. Had there been communication from the applicant before today, the 
Licensing Authority and the Police would have been able to provide 
more information in respect of the representations. 

d. The premises was already licensed to 23:00. The licence was 
transferred on 5/11/19, and Mr Kaynar had been the Designated 
Premises Supervisor since 6/1/20. The Licensing Authority therefore 
had little time to judge if there was compliance with the licence or any 
nuisance. There had previously been concern in respect of crime and 
disorder and nuisance in this area. 

e. As the premises was in the CIP area there was a presumption that 
applications outside the CIP core hours would be refused. The onus fell 
on the applicant to show there would be no negative impact on the 
area. It was not for residents or councillors to say why the panel should 
go against policy. 

f. At the time of the application, no additional information had been 
provided in respect of the CIP and the applicant had still not stated 
what steps would be taken over and above the conditions on the 
current licence in respect of why the CIP policy should not apply. 

g. The Licensing Authority believed that the applicant had failed to 
demonstrate why the CIP policy should not apply in this case. They had 
suggested that the area was too quiet at night: maybe that was 
because the CIP was doing what it was designed to do. 

h. Updated statistics for the CIP were published online in December and 
would be coming into force this week. The data suggested that the CIP 
was still needed in the area and should apply. 

i. The Licensing Authority recommended that times were limited for the 
sale of alcohol in line with the core CIP hours. 

 
5. In response to the Chair’s query, it was confirmed that there were now few 

late night licensed premises in the area. 
 

6. The summary statement by Ellie Green, Principal Licensing Officer, that 
having heard all the representations it was for the Licensing Sub 
Committee to consider whether the application was appropriate and in 
support of the licensing objectives. The potential steps the sub committee 
may be minded to take were set out in the officers’ covering report, along 
with relevant guidance. 

 
7. The summary statement of Charlotte Palmer, Senior Licensing 

Enforcement Officer, that the Licensing Authority saw no reason why the 
CIP should not apply to this application, and recommended that a licence 
be granted to 00:00 only. 

 
8. The summary statement of Mr Dadds, solicitor on behalf of the applicant, 

highlighting statutory guidance and that every application should be 

Page 245



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 22.1.2020 

 

- 371 - 

determined on its own merits. There had not been more discussion in 
advance of the hearing as it was known that negotiation was limited as this 
was a policy decision by officers. A CIP should manage the issues within 
an area, not shut it down. There did not appear to be a large night time 
economy here. If there was new crime data, this could have been served 
as a representation. The application with conditions submitted would 
promote the licensing objectives, and was a good addition to the 
community. 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
1. In accordance with the principles of Section 100(a) of the Local 

Government Act 1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting 
for this item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act. 

 
The Panel retired, with the legal representative and committee 
administrator, to consider the application further and then the meeting 
reconvened in public. 
 

2. The Chairman made the following statement: 
 

“The LSC have considered the evidence before them today. 
 
We accept that evidence to support why the CIP should apply in these 
circumstances is not strong. Therefore we are granting this for the 
hours requested but with the varied wording of the conditions agreed 
here today at the hearing.” 
 

3. The Licensing Sub-Committee resolved that the application be granted 
in full as follows: 

 
Opening hours:  24 hours daily 
Supply of alcohol (off sales):  24 hours daily 

 
Conditions (in accordance with Annex 5 of the LSC report): 

 
Conditions 1 to 12, amended as agreed: to remove Condition 2(c) and 
to amend Condition 8 that the Designated Premises Supervisor shall 
‘monthly’ check the refusals system. 

 
418   
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
AGREED the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 18 December 2019 
as a correct record. 
 

Page 246



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 22.1.2020 

 

- 372 - 

 
 

Page 247



This page is intentionally left blank



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 26.2.2020 

 

- 422 - 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 26 FEBRUARY 2020 

 
COUNCILLORS  
 
PRESENT (Chair) Mahmut Aksanoglu, Christine Hamilton and Jim 

Steven 
 
ABSENT  

 
OFFICERS: Ellie Green (Principal Licensing Officer), Charlotte Palmer 

(Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer), Dina Boodhun (Legal 
Services Representative), Jane Creer (Democratic Services) 

  
Also Attending: 2 representatives on behalf of Interested Parties and 6 

observers 
5 representatives on behalf of Ponders End Smallholders 
Association 

 
483   
WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Councillor Aksanoglu as Chair welcomed all those present and explained the 
order of the meeting. 
 
484   
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
NOTED there were no declarations of interest. 
 
485   
PONDERS END SMALLHOLDERS ASSOCIATION, 82A CHURCH ROAD, 
ENFIELD EN3 4NU  (REPORT NO. 209)  
 
RECEIVED the application made by the Licensing Authority for a review of the 
Club Premises Certificate (LN/200600378) held by Ponders End Smallholders 
Association at the premises known as and situated at Ponders End 
Smallholders Association, 82A Church Road, Enfield, EN3 4NU. 
 
NOTED 
 
1. The introduction by Ellie Green, Principal Licensing Officer, including: 

 
a. This was a review application by the Licensing Authority for the club 

premises certificate held by Ponders End Smallholders Association, 
known as PEDSA. 

Page 249



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 26.2.2020 

 

- 423 - 

b. PEDSA was a long-established allotments society registered members 
club, which placed separate obligations on the club in respect of club 
rules and constitution via the Financial Service Authority (FSA). 

c. Club premises certificates were only made available under the 
legislation to qualifying members clubs, and the club activities may be 
carried on for club members, bona fide guests or associate club 
members and their guests. 

d. The legislation allowed clubs to operate licensable club activities 
without a designated premises supervisor or personal licence holder(s). 

e. No general public licensable activities may take place reliant on a club 
premises certificate as these would need to be authorised by means of 
a full premises licence or else temporary event notices. 

f. The current club premises certificate permitted 24 hour opening and 
recorded music, late night refreshment, and supply of alcohol (on and 
off supplies) Sunday 12:00 to 22:30, Monday to Saturday 10:00 to 
23:00. 

g. The Licensing Authority and Enforcement Team had submitted the 
review in respect of the prevention of crime and disorder licensing 
objective. The Licensing Authority had lost confidence that the club was 
being run in line with the legal requirements and had ceased to be a 
qualifying club. 

h. The Licensing Authority considered that it was now appropriate, for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives, to withdraw the club premises 
certificate in its entirety. 

i. No representations were received on behalf of the Responsible 
Authorities. 

j. Three representations were received from local residents supporting 
the review application, referred to as IP1 to IP3, and set out in Annex 4 
of the report. IP1 and IP3 were unable to attend the meeting, but IP2 
was in attendance and represented by Mr Dennis Defur. 

k. On behalf of PEDSA, Ms Linda Marsh was in attendance and Ms Maria 
Swords would be speaking on her behalf. 

 
2. The statement of Charlotte Palmer, Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer, 

on behalf of the Licensing Authority, including: 
 
a. The review was brought on the grounds of prevention of crime and 

disorder, because the Licensing Authority did not believe that the club 
was being run in line with the legislative requirements.  

b. A club premises certificate was only available to qualifying clubs, 
meeting the criteria that it is established and run in good faith. The 
Licensing Authority was of the opinion that the club had ceased to be a 
qualifying club and that it was no longer being conducted in good faith, 
and that the licensing objective was being undermined. 

c. The club was not meeting requirements in respect of accounts, its 
committee, or club rules. 

Page 250



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 26.2.2020 

 

- 424 - 

d. Section 63 of the Licensing Act 2003, as set out on page 5 of the 
agenda report set out details in respect of determining whether a club 
was established and conducted in good faith. 

e. Missing accounts in 2016 resulted in a previous review hearing on 
16/08/17. Issues raised at that time had still not been resolved. The 
Licensing Authority had contacted the club numerous times regarding 
submission of accounts, but they had not been provided to the 
Licensing Authority, the FCA, or to the club members. Several excuses 
had been given, including that documents had been returned in the 
post. Officers were told there had been a fire at the accountants office, 
that there were difficulties in communication, and that mail had been 
intercepted and returned, and that a previous member had withheld 
paperwork. However, this was not a new issue, and there were now 
accounts outstanding for four years. Good record keeping was 
important to show that the club was run in good faith. 

f. Section 64 of the Licensing Act 2003 required that the purchase of 
alcohol for the club and the supply of alcohol by the club was managed 
by a committee, and set out how this should be run. In October 2019 
the Licensing Authority requested copies of minutes for committee 
meetings for the last 18 months. To date these had not been provided 
and there was no evidence of compliance, or that committee members 
were elected by members of the club. There should be accurate 
records and voting. The lack of elections and AGM meetings had wider 
implications. The lease would end in 2020. The Council would require 
documentary evidence. 

g. The Licensing Authority was given an updated rulebook after the 
review in 2017, provided as Annex 2 to the report. Rule 19 advised that 
the accounts shall be submitted and the officers for the ensuing year 
elected at the Annual General Meeting (AGM). Historically the AGM 
had taken place in June. At a meeting on 21/10/19 she had been told 
there was no AGM in 2019 and it was not recalled if there had been 
one in 2018. The club was not following its own rules. 

h. When the current rulebook was requested, an old version from 1990 
was submitted. It was therefore questioned which rules the club was 
using. 

i. Two and a half years after the review hearing there was still a confused 
situation at the club. 

j. Withdrawal of the club premises certificate would mean that the club 
would have to stop selling alcohol, late night refreshment, and 
regulated entertainment, and would have to remove the gaming 
machines. 

k. If the club could demonstrate that they were a qualifying club, they 
could apply for a new club premises certificate. This would involve 
meeting the criteria that it was established and run in good faith, and 
that it followed its own rules. 

l. The Licensing Authority considered that at present the prevention of 
crime and disorder licensing objective was being undermined, and that 
the club premises certificate should be withdrawn. 

Page 251



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 26.2.2020 

 

- 425 - 

 
3. The statement on behalf of the interested parties, including:  

 
a. Since the review in August 2017 the club had failed in compliance and 

governance, and in respect of the FCA and its own rules. 
b. Members had been dissatisfied with this group of people for bad 

management over many years. They had found it difficult to access the 
clubhouse and site. 

c. Members were not aware of the financial state of the club, and were 
concerned about the accounts. 

d. There had been no notification or vote involving plot holders in respect 
of use of part of the premises for the Sonny the Snail charity or their 
event advertised on FaceBook and other sites. 

e. PEDSA was subject to the Co-operative and Community Benefit 
Societies Act 2014 and needed to meet its requirements, which it had 
not done. By its failure to send the rulebook to the FCA, PEDSA had 
committed an offence under the Act, and could be potentially 
misleading to the public. 

f. Other concerns related to payment of fees to the Council, and to 
ongoing employment tribunal proceedings. 

g. As the club had not complied with the regulations they had committed 
an offence and the club premises certificate should be suspended. 

 
4. The statement by Maria Swords on behalf of PEDSA, including: 

 
a. The issues were understood and not denied by the club, which had 

been lackadaisical with its paperwork. 
b. She had been doing her best as assistant to Linda Marsh. 
c. There were accusations of people not being let in the clubhouse, but if 

they had not paid, people could not be members. There had been 
slander and complaints. 

d. She had brought more paperwork to the hearing, which she apologised 
had not been provided previously. They were short of time as they all 
worked, but they had tried their best. 

e. Things had been difficult around holding an AGM but members had 
been asked their views in the clubhouse. 

f. A direct debit was set up to pay the Council for everything, but the club 
was not receiving all the monies it should because of wayward people, 
and Linda had paid out of her own pocket to keep things going. As they 
were not plot holders, they could not go on to the plots, and some 
members did not know who to pay.  

g. A lot of documentation had been sent to PEDSA’s accountant Mr 
Mandra. There had been problems with paperwork being intercepted in 
the post, so a home address was now used. 

h. Meetings were held every three months to let everybody know what 
was going on. It was acknowledged that the AGM was outstanding, but 
it was hoped to have an AGM this year. 

Page 252



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 26.2.2020 

 

- 426 - 

i. Members had been asked for signatures / proof of membership, and 
asked if they wanted anyone else to take over running the club. They 
were just trying to save the club for the members who came in. 

j. They did not sublet to anybody. Sonny the Snail was a charity who 
were accommodated for free, with nothing given or taken from them. 

 
5. Maria Swords responded to questions as follows: 

 
a. In response to the Chair’s queries about what measures had been 

taken by the club, it was advised that they had been trying to find the 
paperwork so that it could be submitted. A lot of documentation had 
been provided to their accountant this week and it was hoped to hold 
an AGM as soon as possible. They were trying to get things back in 
order so everybody could carry on. The genuine members wanted 
them to carry on with the club and that is what they were trying to do for 
them. 

b. In response to interested parties’ queries why things were not done 
around governance issues after the last review, it was advised that the 
committee members at the time did try but had not been successful. 
The committee members had changed and it was not easy to get 
information from people who had left. In addition, there were issues 
with the employment tribunal and conflict. 

c. The Chair confirmed that the issue relating to non payment of fees to 
the Council had been resolved. 

d. In response to queries from Charlotte Palmer, it was confirmed that 
there was no AGM in 2018 or 2019, as paperwork was unavailable as 
explained. It was confirmed that accounts since 2016 were still not 
available, but that it was hoped this would be rectified soon. It was 
thought that the club was still using the 2017 rulebook, but confirmed 
that this had not been sent to the FCA. 

e. In response to Charlotte Palmer’s queries regarding minutes of 
meetings relating to the decision to allow a plot to be used by a third 
party (Sonny the Snail charity), Ricky Kemp clarified that he had asked 
the committee, and because no money was taken and this was an up 
and coming charity, it was agreed they could have the plot. It was 
thought to be ok as there was also a plot for community use which had 
been similarly used for years. It was advised there had been meetings 
and that everyone was fine with this use, but it was confirmed there 
was no formal approval of a club decision, or minutes of meetings. 

f. In response to Charlotte Palmer’s query as to why no minutes had 
been submitted to her as requested, it was advised that some had 
been brought along to this hearing, but that the filing system was non-
existent and they were not sure that they had everything, but they were 
doing their best. 

g. In response to a query from interested parties as to whether more effort 
and time could have been put into better organisation, it was advised 
that the majority of committee members worked every day and they did 
not have much spare time. They did their best and held most things at 

Page 253



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 26.2.2020 

 

- 427 - 

weekends so people were given the opportunity to come in and sort 
things out. They collected money and held meetings at weekends. A lot 
of weekend time was spent trying to help the club. 

 
6. The summary statement by Ellie Green, Principal Licensing Officer, that 

having heard from all of the parties it was for the Licensing Sub-Committee 
to consider the potential steps it may take, as set out in paragraph 4.14 of 
the report. Further guidance and policy was also set out in the report. 
 

7. The summary statement of Charlotte Palmer, Senior Licensing 
Enforcement Officer, that there was currently a lack of transparency in 
everything the club did. There were no published accounts, no AGM, no 
meeting minutes. It was alleged that the committee was self-elected and 
run, and there had been no evidence to contradict that. There had been 
ample time to meet the criteria for a qualifying club. It was the Licensing 
Authority’s opinion that the club premises certificate should be withdrawn. 

 
8. The summary statement on behalf of the interested parties, that the club 

disregarded rules and regulations. The rulebook had not been sent to the 
FCA, and accounts had not been filed, in breach of legislation. It felt like 
the club was not ready to make a difference in their organisation and this 
was quite concerning. The licence should be suspended until everything 
was satisfactorily sorted out. 

 
9. The summary statement on behalf of PEDSA, that they could not 

apologise enough. At the moment things were moving forward. The 
committee did not elect themselves. They were all volunteers and trying to 
keep the club going. The clubhouse was where everybody met. They were 
asking for the club to be able to carry on. They would be able to submit 
evidence every three months if that was required as they were getting on 
top of things. If the certificate was taken away, everyone would lose out 
including all their members and the club would dwindle away. 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
1. In accordance with the principles of Section 100(a) of the Local 

Government Act 1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting 
for this item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act. 

 
The Panel retired, with the legal representative and committee 
administrator, to consider the application further and then the meeting 
reconvened in public. 
 

2. The Chairman made the following statement: 
 

Page 254



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 26.2.2020 

 

- 428 - 

“The Licensing Sub-Committee has taken into consideration all the 
representations both written and oral by the parties, and has 
determined that the Licensing Authority’s application for a review of the 
Club Premises Certificate on the balance of probabilities has been 
satisfied on the grounds of the prevention of crime and disorder. 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee has decided that the club has ceased to 
be a ‘qualifying club’ and that it no longer is being conducted in good 
faith pursuant to Section 62 and 63 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
Revoking the club’s Premises Certificate means that any licensable 
activities will not be permitted on the club’s premises.” 
 

3. The Licensing Sub-Committee resolved that it considers the withdrawal 
of the Club Premises Certificate appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. The Licensing Sub-Committee resolved to 
withdraw the certificate. 

 
 
 

Page 255



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MAXI WINE CENTRE, 495 HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD EN3 5XH  (REPORT NO. 243)
	2. Annex 1 - Premises licence
	Part A – Premises Licence
	Annex 4 – Plans

	Part B – Premises Licence summary

	3. Annex 2a - Review Application
	4. Annex 2b - Appendix 1
	5. Annez 2c - Appendix 2
	6. Annex 2d - Appendix 3
	7. Annex 2e - Appendix 4
	8. Annex 2f - Appendix 5
	9. Annex 3 - Police Rep
	10. Annex 4 - Proposed Conditions

	4 SARGE OFF LICENCE, 240 FORE STREET, EDMONTON N18 2QD  (REPORT NO. 244)
	2. Annex 1 - Part A Premises Licence
	3. Annex 2a - Review application
	4. Annex 2b - Additional Information
	5. Annex 2c - Appendix 1
	6. Annex 2d - Appendix 2
	7. Annex 2e - Appendix 3
	8. Annex 2f - Appendix 4-6
	9. Annex 3 - Proposed Conditions

	5 CARPATHINA LTD, 337 BOWES ROAD, LONDON N11 1BA  (REPORT NO. 245)
	2. Annex 1a - Review application Carpathinia
	Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
	Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known) 
	Post Code
	     
	Daytime contact telephone number
	     
	Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 3)

	Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.
	Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5)

	Post Code
	Telephone number (if any)       

	3. Annex 1b - Additional Information
	4. Annex 1c - Appendices 1 & 2
	5. Annex 1d - Appendix 3
	6. Annex 1e - Appendix 4 - Premises Licence
	Please find the licence enclosed. Please check the details on the licence carefully. The Licensing Authority is prepared to correct any of our clerical errors within 28 days of the licence being issued. Please also read the details regarding the new A...
	The Alcohol Wholesaler Registration Scheme (AWRS)
	https://www.gov.uk/guidance/the-alcohol-wholesaler-registration-scheme-awrs
	Part A – Premises Licence
	Annex 1 - Mandatory Conditions
	The Mandatory Conditions are attached and form part of the Operating Schedule of your licence/certificate. You must ensure that the operation of the licensed premises complies with the attached Mandatory Conditions as well as the Conditions in Annex 2...
	Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule
	1. There shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children.
	2. A digital CCTV system must be installed in the premises complying with the following criteria:
	(1) Cameras must be sited to observe the entrance and exit doors both inside and outside, the alcohol displays, and floor areas.
	(2) Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots of the heads and shoulders of all people entering the premises i.e. capable of identification.
	(3) Cameras overlooking floor areas should be wide angled to give an overview of the premises.
	(4) Provide a linked record of the date, time, and place of any image.
	(5) Provide good quality images.
	(6) Operate under existing light levels within and outside the premises.
	(7) Have the recording device located in a secure area or locked cabinet.
	(8) Have a monitor to review images and recorded picture quality.
	(9) Be regularly maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention.
	(10) Have signage displayed in the customer area to advise that CCTV is in operation.
	(11) Digital images must be kept for 28 days.
	(12) Police or authorised local authority employees will have access to images at any reasonable time.
	(13) All staff engaged in the sale/supply of alcohol shall be trained to operate the CCTV system and download images/footage upon request by Police or  authorised local authority employees.
	(14) The equipment must have a suitable export method, e.g. CD/DVD writer so  that the police can make an evidential copy of the data they require. This data should be in the native file format, to ensure that no image quality is lost when making the ...
	3. Signs shall be prominently displayed on the exit doors advising customers  that the premises is in a Public Space Protection Order Area (or similar) and that alcohol should not be taken off the premises and consumed in the street.  These notices sh...
	4. All staff involved in the sale of alcohol shall receive induction and refresher training (at least every three months) relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions of the premises licence.
	5. All training relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions of the  premises licence shall be documented and records kept at the premises. These records shall be made available to the Police and/or Local Authority upon request and sha...
	6. A 'Think 25' proof of age scheme shall be operated and relevant material shall be displayed at the premises.
	7. A record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and completed when necessary. This record shall contain the date and time of the refusal, a description of the customer, the name of the staff member who refused the sale, and the reason the s...
	8. The Designated Premises Supervisor shall regularly check the refusals system to ensure it is being consistently used by all staff.
	9. Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all public exits from the premises requesting customers respect the needs of local residents and  leave the premises and area quietly.  These notices shall be positioned at eye level and in...
	10. Only the Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor shall purchase alcohol and / or tobacco stock.
	11. Alcohol and tobacco stock shall only be purchased from registered wholesalers.
	12. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods bought are kept together in a file or folder as evidence that they have been brought into the UK through legal channels.  Receipts shall show the following details: (1) Seller's ...
	13. All tobacco products which are not on the tobacco display shall be stored in a container clearly marked 'Tobacco Stock'.  This container shall be kept within the store room or behind the sales counter.
	14. Tobacco products shall only be taken from the tobacco display behind the sales counter in order to make a sale.
	Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority
	Annex 4 – Plans

	Part B – Premises Licence summary



	7. Annex 1f - Appendix 5-6
	8. Annex 2 - Response from PLH

	6 POLONEZZ, 14 GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 6JR  (REPORT NO. 246)
	2. Annex 1a - Review application
	3. Annex 1b - Additional Information
	4. Annex 1c - Appendix 1 &  2
	5. Annex 1d - Appendix 3
	6. Annex 1e - Appendix 4
	Please find the licence enclosed. Please check the details on the licence carefully. The Licensing Authority is prepared to correct any of our clerical errors within 28 days of the licence being issued. Please also read the details regarding the new A...
	The Alcohol Wholesaler Registration Scheme (AWRS)
	https://www.gov.uk/guidance/the-alcohol-wholesaler-registration-scheme-awrs
	Part A – Premises Licence
	Annex 1 - Mandatory Conditions
	The Mandatory Conditions are attached and form part of the Operating Schedule of your licence/certificate. You must ensure that the operation of the licensed premises complies with the attached Mandatory Conditions as well as the Conditions in Annex 2...
	Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule
	1. There shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children.
	2. A digital CCTV system must be installed in the premises complying with the following criteria: (1) Cameras must be sited to observe the entrance and exit doors both inside and outside, the alcohol displays, and floor areas; (2) Cameras on the entra...
	3. Signs shall be prominently displayed on the exit doors advising customers that the premises is in a 'Designated Public Place Order' and that alcohol should not be taken off the premises and consumed in the street.  These notices shall be positioned...
	4. A written or electronic record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and completed when necessary. This record shall be made available to Police and/or the Local Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one year.
	5. All staff at the premises shall receive induction and refresher training (at least every 3 months), relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions of the premises licence.
	6. All training relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions of the premises licence shall be documented and records kept at the premises. These records shall be made available to the Police and/or Local Authority upon request and shal...
	7. The Local Authority or similar proof of age scheme shall be operated and relevant material shall be displayed at the premises. Only passport, photographic driving licences or ID with the P.A.S.S. logo (Proof of Age Standards Scheme) may be accepted.
	8. The premises licence holder shall ensure that the pavement from the building line to the kerb edge immediately outside the premises, including the gutter/channel at its junction with the kerb edge, is kept clean and free from litter at all material...
	9. Only the Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor shall purchase alcohol and / or tobacco stock.
	10. Alcohol and tobacco stock shall only be purchased from registered wholesalers.
	11. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods bought are kept together in a file or folder as evidence that they have been brought into the UK through legal channels.  Receipts shall show the following details: (1) Seller's ...
	12. All tobacco products which are not on the tobacco display shall be stored in a container clearly marked 'Tobacco Stock'.  This container shall be kept within the store room or behind the sales counter.
	13. Tobacco products shall only be taken from the tobacco display behind the sales counter in order to make a sale.
	Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority
	Not applicable
	Annex 4 – Plans

	Part B – Premises Licence summary



	7. Annex 1f - Appendix 5&6

	7 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS
	Minutes , 26/02/2020 Licensing Sub-Committee




